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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains a number of “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements include, among others, statements regarding revenue drivers, growth opportunities and operational cost savings
expected to result from the merger of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt, as well as statements contained in sections such as: Note 10,
“Retirement Benefits”; Note 5, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets™; Note 15, “Income Taxes”; Note 11, “Debt, Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities”; and Note 13, “Restricted Stock” of the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Annual Report; the
Executive Overview; Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates; the discussion of our capital expenditures; Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
and Contractual Obligations; Liquidity and Capital Resources; Risk Management; and Part I, Item 3 “Legal Proceedings”. You can identify
these'statements and other forward-looking statements in this filing by words such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “believe”,
“estimate”, “plan”, “intend”, “continue”, or similar words, expressions or the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. You
should read these statements carefully because they contain projections of our future results of operations or financial condition, or state other
“forward-looking” information. A number of risks and uncertainties exist that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
reflected in these forward-looking statéments are identified under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These
statements are based on assumptions that may not come true. All forward-looking disclosure is speculative by its nature. We undertake no
obligation to update any of the forward-looking information 1nc1uded in this Annual Report, whether as a result of new information, future
events, changed expectations or otherwise. ’

PART1

Item 1. Business.
The Company

Towers Watson & Co. (referred herein as “Towers Watson”, the “Company”, “us”, or “we”) is a leading global professional services company
that helps organizations improve performance through effective people, risk and ﬁnanc1al management. We offer solutions in the areas of
employee benefits, talent management, rewards, and risk and capital management. We offer our clients comprehensive services across three
business segments, Benefits, Risk and Financial Services and Talent and Rewards, through a strong talent pool of approximately 13,100 full-
time associates across 38 countries. Our professional staff are trusted advisors and experts in their fields and include approximately 2,500 fully
accredited actuaries. Towers Watson was formed on January 1, 2010, from the merger of Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc. (“Towers
Perrin”) and Watson Wyatt Worldwide, Inc. (“Watson Wyatt”) two leading professional services firms that trace their roots back more than
100 years.

We help our clients enhance business performance by improving their ability to attract, retain and motivate quahfled employees. We focus on
delivering consulting services and solutions that help organizations anticipate, identify and capitalize on emergmg opportunltles in benefits and
human capital management. We also advise the insurance industry on a wide range of strategic and risk management issues and we help our
clients mitigate risk through insurance, reinsurance and capital markets transactions. In addition, we provide investment advice and solutions to
help our clients develop and implement disciplined and efficient strategies to meet their investment goals.

Our target market is generally large, multi-national and domestic companies, with additional focus on the insurance industry. Our clients
include many of the world’s leading corporations, including approximately 85% of the Fortune Global 500 companies, 84% of the Fortune
1000, 76% of the FTSE 100 and 100% of the Dax 30. We also advise more than three-quarters of the world’s leading insurance companies. We
work with major' corporations, emerging growth companies, governmental agencies and not-for-profit institutions in a wide variety of
industries.

The Merger

On January 1, 2010, Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin combined their businesses through two simultaneous mergers (the “Merger”) and
became Towers Watson & Co. Since the consummation of the Merger, Towers Perrin changed its name to Towers Watson Pennsylvania Inc.,
and Watson Wyatt changed its name to Towers Watson Delaware Holdings Inc. However, for ease of reference, we continue to use the legacy
Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt names throughout this discussion.

Watson Wyatt is the accounting predecessor in the Merger and as such, the historical results of Watson Wyatt through December 31, 2009 have
become those of the new registrant, Towers Watson, and are presented in this filing. Towers Watson’s consolidated financial statements as of
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 include the results of Towers Perrin’s operations. The consolidated financial statements of Towers
Watson as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 include the results of Towers Perrin’s operations beginning January 1, 2010.



Business Overview

As leading economies worldwide become more service-oriented and interconnected, effective human resources, financial and risk management
are increasingly a source of competitive advantage for companies and other organizations. Employers, regardless of geography or industry, are
facing unprecedented challenges involving the management of their people. Changing technology, expectations for innovation and quality
enhancements, skill shortages in selected areas, and an aging population in many developed countries have increased employers’ focus on
attracting and retaining talented employees. Further, employers are focused on achieving productivity improvements and effectively managing
the overall size and volatility of their labor costs. The growing demand for employee benefits and human capital management services is
directly related to the size, complexity and rapid changes associated with the effective design, financial management and administration of
human resources programs. ‘ '

The Benefits segment is our largest segment. This segment provides benefits consulting and administration services through four primary lines
of business. Retirement supports organizations worldwide in designing, managing, administering and communicating all types of retirement
plans. Health and Group Benefits provides advice on the strategy, design, financing, delivery, ongoing plan management and communication of
health and group benefit programs. Through our Technology and Administration Solutions line of business, we deliver cost-effective benefit
outsourcing solutions. The International Consulting Group provides expertise in dealing with international human capital management and
related benefits and compensation issues for our clients and their subsidiaries. A significant portion of the revenue in this segment is from
recurring work, driven in large part by the heavily regulated nature of employee benefits plans and our clients’ annual needs for these services.
The Benefits segment contributed approximately 59% of revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The Risk and Financial Services segment, our second largest segment, has three primary lines of business that are united by an approach that
focuses on risk, capital and value. Our aim is to help clients improve business performance by effectively integrating risk management into
their overall financial management framework. Risk Consulting and Software provides risk consulting and financial modeling software
solutions primarily to the insurance industry. Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage provides a range of risk transfer solutions, principally-
reinsurance brokerage services. Investment Consulting and Solutions provides consulting and solutions focused on investment strategy, risk
assessment, asset allocation, and investment manager selection to institutional investors, primarily pension plans. A significant portion of the
revenue in this segment is from recurring work, driven in large part by the heavily regulated nature of the insurance industry and ongoing
demand for services such as reinsurance brokerage and investment consulting. The Risk and Financial Services segment contributed
approximately 24% of revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The Talent and Rewards segment has three primary lines of business. Executive Compensation advises our clients’ management and boards of
directors on executive pay and incentive programs. Rewards, Talent and Communication provides consulting on alignment, design and delivery
of employee rewards (pay and incentives), talent management programs and processes including career development, performance
management and leadership succession, and organization and employee communication and change management. Data, Surveys and
Technology provides human capital data, analytics and technology solutions, such as compensation benchmarking data, employee opinion
surveys, HR function metrics, and reward administration and talent management technology solutions, to enable benchmarking, evaluation of
return on investments, resource allocation decisions and effective administration of human resources programs. The revenues in this segment
are largely comprised of project-based work from a stable client base. The Talent and Rewards segment contributed approximately 17% of
revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Our company is recognized for our thought leadership and proprietary industry content. Our insights, derived from our extensive research
across these three segm.ents, are a core part of our brand identity and are widely cited by many major news outlets such as The Wall Street
Journal, The New York Times, the Financial Times, BBC News and CNBC. We also produce proprietary studies and white papers on topics
such as employee attitudes toward the workplace, executive pay trends, health care quality and costs, the impact of enterprise risk management
on business performance and strategies for managing pension risk and investments. Our research on changing demographics in major
economies is helping companies prepare for the impact of these changes on costs, productivity and the ability to attract and retain talented
employees.

While we are focused on maintaining depth of expertise in products and services in the areas described above, management believes that one of
our primary strengths is our ability to link products and services from our different practices to comprehensively meet the complex needs of our
clients that typically span these areas. :



Principal Services
Our global operations include three segments: Benefits, Risk and Financial Services, and Talent and Rewards.

The percentages of revenue generated in the various groups are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009
Benefits ' e o ‘ 59% 64% - 69%
Risk and Financial Services ’ 24 21 17
Talent and Rewards : ' : 17 15 14
Total Segment Revenue 100% 100% 100%

For more information about our operating segments, see Note 16, “Segment Information”, of the notes to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 15 of this Annual Report.
Benefits Segment

The Benefits segment is our largest segment with over 6,000 associates. The Benefits segment generated approximately 59% of revenue for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This segment has grown through business combinations as well as strong organic growth. It helps clients
creatc and manage cost-effective benefits programs that help them attract, retain and motivate a talented workforce.

The lines of business within the Benefits segment are:
*  Retirement;
*  Health and Group Benefits;
¢ Technology and Administration Solutions; and
* International Consqlting.
Retirement

Our retirement consulting, which comprises a substantial portion of the Benefits segment’s revenue and profit, supports organizations
worldwide in designing, managing, and administering all types of retirement plans. We are one of the world’s leading advisors on retirement
plans, providing actuarial and consulting services for large defined benefit and defined contribution plans, including design, funding and risk
management strategies. We also help our clients assess the effects of changing workforce demographics on their retirement plans, cash flow
requirements, and retiree benefit adequacy and security.

Our professional staff are named actuaries for many of the world’s largest retirement plan sponsors. Towers Watson provides actuarial services
to more of the top 300 pension funds worldwide than any other consulting firm. In the United States, we provide actuarial services to three of
the four largest corporate-sponsored defined benefit plans (based on total pension plan assets), and in the United Kingdom, we are advisor to
almost half of the 100 largest corporate pension funds. Additionally, we have market-leading positions in Canada, Germany and the
Netherlands. We offer clients a full range of integrated and innovative retirement consulting services to meet the needs of all types of
employers — including those that continue to offer defined benefit plans and those that are reexamining their retirement benefits strategies. For
those clients that want to outsource some or all of their pension plan management, we offer integrated solutions that combine investment
consulting, pension administration, core actuarial services and communication assistance.

Our retirement consulting services include:
* Retirement strategy and plan design;
* Actuarial services and related support;
* Retirement financial management;
*  Settlement solutions;
¢ Compliance and governance strategies;
* Risk management; and

*  Defined contribution solutions.



Much of our recent consulting with clients relates to managing risk and cost volatility, various regulatory changes (global accounting reform
and United States and European pension funding legislation), and a broad-based desire on the part of many employers to revisit their retirement
design approach. We use in-depth data and analytics to provide perspective on the overall environment and to help our clients with their design
decisions. We have tracked the retirement designs of the largest public companies around the world over many years, providing clients with
data to better understand the true magnitude of the movement from defined benefit to defined contribution desi gns.

To further enhance our retirement consulting services, we dedicate significant resources to technology systems and tools to ensure the
consistency and efficiency of service delivery in all our offices worldwide. We also maintain extensive proprietary databases that enable our
clients to track and benchmark benefit plan provisions. Retirement typically lags reduction in discretionary spending compared to the other
segments, mainly due to ongoing regulatory requirements for our-clients. Our retirement consulting relationships are generally longer term in
nature and client retention rates are high. Revenue for the retirement practice is seasonal, with most of the work we perform falling around
calendar year end reporting and compliance requirements, as clients complete their pension plan valuations; thus, the third quarter of our fiscal
year is seasonally strongest. Major revenue growth drivers in this practice include changes in regulations, economic uncertainty, increased
global demand and increased market share. :

Health and Group Benefits

Through our second largest line of business in the Benefits segment, Health and Group Benefits, we provide plan management consulting
across the full spectrum of health and group benefits programs, including health, dental, disability, life and other coverage. We also advise
clients on emerging issues specific to their interests and needs, including the impact of health care reform legislation on their plan strategy and
related health plan changes, and the implementation and monitoring of innovative new programs such as wellness or care management. Clients
seek our evidence-based, practical solutions to improve employee health, satisfaction and productivity while minimizing costs.

Globally, many health care systems are strained by shrinking resources and increasing demand due to population aging and changes in
employees’ health status. Our health and group benefits consulting services help clients provide health and welfare benefits to attract and retain
qualified employees and enhance the health and productivity of their workforce. :

In the United States, the enactment of health care reform legislation has prompted employers to reevaluate their health plan strategies in light of
expanded coverage requirements and new tax considerations. Also, given continued above-inflation increases in health care costs, employers
are secking new and proven solutions for managing plan costs and engaging members. An increasing number of employers are adopting
consumer-oriented health care approaches that encourage employees and retirees to participate more actively in health care buying decisions.
These models put employees in charge of spending their own health care dollars and provide them with appropriate incentives, tools and
information to make wiser health purchasing decisions.

We believe we have one of the strongest networks in the health and group benefits consulting business. We manage numerous collective
purchasing initiatives (e.g., pharmacy, retiree health) that enable employers to achieve greater value from third-party service providers than
they can realize on their own. Our approach to health and group benefits consulting emphasizes health and productivity, pharmacy, provider
quality, effective communication, and data and metrics. )

Our global services include:

*  Program strategy, design and pricing;
¢ Health condition management consulting;
¢ Pharmacy benefit management consulting;
*  Workforce well-being evaluation and wellness and health promotion consulting;
*  Performance measurement and monitoring; _
*  Development of funding strategies and forecasting, budgeting and reserve setﬁng;
*  Vendor evaluation, selection and management; and
*  Claims audits and pre- and post-implementation audits.

Technology and Administration Solutions

Our Technology and Administration Solutions line of business, the third largest within the Benefits segment, provides benefits outsourcing
services to hundreds of clients across multiple industries. Our world-class solutions are supported by our technology systems, including our
BenefitConnect system in the United States, and our dedicated, regional service centers.



Supporting more than six million plan participants, we provide:
* Pension and retirement plan administration; and
* Health and welfare administration.

We have a 30-year track record of & success in benefits outsourcing. We provide clients with three distinct delivery model options to help meet
the needs of employers of all types, ranging from a full outsourcing option to co-sourcing along with our clients’ internal benefits departments
to providing system support only.

In the United States, we are a top-tier benefits outsourcing provider and a market leader for co-sourced defined benefit administration for
orgarizations with 10,000 or more employees. For retirement administration, BenefitConnect includes case management and administration
tools to assist plan sponsors in managing the entire life cycle of pension administration, from new hire to retirement, and employee self-service
tools that enhance employees’ understanding of their retirement benefits’ future value. For health and welfare administration, BenefitConnect is
a customizable, web-based application that combines self-service employee tools with administrative and call-center components to facilitate
the administration and management of health and welfare benefits.

In the United Kingdom, we are a leader in retirement administration outsourcing and flexible benefits administration services to the private
sector, using highly automated processes and web technology to enable members to-access their records and improve their understanding of
their benefits. Our technology also provides trustees and human resources departments with timely management information to monitor activity
levels and reduce administration costs. In markets outside the United States with more complex defined contribution arrangements, we have
deployed sophisticated defined contribution technology, processes and controls. Our defined contribution administration model in Germany
and the United Kingdom leverages web technology and provides clients with “back office” reconciliation, while offering the clients the option
to outsource or co-source the front-office operations as needed. Participants can access data allowing them to be self-sufficient in managing
their portfolios. :

Within the United States, our client retention rates in our Technology and Administration Solutions line of business are approximately 96% for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

International Consulting

To help multi-national companies face the challenges of operating in the global marketplace, Towers Watson provides expertise in dealing with
international human capital management and related benefits and compensation advice for corporate headquarters and their overseas
subsidiaries. Through our global specialists and in cooperation with our local offices worldwide, we help multi-national companies on a range
of issues, including: financial, accounting, cost and risk-control solutions for employee benefit plans globally, global actuarnal services, and
cross-border support for benefit plan consolidation in mergers, acquisitions and divestitures.

Risk and Financial Services Segment

Within the Risk and Fmanc1a1 Services segment, our second largest at approximately 24% of revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, we have three lines of business:

* Risk Consultmg and Software;
* Investment Consulting and Solutions; and
* Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage.

We work with a variety of client executives: chief financial officers and treasurers, chief risk officers, senior actuaries, reinsurance buyers, and
pension plan sponsors and trustees. Two of our lines of business, Risk Consulting and Software and Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage,
have a particular focus on the insurance industry, while Investment focuses primarily on pensmn plans. However, all three of our businesses
also apply their expertise to serve broader markets. »

We believe we can add significant value to our clients by bringing a wider range of Towers Watson products and services to bear in addressing
the issues they face. For example, we have combined our risk consulting and software solutions with brokerage to assist insurance executives in
more holistically managing their capital and making optimal reinsurance/risk transfer decisions. In addition, our investment experts often work
with colleagues in our Benefits segment on retirement financial management issues. In the future, we will look for more opportunities to
combine our services to respond in innovative ways to client needs. . :

We have also developed a range of financial modeling software products. Our products bring together innovative actuarial thinking with
software expertise to provide comprehensive solutions for our insurance clients to price their products, measure value, manage risk and monitor
capital adequacy. Our software solutions support a variety of activities, 1nclud1ng risk and cap1ta1 management, asset-



liability modeling, pricing, reserving and, product development. These are used internally for consulting projects and licensed to clients around
the world. We significantly strengthened our software offerings with the acquisition of EMB in January 2011.

Risk Consulting and Software

The largest line of business within Risk and Financial Services, Risk Consulting and Software is primarily focused on the insurance industry.
Our associates use deep analytical skills to solve practical business problems facing the insurance'ihdustry by applying the latest techniques
and software solutions to help our clients improve businiess performance and create competitive advantage. We serve three-quarters of the
world’s top 100 insurance companies and are also a leading provider of financial modeling software to the insurance industry. In fact, we have
more actuaries serving the insurance industry than any other firm, : :

Our Risk‘ Consulting and Software services include:
* Financial and regulatory reporting
. ‘Enterprise risk and capital management B
* M&A and corporate restructuring (including actuarial valuation, capital analysis and due diligence)
*  Product and market strategies (including pricing and predictive modeling)
* Financial modeling softwaré and impl_ementation support 7
¢ Integrated bthulting and risk transfer

We provide a wide range of enterprise risk management services to help insurance companies identify and control their key risks, enhance risk-
adjusted returns and meet strategic objectives. We are a major provider of actuarial valuation and due diligence support for insurance industry
mergers, acquisitions and restructurings. We also help our clients value liabilities and calculate economic capital for financial reporting and
management purposes — and we help them respond to regulatory changes that impact financial reporting, such as Solvency II. In addition, we
provide other services such as product development, predictive modeling, strategies for entry.into new markets, claim consulting and” ‘
catastrophe modeling. We also help non-insurance entities with risk management issues such as evaluating and optimizing their insurance
programs as part of their overall risk and capital management processes, and designing and implementing risk mitigation strategies to align
their risk profile with overall financial objectives. Finally, we are extending our offerings into new areas — like telematics or usage based
insurance — building on our traditional strengths in modeling and data analysis. ' R

Investment Cons_ulting and Solutions

Investment Consulting and Solutions is the second largest line of business within the Risk and Financial Services segment. Our Investment
business helps our clients manage investment complexity, establish their risk tolerance and improve governance.

We have one of the industry’s largest investment consulting practices. Our business is focused on creating value for institutional investors
through independent, best-in-class investment advice. We provide coordinated investment strategy advice — based on expertise in risk
assessment, asset-liability modeling, strategic asset allocation policy setting and investment manager selection — to some of the world’s largest
pension funds and institutional investors.

Our Investment services include:
. Developrﬁent of investment policy, governance and risk assessment
¢ . Investment strategy
*  Structured products design
*  Manager structure and selection
¢ Manager monitoring and evaluation; performance reporting
* Implemented c'onsulting '

We have a large investment strategy team with more than 100 investment manager research professionals covering all asset classes from
mainstream equities and fixed income to alternative investments, including hedge funds and private equity. With deep specialist expertise in
asset management, investment banking and actuarial science, we provide practical, independent advice tailored to meet the needs of our clients.
While Investment clients primarily include defined benefit and defined conribution pension plans, we see significant growth potential in other
areas, including insurance company asset management, endowment funds and sovereign wealth funds.



Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage

Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage is the third largest line of business in the Risk and Financial Services segment. Our Brokerage business
primarily serves as an 1ntermed1ary between our clients and the insurance, reinsurance and capital markets. The substantial majority of our
business is providing global reinsurance intermediary services and consulting expertise. We cover all major lines of business and maintain
trading relationships with more than 200 reinsurers and Lloyd’s underwrrters

Our Brokerage services include:
+  Reinsurance .strlategy and program review
. Claims management and program administration
*  Catastrophe exposure management
*  Contract negotiation and plaeement
L Market security evaluation and monitoring
* Integrated consulting and risk transfer

In addition to our insurance and reinsurance intermediary services and consulting, we provide capital market broker/dealer capabilities. We
help our clients make informed decisions about risk and capital management and execute comprehensive solutions that achieve broad coverage
at competitive prices. Our integrated approach to risk and capital management helps our clierits allocate, use and protect the capital they need to
achieve financial objectives. :

While most of our clients are insurance companies, our Brokerage business also places insurance programs for corporate clients. We have
offices in North America and Europe to serve clients in all the major insurance markets. Our London office places reinsurance for Lloyd’s
Syndicates and European insurance companies. In addition, it acts as a correspondent broker, placing reinsurance for North American
companies into Lloyd’s of London. Together with Risk Consultmg and Software our Brokerage business has an on-the-ground presence in
Bermuda to access and serve this important market. . . o '

Talent and Rewards Segment

Our third largest segment, Talent and Rewards, comprlses approx1mately 17% of revenue for the ﬁscal year ended June 30,2011 and is. focused
on three lines of business: s ;

* Executive Compensation;

¢ Rewards, Talent and Communication; and

* Data, Surveys and Technology. ‘
Executive Compensation

We advise our clients’ management and boards of directors on all aspects of executive pay programs, including base pay, annual bonus, long-
term incentives, perquisites and other benefits. This work includes helping clients understand market practices relative to levels of
compensation as well as the design of incentive programs. Given that companies in all regions of-the world ate facing more intense scrutiny of
executive pay from shareholders, regulators and other stakeholders, our goal is to ensure that pay plans support the organization’s business
strategy and drive desired performance. We help select effective performance metrics and assess program risks to ensure good governance. Our
services include executive compensation philosophy and strategy development, modeling and valuation of pay plan elements, performance
measurement selectlon and calibration, board of director compensation and plan design, advice on change-m control and severance, programs,
and total compensation assessment and benchmarking. We also provide clients with executive pay related transactional support associated with
various transactions such as mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, executive transitions and business restructuring.

We have a global network of executive pay practitioners, with consults on the ground in key countries worldwide supported by research and
data covering the world’s top markets, that allows us to provide comprehensive solutions to our clients. We maintain a number of proprretary
databases that provide us with competitive advantage. We have dedicated in-house experts on legislative and regulatory requirements, tax and
accounting issues, proxy advisor policies, disclosure rules and other key considerations in deslgmng executive pay programs. Whether we are
retained by the board’s compensation committee or by management, our extensive consulting protocols help ensure that our executive
compensation clients receive fully independent, objective advice.

Rewards, Talent and Communication

From this line of business, we have a broad array of capabilities in designing and implementing human resources programs and processes for
employees, managers and leaders. Our solutions cut across the employment lifecycle: attracting and deploying talent,



managing and rewarding employees’ performance, developing their skills, and providing relevant career paths to help retain and engage them
over time.

Our primary practice areas are:

* Talent Management. We help organizations develop integrated programs and processes to identify clients’ leadership and workforce
needs, develop leaders and employees, and provide performance management to align goals and incentives for those employees and
leaders with the critical drivers of business performance. Also within this practice, our human resources effectiveness services help
clients implement the right human resources structure, service delivery model and staff to meet the needs of both the organization and

employees efficiently and effectively.

* Rewards. We provide the strategy, design and execution support for compensation programs to help clients optimize their reward
spend and ensure their programs drive the behaviors and performance required to meet key business goals. Within this practice, we
also have a sales effectiveness and rewards service offering focused on sales force productivity and incentives.

¢ Communication and Change Management. We offer deep expertise in change management, organizational effectiveness and
communication to support our consulting services and help drive employee engagement and align behavior with business results.
Data, Surveys and Technology

This line of business combines data, analytics and software to enable more effective management of people and human resources programs. It
brings together our capabilities in employee surveys, global databases, and talent management and rewards technology.

This business includes our global compensation databases, employee survey practice, human capital metrics and analytics benchmarking
offering, HR service delivery consulting, and software applications related to talent, performance and compensation management. These
practices generate recurring revenue by leveraging data, technology and a pool of staff resources that can be flexibly deployed.

We have data and tools that our competitors cannot easily match. Our compensation databases cover almost 100 countries across six continents
to support global clients wherever they do business. Our employee surveys offer clients access to the world’s largest normative database of
employee attitudes and opinions, providing benchmarks for over 60 countries and 38 industries. Our human capital metrics database provides
benchmarks on key workforce and human resources measures and analyzes how they link to and drive business performance.

We support clients in impleménting new HR technology, including Workday, SAP and PeopleSoft. Our capabilities include business case
development, project planning, requirements definition, process design and implementation services supported by our change management
expertise. We also provide a broad array of proprietary technology solutions, including:

¢ TalentREWARD, an integrated suite of applications that covers recruiting, performance management, global job leveling,
compensation planning and administration, succession planning, career development, and learning management

¢ Total Rewards portals and statements
*  Onboarding applications
¢ HRportals

*  AnswerKey™, a set of tools to help support HR shared services/call centers

Competition

The human capital and risk management consulting and reinsurance brokerage industries are highly competitive. We believe there are
significant barriers to entry and we have developed competitive advantages in providing human resources ¢onsulting services. However, we
face strong competition from several different sources. ' ‘ ‘ ‘

Our principal competitors in the global human resources consulting industry are Mercer HR Consulting (a Marsh & McLennan company) and
Aon Hewitt Consulting (an Aon company). In addition to these firms, the industry includes other benefits and compensation firms and the
human resources consulting divisions of diversified professional service firms, such as Deloitte, Accenture and PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Beyond these large players, the global human resources consulting industry is highly fragmented. '
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Our major competitors in the insurance consulting and solutions indusiry include Milliman, Oliver Wyman (a Marsh & McLennan company)
and the big four accounting firms. In the reinsurance brokerage industry, our major competitors are Aon Benfield (an Aon company), Guy
Carpenter (a Marsh & McLennan company) and Willis. ' : '

The market for our services is subject to change as a result of economic, regulatory and legislative changes, technological developments, and
increased competition from established and new competitors. We believe the primary factors in selecting a human resources or risk
management consulting firm or reinsurance broker include reputation, the ability to provide measurable increases to shareholder value and
return on investment, global scale, quality of service and the ability to tailor services to clients’ unique needs. We believe we compete
favorably with respect to these factors.

Executive Officers of the Company
As of August 17, 2011, the following individuals were executive officers of the Company:

Walter W. Bardenwerper (age 60) has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Towers Watson since January 1, 2010. He
served as Vice President and General Counsel of Watson Wyatt since joining Watson Wyat in 1987 and served as Secretary since 1992.

Mr. Bardenwerper was a director of Watson Wyatt & Company from 1992 to 1997. Mr. Bardenwerper was previously an attorney with
Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft and Assistant General Counsel and Secretary of Satellite Business Systems. Presently, Mr. Bardenwerper is a
director of the Professional Consultants Insurance Company and has served on the board of directors of the Association of Management
Consulting Firms. He has a B.A. with Honors in Economics and graduated Phi Beta Kappa from the University of Virginia, has a J.D. from the
University of Virginia Law School and served as a law clerk to United States District Court Judge Albert W. Coffrin.

James K. Foreman (age 53) has served as Managing Director of the North America region of Towers Watson since January 1, 2010. Prior to
the Merger, Mr. Foreman served as Managing Director of the Human Capital Group of Towers Perrin beginning June 2007, with overall
responsibility for the global lines of business and geographic operations of Towers Perrin’s Human Capital Group. Mr. Foreman joined Towers
Perrin in 1985 and worked for almost 20 years at Towers Perrin in a number of leadership positions, including Managing Director of Towers
Perrin’s Health & Welfare practice and member of Towers Perrin’s board of directors from 2003 to 2005, before Jjoining Aetna Inc. in 2005 to
become the executive vice president of their national businesses division. He rejoined Towers Perrin in June 2007. Mr. Foreman holds a B.A.
in Business Economics from the University of California at Los Angeles.

Julie J. Gebauer (age 50) has served as Managing Director of Towers Watson’s Talent and Rewards business segment since January1, 2010.
Beginning 2002, she served as a Managing Director of Towers Perrin and led Towers Perrin’s global Workforce Effectiveness Practice and the
global Towers Perrin-International Survey Research Corporation line of business. Ms. Gebauer was a member of Towers Perrin’s board of
directors from 2003 through 2006. She joined Towers Perrin in 1986 as a consultant and held several leadership positions at Towers Perrin,
serving as the Managing Principal for the New York office from 1999 to 2001 and the U.S. East Region Leader for the Human Capital Group
from 2002 to 2006. Ms. Gebauer is a fellow of the Society of Actuaries and is an Enrolled Actuary in the Joint Board for Enrolled Actuaries.
Ms. Gebauer graduated Phi Beta Kappa from the University of Nebraska-Lincoln with a B.S. in Mathematics and English.

Patricia L. Guinn (age 56) has served as Managing Director of the Risk and Financial Services business segment of Towers Watson since
January 1, 2010. Previously, she served as Managing Director of the Risk and Financial Services business group of Towers Perrin beginning in
2001. She was a member of Towers Perrin’s board of directors from 2001 through 2004 and from 2007 until the consummation of the Merger.
She joined Towers Perrin in 1976 and has held a number of leadership positions at the firm. She is a fellow of the Society of Actuaries, a
member of the American Academy of Actuaries and a member of the Conference of Consulting Actuaries. Ms. Guinn graduated with honors
from Hendrix College with a B.A. degree in Mathematics.

John J. Haley (age 61) has served as the Chief Executive Officer and as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Towers Watson since
January 1, 2010. Previously, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Watson Wyatt beginning on January 1, 1999, as Chairman
of the Board of Watson Wyatt beginning in 1999 and as a director of Watson Wyatt beginning in 1992. Mr. Haley joined Watson Wyatt in
1977. Prior to becoming President and Chief Executive Officer of Watson Wyatt, he was the Global Director of the Benefits Group at Watson
Wyatt. Mr. Haley is a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries and is a co-author of Fundamentals of Private Pensions (University of Pennsylvania
Press). Mr. Haley also serves on the boards of MAXIMUS, Inc., a provider of health and human services program management, consulting
services and system solutions, and Hudson Highland Group, Inc., an executive search, specialty staffing and related consulting services firm.
He has an A.B. in Mathematics from Rutgers College and studied under a Fellowship at the Graduate School of Mathematics at Yale
University.

Mark V. Mactas (age 59) has served as the President and Chief Operating Officer and as a director of Towers Watson since January 1, 2010.
Mr. Mactas became Towers Perrin’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors in 2001, and became Towers Perrin’s
President in 2000. He joined Towers Perrin’s New York office as an international consultant in 1980 and also spent
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seven years in Towers Perrin’s San Francisco office and five years in Towers Perrin’s Chicago office. Mr. Mactas previously managed Towers
Perrin’s global Health & Welfare practice and has served as a member of Towers Perrin’s management committee. Mr. Mactas is a fellow of
the Society of Actuaries and the Conference of Consulting Actuaries and is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries and the
International Actuarial Association. In addition, he has served as president of the Conference of Consulting Actuaries and has served on the
board of directors of the American Academy of Actuaries. He previously served on the board of directors and executive committee of the
Association of Management Consulting Firms. He currently serves on the Executive Committee and the Board of Trustees of Save the
Children. Mr. Mactas holds a B.A. degree in Mathematics and Economics from Lehigh University.

Roger F. Millay (age 54) has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Towers Watson since J anuary 1, 2010, and he previously
held the same position at Watson Wyatt from August 2008 until the consummation of the Merger. Prior to joining Watson Wyatt, Mr. Millay
was with Discovery Communications LLC, a global cable TV programmer and digital media provider, where he served as Senior Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer beginning in 2006. At Discovery, he was responsible for the global financial functions, including
accounting, treasury, budgeting, audit and tax. From 1999 to 2006, Mr. Millay was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer with
Airgas, Inc., an industrial gases and supplies distributor and producer. Mr. Millay has over 25 years of experience in financial officer positions,
including roles at Arthur Young & Company, Citigroup, and GE Capital. He holds a B.A. degree from the University of Virginia and an M.S.
in Accounting from Georgetown University’s Graduate School of Business, and he is a Certified Public Accountant. :

Chandrasekhar (Babloo) Ramamurthy (age 55) has served as Managing Director for Towers Watson in Europe, the Middle East and Africa
since January 1, 2010. He was Vice President, Regional Manager (Europe) of Watson Wyatt from 2005 until the consummation of the Merger,
and he served as a member of Watson Wyatt’s board of directors from 2005 to 2008. He joined The Wyatt Company in 1977. Following the
establishment of the global Watson Wyatt Worldwide alliance in 1995, Mr. Ramamurthy became a partner of Watson Wyatt LLP. '

Mr. Ramamurthy was based primarily in London, although between 1983 and 1986 he transferred to the international benefits and
compensation consulting team based in the New York region, where he dealt primarily with the head offices of U.S. multinational companies.
Upon returning to Burope, Mr. Ramamurthy was the account manager for a number of the company’s major clients in the U.K., advising on a
broad range of human capital and employee benefits issues both in the U.K. and overseas. Mr. Ramamurthy was the Head of the European
Benefits Consulting Practice from 1999 to 2004, before being appointed Managing Partner of Watson Wyatt LLP in 2004, and has also served
on Watson Wyatt LLP’s Partnership Board. Mr. Ramamurthy holds an honours degree in Mathematics from King’s College, London.

Gene H. Wickes (age 59) has served as the Managing Director of the Benefits business segment of Towers Watson since January 1, 2010.
Previously, he served as the Global Director of the Benefits Practice of Watson Wyatt beginning in 2005 and as a member of Watson Wyatt’s
board of directors from 2002 to 2007. Mr. Wickes was Watson Wyatt’s Global Retirement Practice Director in 2004 and the U.S. West
Division’s Retirement Practice Leader from 1997 to 2004. Mr. Wickes Jjoined Watson Wyatt in 1996 as a senior consultant and consulting
actuary. Prior to joining Watson Wyatt, he spent 18 years with Towers Perrin, where he assisted organizations with welfare, retirement, and
executive benefit issues. Mr. Wickes is a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries and has a B.S. in Mathematics and Economics, an M.S. in -
Mathematics and an M.S. in Economics, all from Brigham Young University.

Employees

We employed approximately 13,100 full-time associates as of June 30, 2011 in the segments listed below; in addition, we have a number of
part-time and contract associates whose numbers fluctuate based on short-term demands.

As of June 30,
2011 2010
Benefits 6,300 6,200
Risk and Financial Services 2,300 2,000
Talent and Rewards : : : o 2,100 2,000
Other : 300 200
Business Services (incl. Corporate and field support) : S : o i 2,100 2,400
Total associates ‘ 13,100 12,800

Access to Public Filings, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Board Committee Charters

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are
available, without charge, on our web site (www.towerswatson.com) or the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) web site
(www.sec.gov), as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically with, or furnished to, the SEC. We have also adopted a Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all associates, senior financial employees, the principal executive
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officer, other officers and members of senior management. We also have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our
directors. Both codes are posted on our website. Any amendments to the codes or any waivers of the director code requirements, or to the Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics for any of our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or our Chief Accounting Officer and
Controller will be disclosed on our website or in a Form 8-K. Towers Watson’s Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Nominating and
Governance Committee and Risk Committee all operate pursuant to written-charters adopted by our board of directors, which are available on
our website. We have also adopted a set of Corporate Governance Guidelines, copies of which are available on our website. Copies of all these
documents are also available, without charge, from our Investor Relations Department at 901 N. Glebe Road, Arlington, VA 22203.

Item 1A — Risk Factors.

In addition to the factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, the following are some of the important factors that could cause our actual
results to differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking statements. These risk factors should be carefully considered in
evaluating our business. The descriptions below are not the only risks and uncertainties that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that are
presently unknown to us may also impair our business operations, financial condition or results. If any of the risks and uncertainties below or
other risks were to occur, our business operations, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely impacted.

If we are not able to successfully integrate the operations of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt, we may fail to realize the anticipated growth
opportunities and other anticipated benefits of the Merger.

We face significant challenges in integrating Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s technologies, organizations, procedures, policies and
operations, as well as in addressing differences in the business cultures of the two companies, and retaining key Towers Perrin and Watson
Wyatt personnel. The integration process is complex and time consuming and requires substantial resources and effort. These efforts could
divert management’s focus and resources from other strategic opportunities and from business operations during the integration process.
Difficulties may occur during the integration process, including:

¢ Loss of key officers and employees;

¢ Loss of key clients;

* Loss of revenues; and

* Increases in operating, tax or other costs.

The success of the Merger will depend in part on our ability to realize the anticipated growth opportunities and cost savings from integrating
the businesses of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt, while minimizing or eliminating any difficulties that may occur. Even if the integration of
the businesses of Towers Peirin and Watson Wyatt is successful, it may not result in the realization of the full benefits of the growth
opportunities that we currently expect or these benefits may not be achieved within the anticipated time frame. Any failure to timely realize
these anticipated benefits could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, expenses and results of operations.

The effects of the Merger may be dilutive to our earnings per share in the short term, and our estimates of the operational cost savings we
expect to result from the Merger and of the costs we expect will be requzred to achieve such savings are inherently uncertain and may not
be accurate, and we may not be able to achieve the operational cost savings in the expected time frame or at all.

While we expect to realize significant savings during the first three years following completion of the Merger, it is uncertain if we will achieve
these savings, and the effects of the Merger may be dilutive to our earnings per share in the short term. We anticipate that full realization of
pretax annual operational cost savings will take at least three years to achieve. Our operational cost savings estimates are based on a number of
assumptions, including the assumption that we will be able to implement cost saving programs such as personnel reductions and consolidation
of operations, technologies, and administrative functions. In addition, our estimated expenses required to achieve operational cost savings do
not include certain other costs we expect to incur, including those relating to rebranding, .lease termination costs and facilities consolidation,
among others. We may not be able to achieve the operational cost savings that we anticipate in the expected time frame, based on the expected
costs or at all. Failure to successfully implement cost savings programs on a timely basis, or the need to spend more than anticipated to
implement such programs, will result in lower than expected cost savings in connection with the Merger and could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results.
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Changes in Towers Watson’s compensation structure relative to each of Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s current compensation
structures could impair Towers Watson’s ability to retain certain current associates of each of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt,

In order to meet our operating margin goals and increase our level of retained earnings, we have changed Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s
respective compensation structures. In particular, Towers Perrin, as a private company, had not retained a significant amount of annual
earnings, resulting in significant flexibility to vary its levels of cash compensation. OQur compensation practices are different from Towers
Perrin’s pre-merger practices, because a larger proportion of earnings will be retained compared to Towers Perrin’s historical practice, which
may affect, in particular, Towers Watson’s ability to retain current associates formerly of Towers Perrin accustomed to the historical
compensation structure of Towers Perrin as a private company. The changes in compensation structure could materially adversely affect
Towers Watson’s ability to retain current former Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt associates if they do not perceive Towers Watson’s total
compensation program to be competitive with that of other firms. '

The loss of key associates could damage or result in the loss of client relationships and could result in such associates competing against
Towers Watson.

Our success depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel, including key managers and associates. In addition, our
success largely depends upon our associates’ abilities to generate business and provide quality services. In particular, our associates’ business
relationships with our clients are a critical element of obtaining and maintaining client engagements. If we lose associates who manage

* substantial client relationships or possess substantial experience or expertise or if we are unable to successfully attract new talent, it could
materially adversely affect our ability to secure and complete engagements, which would materially adversely affect our results of operations
and prospects. In addition, if any of our key associates were to join a competitor or form a competing company, existing and potential clients
could choose to use the services of that competitor instead of Towers Watson’s services.

There can be no assurance that confidentiality and non-solicitation/non-competition agreements signed by senior associates who were former
Towers Perrin or Watson Wyatt associates before the “merger of equals” between the two entities, or agreements signed by Towers Watson
associates in the future, will be effective in preventing a loss of business. : ,

Our clients could terminate or reduce our services at any time, which could decrease associate utilization, adversely impacting our
profitability and results of operations.

Our clients generally are able to terminate or reduce our engagements at any time. If a client reduces the scope of, or terminates the use of, our
services with little or no-notice, our associate utilization will decline. In such cases, we will need to rapidly re-deploy our associates to other
engagements (if possible) in order to minimize the potential negative impact on our financial performance. In addition, because a sizeable
portion of our work is project-based rather than recurring in nature, our associate utilization will depend on our ability to continually secure
additional engagements. ) :

Our quarterly revenues could fluctuate while our expenses are relatively fixed.

Quarterly variations in our revenues and results of operations have occurred in the past and could occur as a result of a number of factors, such
as: '

¢ The significance of client engagements commenced and completed during a quarter;

*  The seasonality of certain types of services. For example, our retirement revenues typically are more heavily weighted toward the first
and fourth quarters of the calendar year, when annual actuarial valuations are required to be completed for calendar year-end
companies and the related services are performed;

- * The number of business days in a quarter;
¢ Associate hiring and utilization rates;
* Clients’ ‘Zilbility to terminate engagements without penalty;
¢ The size and scope of assignments; and
¢ General economic conditions.

A sizeable portion of our total operating expenses is relatively fixed, encompassing the majority of administrative, occupancy, communications
and other expenses, depreciation and amortization, and salaries and employee benefits excluding fiscal year-end incentive bonuses. Therefore,
a variation in the number of client assignments or in the timing of the initiation or the completion of client assignments or our inability to
forecast demand can cause significant variations in quarterly operating results and could result in losses and volatility in our stock price.
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Improper management of our engagements could hurt our financial results.

Most of our contracts are structured on a fixed-fee basis or a time-and-expense basis. The profitability of our fixed-fee engagements depends on
our ability to correctly estimate the costs and timing required for completion of the engagements and our ability to control our costs and -
improve our efficiency. The profitability of the engagements that are priced on a time-and-expense basis depends on our ability to maintain
competitive billing rates, as well as our ability to control our costs. If we do not correctly estimate the costs and manage the performance of our
engagements, we may incur losses on individual engagements and experience lower profit margins and, as a result, our overall financial results
could be materially adversely affected. :

The ;rend of employers shifting from defined benefit plans to deﬁned contribution plans could materially adversely affect our business and
results of operations. '

Our retirement consulting and actuarial business comprises a substantial portion of our revenue and profit. We provide clients with actuarial
and consulting services relating to both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. Defined benefit pension plans generally require
more actuarial services than defined contribution plans because defined benefit plans typically involve large asset pools, complex calculations
to determine employer costs, funding requirements and sophisticated analysis to match liabilities and assets over long periods of time. If
organizations shift to defined contribution plans more rapidly than we anticipate, or if we are unable to otherwise compensate for the decline in
our business that results from employers moving away from defined benefit plans, our business operations and related results of operations will
be materially adversely affected. :

Our business will be negatively affected if we are not able to anticipate and keep pace with rapid changes in government regulations or if
government regulations decrease the need for our services or increase our costs. : SR

A material portion of our revenue is affected by statutory changes. Many areas in which we provide services are the subject of government
regulation, which is constantly evolving. Changes in government and accounting regulations in the United States and the United Kingdom, two
of our principal geographic markets, affecting the value, use or delivery of benefits and human capital programs, including recent changes in
regulations relating to health care (such as medical plans), defined contribution plans (such as 401(k) plans), defined benefit plans (such as
pension plans) or executive compensation, may materially adversely affect the demand for, or the profitability of, our services, Changes to
insurance regulatory schemes, or our failure to keep pace with such changes, could negatively affect demand for services in our Risk and
Financial Services business segment. For example, our continuing ability to provide investment advisory services or reinsurance brokerage
services depends on compliance with the rules and regulations in each of these jurisdictions. Any failure to comply with these regulations could
lead to disciplinary action, including compensating clients for loss, the imposition of fines or the revocation of the authorization to operate as
well as damage to our reputation. :

In addition, we have significant operations throughout the world, which further subject us to applicable laws and regulations of countries
outside the United States and the United Kingdom. Changes in legislation or regulations and actions by regulators in particular countries,
including changes in administration and enforcement policies, could require operational improvements or modifications, which may result in
higher costs or hinder our ability to operate our business in those countries.

If we are unable to adapt our services to applicable laws and regulations, our ability to provide effective services in these areas will be
substantially diminished.

Our business could be negatively affected by currently proposed or future legislative or regulatory activity cohcerning coinpensation
consultants. ' '

Recent legislative and regulatory activity in the United States has focused on the independence of compensation consultants retained to provide
advice to compensation committees of publicly traded companies. On December 16, 2009, the SEC published final rules, which became
effective in February 2010, with respect to issuer disclosures on compensation consultants. Among other requirements, the rules require
disclosure of fees paid to compensation consultants as well as a description of any additional services provided to the issuer by the
compensation consuitant and its affiliates and the aggregate fees paid for such services. Due in part to this regulation and continued legislative
activity, prior to the Merger, some clients of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt and, after the Merger, some clients of Towers Watson decided to
terminate their relationships with the respective company (either with respect to compensation consulting services or with respect to other
consulting services) to avoid perceived or potential conflicts of interest.

In addition, on July 21, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, which
requires the SEC to issue rules directing national securities exchanges and associations to require the compensation committee of a listed
company to consider the independence of an advisor when selecting a compensation consultant. The SEC is required to identify factors
affecting independence. : : : : :
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On March 30, 2011, the SEC issued proposed rules to implement these provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act pertaining to the role of, and certain
disclosure relating to, compensation consultants. The proposed rules would require the national security exchanges to adopt listing standards
requiring a company’s compensation committee to consider certain independence factors, including whether the compensation consultant’s
firm provides other services to the company, before selecting a compensation consultant. The proposed rules would. also require a company to
disclose in its proxy statement whether its compensation committee has retained or obtained the advice of a compensation consultant, whether
the work of the compensation consultant raised any conflicts of interest, and if so, the nature of the conflicts and how any such conflicts are
being addressed. :

The proposed rules do not require that the selected compensation consultant be independent. But if the proposed rules are’ adopted substantially
in their current form and companies” compensation committees engage compensation consultants that do not perform any other services for the
company, then this could cause additional clients to terminate their relationships with Towers Watson (either with respect to compensation
consulting services or with respect to other consulting services) to avoid perceived or potential conflicts of interest. If this happens, the future
termination of such relationships could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In additiQn, due in part to such regulation and continied legislative activity, some former Towers Perrin, Watson Wyatt or Towers Watson
consultants terminated their relationships with us, and many have begun to compéte with us or have indicated that they intend to compete with
us. Such talent migration, and any future such talent migration, could have a miatérial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and

results of operations.

Competition could result in loss of our market share and reduced profitability.

The markets for our principal services are highly competitive. Our competitors include other human capital and risk management consulting
and actuarial firms, as well as the human capital and risk management divisions of diversified professional services, insuranee, brokerage and
accounting firms. Some of our competitors have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us, which could enhance their ability
to finance acquisitions, fund internal growth and respond more quickly to professional and technological changes. Some competitors have or
may develop a lower cost structure. New competitors or alliances among competitors could emerge, creating additional competition and
gaining significant market share, resulting in a loss of ‘business for us and a corresponding decline in revenues and profit margin. In order to
respond to increased competition and pricing pressure, we may have to lower our prices, which would also have an adverse effect on our
revenues and profit margin. ' ' e

Consolidation in the industries that we serve could materially adversely affect our business.

Companies in the industries that we serve may seek to achieve economies of scale and other synergies by combining with or acquiring:other
companies. If two or more of our clients merge or consolidate and combine their operations, we may experience a decrease in the amount of
services we perform for these clients. If one of our clients merges or consolidates with a company that relies on another provider for its
services, we may lose work from that client or lose the opportunity to gain additional work. Thé iricreased market power of larger companies
could also increase pricing and competitive pressures on us. Any of these possible results of industry consolidation could materially adversely’
affect our revenues and profits. Our reinsurance brokerage business is especially susceptible to this risk given the limited number of insurance -

companies seeking reinsurance and reinsurance providers in the marketplace.

We are subject to risks of doing business internationally.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, 51% of our revenue relates to business located outside the United States. As a result,’a signiﬁcant portion of

our business operations is subject to foreign financial, tax and business risks, which could arise in the event Gf:
¢ Currency exchange rate fluctuations;
*  Unexpected increases in taxes or changes in U.S. or foreign tax laws;

*  Compliance with a variety of international laws and regulations, such as data privacy, employment regulations, trade barriers and
restrictions on the impoxt and export of technologies, as well as U.S. laws affecting the activities of U.S. companies abroad, including
the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 and sanctions programs administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury Office of -
Foreign Assets Control, and similar foreign laws such as the U.K. Bribery Act;

* Absence in some jurisdictions of effective laws to protect our intellectual property rights;

¢ New regulatory requirements or changes in policies and local laws that materially affect the demand for our services or directly affect
our foreign operations; o : : r .

¢ Local economic and political conditions, including unusual, severe, or protracted recessions in foreign economies and inflation risk;

*  The length of payment cycles and potential difficulties in collecting accounts receivable, particularly in light of the number of
insolvencies in the current economic environment and the numerous bankruptcy laws to which they are subject;

*  Unusual and unexpected monetary exchange controls, price controls or restrictions on transfers of cash; or
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* Civil disturbance, terrorism or other catastrophic events that reduce business activity, in other parts of the world.

These factors may lead to decreased revenues or profits and therefore may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition-
and results of operations.

Our inability to successfully recover should we experience a disaster or other business continuity problem could cause material financial
loss, loss of human capital, regulatory actions, reputational harm or legal liability.

Should we experience a disaster or other business continuity problem, such as an earthquake, hurricane, terrorist attack, pandemic, security
breach, power loss, telecommunications failure or other natural or man-made disaster, our continued success will depend, in part, on the
availability of our personnel, our office facilities, and the proper functioning of our computer, telecommunication and other related systems and
operations. In such an event, we could experience near-term operational challenges with regard to particular areas of our operations.

In particular, our ability to recover from any disaster or other business continuity problem will depend on our ability to protect our technology
infrastructure against damage from business continuity events that could have a significant disruptive effect on our operations. We could
potentially lose client data or experience material adverse interruptions to our operations or delivery of services to our clients in a disaster.

We will continue to regularly assess and take steps to improve upon our business continuity plans. However, a disaster on a significant scale or
affecting certain of our key operating areas within or across regions, or our inability to successfully recover should we experience a disaster or
other business continuity problem, could materially interrupt our business operations and cause material financial loss, loss of human capital,
regulatory actions, reputational harm, damaged client relationships or legal liability. :

Demand for our services could decrease for various reasons, including a general economic downturn, a decline in a client’s or an
industry’s financial condition or prospects, or a decline in defined benefit pension plans that could materially adversely affect our results of
operations. )

We can give no assurance that the demand for our services will grow or that we will compete successfully with our existing competitors, new
competitors or our clients’ internal capabilities. Client demand for our services may change based on the clients’ needs and financial
conditions. ’

Our results of operations are affected directly by the level of business activity of our clients, which in turn are affected by the level of economic
activity in the industries and markets that they serve. Economic.slowdowns in some markets, particularly in the United States, have caused and
may continue to cause reduction in discretionary spending by our clients, result in longer client payment terms, an increase in late payments by
clients and an increase in uncollectible accounts receivable, each of which ‘may reduce the demand for our services, increase price competition
and adversely impact our growth, profit margins and liquidity. If our clients enter bankruptcy or liquidate their operations (which has already
occurred with respect to some of our current clients), our revenues could be materially adversely affected. '

In addition, the demand for many of our core benefit services, including compliance-related services, is affected by government regulation and
taxation of employee benefit plans. Significant changes in tax or social welfare policy or other regulations could lead some employers to
discontinue their employee benefit plans, including defined benefit pension plans, thereby reducing the demand for our services. A
simplification of regulations or tax policy also could reduce the need for our services.

The unaudited pro forma financial data included in this Annual Report are illustrative and the actual finanéial condition and results of
operations of Towers Watson may differ materially from the historical Jfinancial statements of Watson Wyatt and the unaudited pro forma
financial data included in this Annual Report. =~ - ) R :

The unaudited pro forma financial data included in this Annual Report are presented solely for illustrative purposes and are not necessarily
indicative of what our results of operations would have been had the Merger been completed on the date indicated. The pro forma financial data
reflect adjustments that were developed using preliminary estimates based on currently available information and certain assumptions, and may
be revised as additional information becomes available. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial data included in this Annual Report are
illustrative only. The results of operations of Towers Watson will differ materially from the historical financial statements of Watson Wyatt and
may also differ materially from the unaudited pro forma financial data included in this Annual Report.

17



Our growth strategy depends, in part, on our ability to make acquisitions, and if we'have__difﬁculty in acquiring, overpay Jor, or are unable
to acquire other businesses, our business may be materially adversely affected. ‘ ‘ ; :

Our growth depends in part on our ability to make acquisitions. We may not be successful in identifying appropriate acquisition candidates or
consummating acquisitions on terms acceptable or favorable to us, on the proposed timetables, or at all. We also face additional risks related to
acquisitions such as our recent acquisitions of Aliquant and EMB, including that we could overpay for acquired businesses and that any '
acquired business could significantly underperform relative to our expectations. If we are unable to identify and successfully make acquisitions,
our business could be materially adversely affected. : S ' -

Weface risks when we acquire businesses, and may have difficulty integrating or managing acquired businesses, whick may harm our
business, financial condition, results of operations or reputation. ' : : s :

We may acquire other companies in the future. We cannot be certain that our acquisitions will be accretive to earnings or otherwise meet our
operational or strategic expectations. Acquisitions involve special risks, including the potential assumption of unanticipated liabilities and

‘contingencies and difficulties in integrating acquired businesses, and acquired businesses may not achieve the levels of revenue, profit or -

productivity we anticipate or otherwise perform as we expect. In addition, if the operating performance of an acquired business deteriorates
significantly, we may need to write down the value of the goodwill and other acquisition-related intangible assets recorded on our balance
sheet. ‘ o ’ ' '

We may be unable to effectively integrate an acquired business, such as the recently acquired Aliquant and EMB businesses, into our’
organization, and may not succeed in managing such acquired businesses or the larger company that results from such acquisitions. The
process of integration of an acquired business may subject us to a number of risks, including:

* Diversion of managemerit attention;

* Amortization of intangible assets, adversely affecting our reported results of operations;

. Inability to retain the management, key personnel and other employees of the acquired business;

* Inability to establish uniform standards, controls, systems, procedures and policies;

¢ Inability to retain the acquired company’s clients; . .

*  Exposure to legal claims for activities of the acquired business prior to acquisition; and

. InCuxrénce of additional expenses in connection with the integration process. - E » -
If acquisitions are not successfuily integrated, our business, financial condition and results of operations coulﬂ be materially adversely affected,
as well as our professional reputation.. o = ‘ - o
Damage to our reputation-could damage our businesses.

Maintaining 2 positive reputation is critical to our ability to attract and maintain relationships with clients and associates. Damage to our
reputation could therefore cause significant harm to our business and prospects. Harm to our reputation can arise from numerous sources,
including, among others, employee misconduct, litigation or regulatory action, failure to deliver minimum standards of service and quality,
compliance failures and unethical behavior. Negative publicity regarding us, whether or not true, may also result in harm to our prospects.

We could also suffer significant reputational harm if we fail to properly.identify and manage potential conflicts of interest. The failure or
perceived failure to adequately address conflicts of interest could affect the willingness of clients to deal with us, or give rise to litigation or
enforcement actions. There can be no assurance that conflicts of interest will not arise in the future that could cause material harm to us.

We could be subject to claims arising from our work, as well as government inquiries and investigdtions, Which could materially adversely
affect our reputation, business and financial condition.

Professional services providers, including those in the human capital and risk management sectors such as Towers Watson, depend in large part
on their relationships with clients and their reputation for high-quality services. Clients that may become dissatisfied with our services may
terminate their business relationships with us and clients and third parties that claim they suffered damages caused by our services may bring
lawsuits against us. The nature of our work, particularly our actuarial services, necessarily involves the use of assumptions and the preparation
of estimates relating to future and contingent events, the actual outcome of which we cannot know in advance. Our actuarial services also rely
on substantial amounts of data provided by clients, the accuracy and quality of which we cannot ensure. In addition, we could make
computational, software programming or data management errors in connection with the services we provide to clients.
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Clients may seek to hold us responsible for the financial consequences of variances between assumptions and estimates and actual outcomes or
for errors. For example, clients may make: ) : B ‘

*  Claims that actuarial assumptions were unreasonable or that there were computational errors leading to pension plan underfunding or
under-reserving for insurance claim liabilities; - . : ' ‘

*  Claims of failure to review adequately or detect deficiencies in data, which-could lead to an underestimation of pensjon plan or
insurance claim liabilities; and

*  Claims that employee benefit plan documents were misinterpréted or plan amendments were faulty, leading to unintended plan-
benefits or overpayments to beneficiaries. . :

Given that we frequently work with large pension funds and ihsurance companies, relatively small percentage errors or variances can create
significant financial variances and result in significant claims for unintended or unfunded liabilities. The risks from such variances or errors
could be aggravated in an environment of declining pension fund asset values and insurance company capital levels. In almost all cases, our
exposure to liability with respect to a particular engagement is substantially greater than the revenue opportunity that the engagement generates
for us. . ‘

In the case of liability for pension plan actuarial errdrs, a client’s claims might focus on the client’s alleged reliance that actuarial assumptions
were reasonable and, based on such reliance, thg: client made benefit commitments the client may later claim are not affordable or funding
decisions that result in plan underfunding if and when actual outcomes vary from actuarial assumptions. '

Lawsuits arising out of any of our services could adversely affect our financial performance and financial condition and could result in
increased insurance costs or a reduction in the amount of available insurance coverage. In addition to defense costs and liability exposure,
which may be significant, claims may produce negative publicity that could hurt our reputation and business and could require substantial
amounts of management attention, which could affect management’s focus on operations.

Finally, we may be subject to inquiries and investigations by federal, state or other governmental agencies regarding aspects of our clients’
businesses or our own businesses, especially regulated businesses such as our broker-dealer and investment advisory services. Such inquiries or
investigations may consume significant management time and result in regulatory sanctions, fines or other actions as well as significant legal
fees, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and liquidity. - :

We advise or act on behalf of clients regarding investments whose results are not guarantéed, and clients that experience investment return
shortfalls may assert claims against us. - , , o ' .

We provide advice on both asset allocation and selection of investment managers. For some clients, we are responsible for making decisions on
both these matters, or we may serve in a fiduciary capacity. Asset classes may experience poor absolute performance, and investment managers
may underperform their benchmarks; in both cases the investment return shortfall can be significant. Clients experiencing this
underperformance may assert claims against us, and such claims may be for significant amounts. Defending against these claims can involve
potentially significant costs, including legal defense costs. Our ability to limit our potential liability may be limited in certain jurisdictions or in
connection with claims involving breaches of fiduciary duties or other alleged errors or omissions:

Our investment activities may require specialized operational conipetencies, and if we fail to properly execute our role in cash and
investment management, our clients or third parties may assert claims against us.

For certain clients, we are responsible for some portions of cash and investment management, including rebalancing of investment portfolios
and guidance to third parties on structure of derivatives and securities transactions. Our failure to properly execute our role can cause monetary
damage to our clients or such third parties for which we might be found liable, and such claims may be for significant amounts. Defending
against these claims can involve potentially significant costs, including legal defense costs. Our ability to limit our potential liability may be
constrained in certain jurisdictions. : '

Towers Watson may be engaged in providing services outside the core hdman capital and risk management business currenily conducted by
Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt, which may carry greater risk of liability.

We continue to grow the business of providing professional services to institutional investors and financial services.companies. The risk of
claims from these lines of business may be greater than from our core human capital and risk management business, and such claims may be
for significant amounts. For example, we may assist a pension plan to hedge its exposure to changes in interest rates. If the hedge does not
perform as expected, we could be exposed to claims. Contractual provisions intended to mitigate risk may not be enforceable.
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Our business faces rapid technological change, and our fﬁilure to respond to this change quickly could materially adversely affect our
business.

To remain competitive in the business lines in which we engage, we have to identify and offer the most current technologies and
methodologies. In some cases, significant technology choices and investments are required. If we do not respond correctly, quickly or in a cost-
effective manner, our business and results of operations might be harmed.

The effort to gain technological expertise and develop new technologies in our business may require us to incur significant expenses and, in
some cases, to implement these new technologies globally, particularly with respect to the integration activities that are ongoing in connection
with the Merger. If we cannot offer new technologies as quickly or effectively as our competitors, we could lose market share. We also could
lose market share if our competitors develop more cost-effective technologies than we will offer or develop.

Limited protection of our intellectual property could harm our business, and we face the risk that our services or products may infringe
upon the intellectual property rights of others. '

We cannot guarantee that trade secret, trademark and copyright law protections are adequate to deter misappropriation of our intellectual
property (including our software, which may become an increasingly important part of our business). Existing laws of some countries in which
we provide services or products may offer only limited protection of our intellectual property rights. Redressing infringements may consume
significant management time and financial resources. Also, we may be unable to detect the unauthorized use of our intellectual property and
take the necessary steps to enforce our rights, which may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of
operations. We cannot be sure that our services and products, or the products of others that we offer to our clients, do not infringe on the
intellectual property rights of third parties, and we may have infringement claims asserted against us or our clients. These claims may harm our
reputation, result in financial liability and prevent us from offering some services or products.

We could have liability or our reputation could be damaged if we do not protect client data or information systems or if our information
systems are breached.

We depend on information technology networks and systems to process, transmit and store electronic information and to communicate among
our locations around the world and with our alliance partners and clients. Security breaches could lead to shutdowns or disruptions of our
systems and potential unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. We also are required at times to manage, utilize and store sensitive
or confidential client or employee data. As a result, we are subject to numerous U.S. and foreign jurisdiction laws and regulations designed to
protect this information, such as the European Union-Directive on Data Protection and various U.S. federal and state laws governing the
protection of health or other individually identifiable information. If any person, including any of our associates, fails to comply with,
disregards or intentionally breaches our established controls with respect to such data or otherwise mismanages or misappropriates that data,
we could be subject to monetary damages, fines or criminal prosecution. Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential client or
employee data, whether through systems failure, accident, employee negligence, fraud or misappropriation, could damage our reputation and
cause us to lose clients. Similarly, unauthorized access to or through our information systems or those we develop for our clients, whether by
our associates or third parties, could result in significant additional expenses (including expenses relating to notification of data security
breaches and costs of credit monitoring services), negative publicity, legal liability and damage to our reputation, as well as require substantial
resources and effort of management, thereby diverting management’s focus and resources from business operations.

Insurance may become more difficult or expensive to obtain.

The availability, terms and price of insurance are subject to many variables, including general insurance market conditions, loss experience in
related industries and in the actuarial and benefits consulting industry, and the specific claims experience of an individual firm. We are subject
to various regulatory requirements relating to insurance as well as client requirements. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain
insurance at cost-effective rates or with reasonable retentions. Increases in the cost of insurance could affect our profitability and the
unavailability of insurance to cover certain risks could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or our ability to transact
business in certain geographic areas, particularly in any specific period. ’

Towers Watson and its subsidiaries could encounter significant obstacles in securing adequate insurance coverage for errors and omissions
liability risks on favorable or acceptable terms. : :

Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt each historically obtained primary insurance for errors and omissions ]iarbilitybrisks from a Vermont-
regulated group captive insurance company known as Professional Consultants Insurance Company, Inc. (which we refer to as “PCIC”). The
stockholders and insureds of PCIC were legacy Towers Perrin, legacy Watson Wyatt and Milliman, Inc. (“Milliman™).
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On January 1, 2010, the effective date of the Merger of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt, Towers Watson became the owner of 72.8% of the
stock of PCIC. . . ; : :

Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt provided PCIC with notice of non-renewal of the respective PCIC policies of insurance that expired at
12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2010. PCIC provided a notice of non-renewal to Milliman and will not issue a policy of insurance to Milliman for the
policy period starting July 1, 2010 or thereafter. PCIC will continue to operate in order to pay losses arising from claims reported by its
insureds during the periods covered by previously issued policies of insurance.

Since July 1, 2010, we have obtained our primary insurance for errors and omissions liability risks from a Vermont-regulated wholly owned
captive insurance company known as Stone Mountain Insurance Company (“Stone Mountain”). Stone Mountain has secured reinsurance for a
portion of the Towers Watson risks it underwrites. Towers Watson has secured excess errors and omissions liability coverage above the
coverage provided by Stone Mountain in amounts we consider to be prudent. Stone Mountain has.issued a policy of insurance to us that is
substantially similar in form to the policy of insurance issued by PCIC.

The combination of the formation of Stone Mountain, which essentially resuits in self-insurance by us of our primary errors and omissions risk,
and our controlling ownership interest in PCIC and the accompanying requirement that we consolidate PCIC’s financial results into our
financial results is likely to result in increased earnings volatility for us. In addition, the inability of Stone Mountain to secure reinsurance or
our inability to secure excess errors and omissions professional liability coverage in the future could have a material adverse impact on our
financial condition or our ability to. transact business in certain geographic areas, particularly in any specific period.

We have material pension liabilities that can fluctuate significantly.

Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt have material pension liabilities, which were assumed by us on January 1, 2010. The combined projected
benefit obligation for legacy Towers Perrin and legacy Watson Wyatt pension and other postretirement benefit plans at June 30, 2011 was

$3.6 billion, of which $876.1 million represented unfunded pension and postretirement liabilities. Movements in the interest rate environment,
inflation or changes in other assumptions that are used for the estimates of our benefit obligations and other factors could have a material effect
on the level of liabilities in these plans at any given time. These pension plans have minimum funding requirements that may require material
amounts of periodic additional funding. Cash required to fund pension plans may have to be diverted from other corporate initiatives.

Towers Perrin and Towers Watson are defendants in several lawsuits commenced by former Towers Peri'_in shareholders.

On November 5, 2009, certain former Towers Perrin shareholders commenced a legal proceedirig in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the “Dugan Action”) against Towers Perrin, members of its board of directors, and certain members of senjor
management. Plaintiffs are former members of Towers Perrin’s senior management who left Towers Perrin at various times between 1995 and
2000. They seek to represent a class of former Towers Perrin shareholders who separated from service on or after January 1, 1971, and who
meet certain other specified criteria. Although the complaint in the Dugan Action does not contain a quantification of the damages sought, on
December 9, 2009, plaintiffs made a settlement demand on Towers Perrin of $800 million to settle the action on behalf of the proposed class.

On December 17, 2009, four other former Towers Perrin shareholders, all of whom voluntarily left Towers Perrin in May or June 2005 and all
of whom are excluded from the proposed class in the Dugan Action, commenced a separate legal proceeding (the “Allen Action™) in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania alleging the same claims in a form similar to those alleged in the Dugan Action.
These plaintiffs are proceeding in their individual capacities and do not seek to represent a proposed class.

On January 15, 2010, another former Towers Perrin shareholder who separated from service in March 2005 when Towers Perrin and Electronic
Data Systems, Inc. launched a joint venture that led to the creation of a corporate entity known as Excelleratt HRO (“eHRO”), commenced a
separate legal proceeding (the “Pao Action”) in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, also alleging the same
claims in a form similar to those alleged in the Dugan Action. The plaintiff in this action, in which Towers Watson also is named as a
defendant, seeks to represent a class of former Towers Perrin shareholders who separated from service in connection with the formation of
eHRO and who are excluded from the proposed class in the Dugan Action. .

The complaints assert claims for breach of contract, breach of express trust, breach of fiduciary duty, promissory estoppel, quasi-contract/unjust
enrichment, and constructive trust, and seek equitable relief including an accounting, disgorgement, rescission and/or restitution, and the
imposition of a constructive trust. On January 20, 2010, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania consolidated
the three actions for all purposes. On February 22, 2010, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the complaints in their entireties. By order dated
September 30, 2010, the court granted the motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ claim for a constructive trust and denied the motion with respect to all
other claims alleged. Pursuant to the court’s September 30 order, o :
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defendants also filed answers to plaintiffs’ complaints on October 22, 2010. The paﬁies are currently engaged in fact discovery. We believe the
claims are without merit and intend to continue to vigorously defend against the actions. We are likely to incur significant costs defending -
against these claims. The outcome of these legal proceedings is inherently uncertain and could be unfavorable to us.

Our reinsurance brokerage business could be subject to claims arising from its work, which could materially adversely affect our reputation
and business. : ' ‘

Our reinsurance brokerage business may be subject to claims brought against it by clients or third parties. Clients are likely to assert claims if
they fail to make full recoveries in respect of their own claims. If reinsurers with whom we place business for our clients become insolvent or -
otherwise fail to make claims payments, this may also result in claims against us.

Our reinsurance business assists its clients in placing reinsurance and handling related claims, which could involve substantial amounts of
money. If our work results in claims, claimants may seek large damage awards and defending these claims can involve potentially significant
costs and may not be successful. Claims could, by way of example, arise as a result of our reinsurance brokers failing to:

¢ Place the reinsurance coverage requested by the client;
* Report claims on a timely basis or as required by the reinsurance contract or program;
* Communicate complete and accurate information to reinsurers relating to the risks being reinsured; or

*  Appropriately model or advise our clients in relation to the extent and scope of reinsurance coverage that is advisable for a client’s
needs.

Moreover, Towers Perrin’s reinsurance brokerage contracts generally do not limit the maximum liability to which Towers Perrin, as a
subsidiary of Towers Watson, may be exposed for claims involving alleged errors or omissions.

Reinsurance brokerage revenue is influenced by factors that are beyond our control, and volatility or declines in premiums or other trends
in the insurance and reinsurance markets could significantly undermine the profitability of our reinsurance brokerage business.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, we derived approximately five percent of our consolidated revenue from our reinsurance brokerage business,
which in turn derives a majority of its revenue from commissions. Revenue earned in our capacity as a reinsurance broker is based in large part
on the rates that the global reinsurance marketplace prices for risks. For example, we do not determine reinsurance premiums on which ’
commissions are generally based. : :

Premiums are cyclical in nature and may vary widely based ori market conditions. When premium rates decline, the commissions and fees
earned for placing certain reinsurance contracts and programs also tend to decrease. When premium rates rise, we may not be able to earn
increased revenue from providing brokerage services because clients may purchase less reinsurance, there may be less reinsurance capacity
available, or clients may negotiate a reduction to the compensation rate or a reduced fee for our services. '

To the extent our clients are or become materially adversely affected by declining business conditions in the current économic environment,
they may choose to limit their purchases of insurance and reinsurance coverage, as applicable, which would limit our ability to generate
commission revenue. Clients also may decide not to utilize our risk management services, which would limit our ability to generate fee
revenue. ' ' o

We may not be able to obtain Jfinancing on favorable terms or at all.

The maintenance and growth of our business depends on our access to capital, which will depend in large part on cash flow generated by our
business and the availability of equity and debt financing. There can be no assurance that our operations will generate sufficient positive cash
flow to finance all of our capital needs or that we will be able to obtain equity or debt financing on favorable terms or at all.

Our revolving credit facility contains a number of restrictive covenants that restrict our operations.

The Towers Watson $500 million revolving credit facility contains a number of customary restrictive covenants imposing operating and
financial restrictions on Towers Watson, including restrictions that limit our ability to engage in acts that may be in our long-term best
interests. These covenants include, among others, limitations (and in some cases, prohibitions) that, directly or indirectly, restrict our ability to:

* Incur liens or additional indebtedness (including guarantees or contingent obligations);

* Engage in mergers and other fundamental changes;
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* Sell or otherwise dispose of property or assets;
. Pay diVidends and other distributions; and
. Change the nature of our business.
The credit agreement also contains fiﬂancial covenants that limit our interest expehse and total debt relative to. EBITDA.

The operating restrictions and financial covenants in our credit agreement do, and any future financing agreements may, limit our ability to
finance future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. Our ability to comply with any financial covenants could be
materially affected by events beyond our control, and there can be no assurance that we will satisfy any such requirements. If we fail to comply
with these covenants, we may need to seek waivers or amendments of such covenants, seek alternative or additional sources of financing or
reduce our expenditures. We may be unable to obtain such waivers, amendments or alternative or additional financing at all, or on terms -
favorable to us. : ' o '

The credit agreement specifies several events of default, including non-payment, certain cross-defaults, certain bankruptcy events, covenant or
representation breaches and certain changes in control. If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the credit agreement are expected to be
able to elect to declare all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued interest and other fees, to be immediately due and payable. We may
not be able to repay all amounts due under the credit agreement in the event these amounts are declared due upon an event of default.

We rely on third parties to provide services and their failure to perform the services could harm our business.

As part of providing services to clients and managing our business, we rely on a number of third-party service providers. Our ability to perform
effectively depends in part on the ability of these service providers to meet their obligations, as well as on our effective oversight of their
performance. The quality of our services could suffer or we could be required to incur unanticipated costs if our third-party service providers
do not perform as expected or their services are disrupted. This could have a material adverse effect on our business.and results of operations.

We are a holding company and, therefore, may not be able to receive dividends or other distributions in needed amounts from our
subsidiaries.

The Company is organized as a holding company, a legal entity separate and distinct from our operating subsidiaries. As a holding company
without significant operations of our own, we are dependent upon dividends and other payments from our operating subsidiaries to meet our
obligations for paying principal and interest on outstanding debt obligations, for paying dividends to stockholders and for corporate expenses.
In the event our operating subsidiaries are unable to pay dividends and other payments to the Company, we may not be able to service debt, pay
obligations or pay dividends on common stock.

Further, the Company derives a significant portion of its revenue and operating profit from operating subsidiaries located outside the U.S. Since
the majority of financing obligations as well as dividends to stockholders are made from the U.S., it is important to be able to access cash
generated outside the U.S. Funds from the Company’s operating subsidiaries outside of the U.S. are periodically repatriated to the U.S. via
shareholder distributions and repayment of intercompany financing. A number of factors may arise that conld limit our ability to repatriate
funds or make repatriation cost prohibitive, including, but not limited to, foreign exchange rates and tax-related costs.

In the event we are unable to generate cash from our operating subsidiaries for any of the reasons discussed above, our overall liquidity could
deteriorate. ’

Changes in our accounting estimates and assumptions could negatively affect our financial position and results of operations.

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These accounting principles require us to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial
statements. We are also required to make certain judgments that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during each reporting
period. We periodically evaluate our estimates and assumptions including those relating to restructuring, pensions, goodwill and other
intangible assets, contingencies, share-based payments and income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and various
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable based on specific circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates, and changes in
accounting standards could have an adverse impact on our future financial position and results of operations.

Our accounting for our long-term outsourcing contracts requires using estimates and projections that may change over time. These
changes may have a significant or adverse effect on our reported results of operations or financial condition.

Projecting contract profitability on our long-term outsourcing contracts requires us to make assumptions and estimates of future contract
results. All estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to change. In an effort to maintain appropriate estimates, we review each of our long-
term outsourcing contracts, the related contract reserves and intangible assets on a regular basis. If we determine.that
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we need to change our estimates for a contract, we will change the estimates in the period in which the determination is made. These
assumptions and estimates involve the exercise of judgment and discretion, which may also evolve over time in light of operational experience,
regulatory direction, developments in accounting principles and other factors. Further, changes in assumptions, estimates or developments in
the business or the application of accounting principles related to long-term outsourcing contracts may change our initial estimates of future
contract results. Application of, and changes in, assumptions, estimates and policies may adversely affect our financial results.

The stock price of Class A common stock may be volatile.

The stock price of the Class A common stock may in the future be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations. In addition, the trading volume of
the Class A common stock may in the future fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. Some of the factors that could cause
fluctuations in the stock price or trading volume of the Class A ‘common stock include: :

*  General market and economic conditions, including market conditions in the human capital and risk and financial management
consulting industries and regulatory developments in the United States, foreign countries or both;

.*  Actual or expected variations in our quarterly results of operations and in the quarterly results of operations of companies perceived to
be similar to us; . . . . . .

. Differences between actual results of operations and those expected by investors and analysts;
*  Changes in recommendations by securities analysts;
** - Operations and stock performance of competitors; -
*  Accounting charges, including chargés relating to the impairment of goodwil] or 6ther intangible assets;
* Significant acquisitions, dispositions or strategic alliances by vus or by competitors;
*  Sales of the Class A common stock, including sales by our directors and officers or significant investors;
* Incurrence of additional debt; o
* Dilutive issuance of _equity;
¢ Recruitment ér departure of key personnel;’
¢ Loss or gain of key clients;. '
* Litigation involving us, our general industry or both; and
e Changes in reserves for professional liability claims.

There can be no assurance that the stock price of the Class A common stock will not fluctuate or decline significantly in the future. In addition,
the stock market in general can experience considerable price and volume fluctuations that may be unrelated to our performance.

Shares of Towers Watson common stock eliéiblé for public sale could adversely affect the stock price.

On January 1, 2010, the then-former Towers Perrin security holders received, in the aggregate, 44% of Towers Watson’s voting common stock
then outstanding. Those shares are subject to, various restrictions. For example, shares of Class B common stock issued to the then-former
Towers Perrin security holders automatically convert into freely tradable Class A common stock in equal annual installments over four years.
The first conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock occurred on January 1, 2011. '

In addition, transfer restrictions on restricted shares of Class A common stock received by a holder of Towers Perrin restricted stock units lapse
over the course of a three-year vesting schedule (or such other vesting schedule as may be set forth in the holder’s Towers Perrin restricted
stock unit award agreement). The first tranche of restricted stock units received by legacy Towers Perrin associates vested-on January 1, 2011.
As of August 17, 2011 there were 55,085,090 outstanding shares of Class A common stock and 2,415,481 of Restricted Class A common
stock; 5,547,733 outstanding shares of Class,B-2 common stock; 5,661,591 outstanding shares of Class B-3-common stock; and 5,387,241
outstanding shares of Class B-4 common stock.

In addition, pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has the discretion to accelerate the conversion of any number of
“shares of Class B common stock into shares of freely tradable Class A common stock. '

The sales or potential sales of a substantial number of shares of Class A common stock in the public market after the Class B common stock
automatically converts or shares are converted by our Board of Directors, or shares of restricted Class A common stock vest, could depress the
market price of Class A common stock at such-time and could then impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional securities.

We will only pay dividends if and when declared by our board of directors.

Any determination to pay dividends in the future is at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon our results of operations,
financial condition, contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable law, rule or regulation, business and
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investment strategy, and other factors that our board of directors deems relevant. If we do not pay dividends, then the return on an investment
in our common stock will depend entirely upon any future appreciation in its stock price. There is no guarantee that our common stock will -
appreciate in value or maintain its value. :

We have various mechanisms in place that could prevent a change in control that a stockholder might fdvor.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that might discourage, delay or prevent a change in control that a stockholder
might favor. Our certificate of incorporation or bylaws: ‘ ' :

*.  Authorize the issuance of preferred stock without fixed characteristics, which could be issued by our board of directors pursuant to a
stockholder rights plan and deter a takeover attempt;

e Provide that only the Chief Executive Officer, President or our board of directors may call a specialvmeeting of stockholders;

*  Limit business at special stockholder meetings to such business as is brought before the meeting by or at the direction of our board of
directors;

*  Prohibit stockholder action by written consent, and require all stockholder actions to be taken at an annual or. special meeting of the "
stockholders;

*  Provide our board of directors with exclusive power to change the number of directors;

«  Provide that all vacancies on our board of directors, including new directorshi;:')s, may only»be filled by a resolution adopted by a
majority of the directors then in office; ’

* Donot bpt out of Section 203 of thg Delaware Gener_zil Corporation Lhw_, which prdhibits business combinations between a
corporation and any interested stockholder for a period of three years following the time that such stockholder became an interested
stockholder; ) g Co . : o ’

* Require a sﬁpermajority vote for the stockholders to amend the bylaws; and

*  Prohibit any stockholder from presenting a proposal or diréctor nomination at an annual stockholders’ meeting unless such stockholder
provides us with sufficient advance notice.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

As of June 30, 2011, we operated offices in more than 100 cities and 38 countries thfoughout North America, Europe, Asia-Pacific and Latin
America. Operations of each of our segments are carried out in leased offices under operating leases that typically do not exceed 10 years in
length. We do not anticipate difficulty in meeting our space needs at lease expiration. .

The fixed assets owned by us represented approximately five percent of total assets as of June 30,2011, and consisted primarily of computer
equipment and software; office furniture and leaséhold improvements. : o :
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits, arbitrations or mediations that arise in the ordinary course of business. The disclosure
called for by Item 3 regarding our legal proceedings is incorporated by reference herein from Note 11, “Debt, Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities”, of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending June 30, 2011.
Item 4. (Removed and Reserved).

Part I1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information
Towers Watson & Co. Class A common stock is currently traded on the New York Stock Exchange and NASDAQ under the symbol TW.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our Class A common stock since January 4
2010, the first trading day of the Class A common stock following consummation of the Merger.

3
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. . . ,’ . ng! ) Low
Fiscal Year2010° —~ -~ - = L : S r—

Third quarter (January 4, 2010 - March 31, 2010) $ 51.48 $ 4272
Fourth quarter (April 1, 2010 - June 30, 2010) ‘$ 50.00 $ 38.85
Fiscal Year 2011 e ' ‘
First quarter (July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010) L .$ 49.18 $ 38.35
Second quarter (October 1, 2010 - December 31, 2010) $ 53.47 - $ 48.96
Third quarter (January 1, 2011 - March 31, 2011) $ 58.80 $ 52.89
Fourth quarter (April 1, 2011 - June 30, 2011)- $ 65.71 $ 54.33
Fiscal Year 2012 S :
First quarter (July 1, 2011 - August 17, 2011) $ 66.38 $ 52.26

Holders

As of August 17, 2011, there were approximately 234 registered stockholders of our Class A common stock and 564 registered'stockﬁolders of
our Class B common stock. . : ' o : :

Dividends

Our board of directors has approved the payment of a quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.075 per share. Total dividends paid in fiscal
year 2011 and iri fiscal year 2010 were $21.6 million and $15.2 million, respectively. ' - - '

In August, 2011, our board of directors approved an increase in future quarterly cash dividends to $0.10 per share. Our next dividend is payable
in October, 201 to the stockholders of record at the close of our first quarter of fiscal 2012, on September 30,2011.

The continued payment of cash dividends in the future is at the discretion of our board of directors and depends on numerous factors, including,
without limitation, our net earnings, financial condition, availability of capital, debt covenant limitations and our other business needs,
including those of our subsidiaries and affiliates. Additionally, our credit facility requires us to observe certain covenants, including
requirements for minimum net worth, which potentially act to restrict dividends. :

Performance Graph

The graphs below depict total cumulative stockholder return on $100 invested on June 30, 2006 and January 4, 2010, respectively in (i) Watson
Wyatt Worldwide Inc. common stock and Towers Watson & Co. common stock, (ii) the New York Stock Exchange Composite Index; (iii) an
old peer group index comprised of the common stock of certain publicly traded companies within the management consulting services standard
industrial classification code having a reported market capitalization exceeding $150 million, and (iv) a new peer group index comprised of the
common stock of Aon Corporation and Marsh & McLennan Companies and certain publicly traded companies within the management
consulting services standard industrial classification code having a reported market capitalization exceeding $150 million. The graphs assume
reinvestment of dividends. N e :

Aon Corporation was added to the new peer group index due in part to Aon Corporation’s acquisition of Hewitt Associates Inc. and in part to
its subsidiary, Aon Benfield, being a direct competitor. Hewitt-Associates was previously included in the old peer:group index and has been -
eliminated from the old peer group index due to its acquisition by Aon Corporation. Marsh & McLennan Companies was added to the new peer
group index due to its subsidiaries, Mercer HR Consulting, Guy Carpenter and Oliver Wyman, being some of Towers Watson’s closest
competitors.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Watsan Wyatt Worddwide, Inc,, the NYSE Composite Index,
an Qld Pesr Group and a New Paer Group

—5— Wataon Wyatt Worldwidea, inc. = = - NYSE Composahte

---©-- Old Peer Group 36— Naw Paer Group

~$100 invested bn 6430106 In &dock 47 index, Incidng reinvastment of divikdands.

Facal year ending Oecerbar 31,

‘ , 6/06 6/07 __6/08 609 12/09
Watson Wyatt Worldwide, Inc. s 100.00 144.59 15240 108.84 - .. 13827
NYSE Composite ‘ - 110000 123.47 110.83 77.89  95.83
Old Peer Group - - - ©100.00. - 136.48 131.57 107.63 .. - 128.46.
New Peer Group _ 100.00 128.21 124.12 101.13 115.09
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Towers Watson & Co., the NYSE Compaosité [ndex,
an Chd Peer Groop and a New Peer Group

3180 .
40

$120

1410 B3040 L]
—&—Towers Watson & Co, = =y~ =~ NYSE Composite
=@ -- QidPesr Group —¥—— New Peer Group

200 invemsted on 1M stock or 123108 in index, mchuding reitneestrneo! of dividends,
Fecal year arving June 30

’ 1/4/10 6/30/10 6/30/11
Towers Watson & Co. . S R 100.00 7796 . 132.60
NYSE Composite » B o o » 100.00 91.14 120.29
Old Peer Group - T S 100.00 93.03 14218
New Peer Group . 100.00 96.64 143.04

The two Performance Graphs respectively show (i) legacy Watson Wyatt’s stock performance from June 30, 2006 through December 31, 2009
the day prior to the closing date of the Merger and (ii) Towers Watson’s stock performance from January 4, 2010 through June 30, 2011. As a
result of the Merger, as discussed previously, legacy Towers Perrin and legacy Watson Wyatt became wholly owned subsidiaries of Jupiter
Saturn Holding Company (subsequently renamed Towers Watson & Co.). Legacy Watson Wyatt no longer exists as a publicly traded entity
and ceased all trading of its common stock as of the close of business on December 31, 2009, the date preceding the Merger.

]

Companies included in the new peer group index in both graphs include: Accenture PLC, Aon Corporation, FTI Consulting Inc., Huron
Consulting Group Inc.; Marsh & McLennan Companies; Maximus Inc.; Navigant Consulting Inc.; and The Corporate Executive Board
Company.

Companies included in the old peer group index in both graphs include: Accenture PLC, FTI Consulting Inc., Huron Consulting Group Inc.;
Maximus Inc.; Navigant Consulting Inc.; and The Corporate Executive Board Company.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Towers Watson will periodically repurchase shares of common stock, one purpose of which is to offset potential dilution from shares issued in
connection with its benefit plans. During the third quarter of fiscal year 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up
to 750,000 shares of our Class A Common Stock. During the second quarter of fiscal year 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
the repurchase of up to $100 million of the Company’s Class A common stock. This repurchase is in
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addition to the ongoing stock repurchase program initiated by the Company to offset dilution from employee benefit plans in fiscal year 2010.
There are no expiration dates for either of these repurchase plans or programs. The table below presents specified information about our
Class A common stock repurchases in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 and our repurchase plans:

" Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of
Total Number ) Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
. of Shares  Average Price Paid Publicly Arnounced Plans Purchased Under the Plans
Period Purchased (a) per Share oerrograms or Programs (b)
April 1, 2011 through April 30, 2011 S : © 033,000 - o 05509 v 33,000 2,128,838
May 1, 2011 through May 31, 2011 36,000 59.48 36,000 2,092,838
June 1, 2011 through June 30,2011 -~ . . .. 334,489 61.93 334,489 1,758,349
403,489 403,489 1,758,349

(@) Of the 403,489 shares of Class A common stock repurchased in the foﬁrth quarter of fiscal year 2011, 54,000 shares were repurchased
under the plan approved by our Board of Directors during the third quarter of fiscal year 2010. The remaining 349,489 shares were
repurchased under the plan approved by our Board of Directors during the second quarter of fiscal year 2011.

(b) The maximum number of shares that may yet be purchased under our plans includes the remaining shares under our two stock repufchase
plans. An estimate of the maximum number of shares under the repurchase of up to $100 million of 1,521,838 shares was determined

using the closing price of our stock on June 30, 2011 of $65.71.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data of Towers Watson for each of the years in the five-year period ended

June 30, 2011. The selected consolidated financial data as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and for each of the three years in the period ended

June 30, 2011, were derived from the ai;'_dited consolidated financial statements of Towers Watson included in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. The selected consolidated financial data as of June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, and for each of the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, were
derived from audited consolidated financial statements of Towers Watson not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated
financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Statement of Operations Data:

(amounts are in thousands, except per share data)

RéVeriue 4 . L e wew

Costs of providing services:
Salaries and employee benefits .~ ..
Professional and subcontracted services =
Occupancy ~~ ~*"" o
General and administrative expenses
“Depreciation and-amortization:- .~ i
Transaction and integration expenses

Income from operations

Income/(Loss) from affiliates

Interest income

Interest expense

Other non-operating income

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income before non-controlling interests

Net income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling
interests

Net income attributable to controlling interests

Earnings per share: net income attributable to
controlling interests:
Basic B
Diluted

Dividends declared per share

Weighted average shares of common stock (000):

Basic
Diluted

Balance Sheet and Other Data:
(amounts are in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash

Working capital

Goodwill and Intangible assets
Total assets

Revolving credit facility
Dividends declared
Stockholders’ equity
Shares outstanding

(@ Includes the effect of the Merger as of January 1, 2010
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S Year Ended June 30, :

2011 » 2010 (a) 2009 2008 2007
$3,259,451 $2,387,829 $1,676,029 $1,760,055 $1,486,523
©.2043,063 . 1,540,417 1029299 . 1,052,992 .. 879,341
1246348 - 163848 119,323 ~ 138,983 116,527
144191 109,454 72,566 7 83,255 75,704
] \'281,576 , _220,937 172,010 " 185,624 178,411
CUI30575 0 e 101,084 - - 73,448 0 - 72,428 57.235
- 100,535 87,644 = — —
2,946,288 2,223,384 1,466,646 = 1,533,282 1,307,218
313,163 164,445 209,383 226,773 179,305
1,081 (1,274) 8,350 2,325 (5,500)
5,523 2,950 2,022 5,584 4,066
(12,475) - (7,508) (2,778) (5.977) (1,581)
19,349 11,304 4,926 464 178
326,641 169,917 221,903 229,169 176,468
129,916 50,907 75,276 73,470 60,193
196,725 119,010 146,627 155,699 116,275
2,288 (1,587) 169 258 —
$ 194437  $ 120,597 $ 146,458 $ 155,441 116,275
$ 2.62 $ 2.04 $ 343 $ 3.65 b 2.74
$ 2.62 $ 2.03 $ 342 $ 3.50 $ 2.60
$ 0.30 $ 0.30 $ 0.30 $ 0.30 $ 0.30
74,075 59,257 42,690 42,577 42,413
74,139 59,372 42,861 44,381 44,684

As of June 30,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 528,923 $ 435927 $ 209,832 $ 124,632 $ 248,186
153,154 164,539 — — —
472,074 - 479,521 231,938 172,241 326,354
2,638,496 2,400,782 728,987 - 870,943 594,651
- 5,098,950 4,573,617 1,626,319 1,715,976 1,529,709
— — — — 105,000
22,846 17,661 12,785 12,768 12,717
2,591,527 1,955,607 853,638 984,395 787,519
73,601 - 74,204 42,657 43,578 42,299



Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Executive Overview
General
We are a global consulting firm focusing on providing human capital and financial consulting services.

In the short term, our revenue is driven by many factors, including the general state of the global economy and the resulting level of
discretionary spending, the continuing regulatory compliance requirements of our clients, changes in investment markets, the ability of our
consultants to attract new clients or provide additional services to existing clients, the impact of new regulations in the legal and accounting
fields and the impact of our ongoing cost saving initiatives. In the long term, we expect that our financial results will depend in large part upon
how well we succeed in deepening our existing client relationships through thought leadership and a focus on developing cross-practice
solutions, actively pursuing new clients in our target markets, cross selling and making strategic acquisitions. We believe that the highly
fragmented industry in which we operate offers us growth opportunities, because we provide a unigue business combination of benefits and

human capital consulting, as well as risk and capital management and strategic téchnology solutions.

Segments
We provide services in three business segments: Benefits, Risk and Financial Services and Talent and Rewards.

Benefits Segment. The Benefits segment is our largest and most established segment. This segment has grown through business combinations
as well as strong organic growth. It helps clients create and manage cost-effective benefits programs that help them attract, retain and motivate
a talented workforce. R o : T g o :

The Benefits segment provides benefits coﬁéulting and administration services through four primary lines of business:
* Retirement;
. ¢ Health anle'roup Benefits;
* Technology and Administratién Solutions; and
* International Consulting.

Retirement supports organizations worldwide in designing, managing, administering and communicating all types of retirement plans. Health®
and Group Benefits provides advice on the strategy, design, financing, delivery, ongoing plan management and communication of health and
group benefit programs. Through our Technology and Administration Solutions line of business, we deliver cost-effective benefit outsourcing
solutions. The International Consulting Group provides expertise in dealing with international human capital management and related benefits
and compensation advice for corporate headquarters and their subsidiaries. A significant portion of the revenue in this segment is from ,
recurring work, driven in large part by the heavily regulated nature of employee benefits plans and our clients’ annual needs for these services.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Benefits segment contributed 59% of our segment revenue. For the same period, approximately
44% of the Benefits segment’s revenue originates from outside the United States and is thus subject to translation exposure resulting from
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. < :

Risk and Financial Services Segment. Within the Risk and Firiariéial Services segment, our second largest segment, we have three primary lines
of business: C ' . ' o '

¢  Risk Consulting and Software (“RCS”);
+ Investment Consulting and Solutions (“Investment™); and »
- » Reinsurance and Insurance Brokerage (“Brokerage”).

The Risk and Financial Services segment accounted for 24% of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Approximately 65%
of the segment’s revenue originates from outside the United States and is thus subject to translation exposure resulting from foreign exchange
rate fluctuations. The segment has a strong base of recurring revenue, driven by long-term client relationships in reinsurance brokerage
services, retainer investment consulting relationships, consulting services on financial reporting, and actuarial opinions on property/casualty
loss reserves. Some of these relationships have been in place for more than 20 years. A portion of the revenue is related to project work, which -
is more heavily dependent on the overall level of discretionary spending by clients. This work is favorably influenced by strong client
relationships, particularly related to mergers and acquisitions consulting. ' ' '
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Major revenue growth drivers include changes in regulations, the level of mergers and acquisitions activity in the insurance industry, growth in
pension and other asset pools, and reinsurance retention and pricing trends. ) h

Talent and Rewards Segment. Our third largest segment, Talent and Rewards, is focused on three primary lines of business:
*  Executive Compensation;
* Rewards, Talent and Communication; and ~ . ' : ,
* Data, Surveys and Technology.

The Talent and Rewards segment accounted for approximately 17% of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Few of the
segment’s projects have a recurring element. As a result, this segment is most sensitive to changes in discretionary spending due to cyclical
economic fluctuations. Approximately 50% of the segment’s revenue originates from outside the United States and is thus subject to translation
exposure resulting from foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Revenue for Talent and Rewards consulting has minimal seasonality, with a small
degree of heightened activity in the second half of the year during the annual compensation, benefits and survey cycles. Major revenue growth
drivers in this group include demand for workforce productivity improvements and labor cost reductions, focus on high performance cuiture,
globalization of the workforce, changes in regulations and benefits programs, mergers and acquisitions activity, and the demand for universal
metrics related to workforce engagement.

Financial Statement Overview

Towers Watson’s fiscal year ends June 30.

Shown below are Towers Watson’s top'five markets based on pefcentage of Consolidatéd revenue. The fiscal years ended June 30; 2011 and
2010 include data of Towers Watson’s geographic regions. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 includes only data of historical Watson Wyatt’s
geographic regions. ‘ : o : - . : -

Fiscal Year
Geographic Region 2011 . 2010 2009
United States 49% 52% 43%
United Kingdom . ' S22 22 32
Canada 6 6- » 4
Germany } 4 4 4
Netherlands o IURTIN - T £3 3 o 3

We derive the majority of our revenue from fees for consulting services, which generally are billed at standard hourly rates and expense
reimbursement, which we refer to as time and expense, or on a fixed-fee basis. Management believes the approximate percentages for time and’
expense and fixed-fee basis engagements are 60% and 40%, respectively. Clients are typically invoiced on a monthly basis with revenue ‘
generally recognized as services are performed. No single client accounted for more than 1% of our consolidated revenues for any of our most
recent three fiscal years. '

Our most significant expense is compensation to associates, which typically comprises approximately 70% of total costs of providing services.
We compensate our directors and select executives with incentive stock-based compensation plans from time to time. When' granted, awards
are governed by the Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long Term Incentive Plan, which provides for the awards to be valued at their grant date fair .
value which is amortized over the expected term of the awards, generally three years. In connection with the issuance of Towers Watson
restricted Class A common stock to Towers Perrin RSU holders in the Merger, we expect the total non-cash compensation expense relating to
Towers Watson restricted Class A common stock for the three year period to be $160.0 million. This estimate was determined assuming a 10%
annual forfeiture rate based on actual and expected attrition and the graded method of expense methodology. This expense methodology ‘
assumes that the restricted shares were issued to Towers Perrin RSU holders in equal amounts of shares that vest over one year, two yéars and
three years giving the effect of more expense in the first year than the second and third. In the.event that an associate is involuntarily terminated
other than for cause, vesting is accelerated and expense is recorded immediately. )

Salaries and employee benefits are comprised of wages paid to associates, related taxes, severance, benefit expenses such as pension, medical
and insurance costs, and fiscal year-end incentive bonuses. -

Professional and subcontracted services repréSent fees paid to external service providers for employment, marketing and other services. For the
three most recent fiscal years, approximately 40 to 60% of the professional and subcontracted services were directly incurred on behalf of
clients and were reimbursed by them, with such reimbursements being included in revenue. For the fiscal year
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ended June 30, 2011 for Towers Watson, approximately 36% of professional and subcontracted services represent these reimbursable services.
Occupancy includes expenses for rent and utilities. ' '

General and administrative expenses include legal, marketing, human résources, finance, research, technology support, supplies, telephone and
other costs to operate office locations as well as professional fees and insurance, including premiums on excess insurance and losses on
professional liability claims, non-client-reimbursed travel by associates, publications and professional development. This line item also
includes miscellaneous expenses, including gains and losses on foreign currency transactions. -

Depreciation and amortization includes the depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets and internally-developed software.

Transaction and integration expenses include fees and charges associated with the Merger and with our other acquisitions. Transaction and
integration expenses principally consist of investment banker fees, regulatory filing expenses, integration consultants, as well as legal,
accounting, marketing, and information technology integration expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Our estimates, judgments and assumptions are continually evaluated based on available information and experience. Because of the use
of estimates inherent in the financial reporting process, actual results could differ from those estimates. The areas that we believe are critical
accounting policies include revenue recognition, valuation of billed and unbilled receivables from clients, discretionary compensation, income
taxes, pension assumptions, incurred but not reported claims, and goodwill and intangible assets. The critical accounting policies discussed
below involve making difficult, subjective or complex accounting estimates that could have a material effect on our financial condition and
results of operations. These critical accounting policies require us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time of the
estimate or assumption. Different estimates that we could have used, or changes in estimates that are reasonably likely to occur, may have a’
material effect on our financial condition and results of operations. . :

Revenue Recognition

Revenue includes fees primarily generated from consulting services provided. We recognize revenue from these consulting engagements when
hours are worked, either on a time-and-expense basis or on a fixed-fee basis, depending on the terms and conditions defined at the inception of
an engagement with a client. We have engagement letters with our clients that specify the terms and conditions upon which the engagements
are based. These terms and conditions can only be changed upon agreement by both parties. Individual associates’ billing rates are principally
based on a multiple of salary and compensation costs.

Revenue for fixed-fee arrangements that span multiple months is based upon the percentage of completion method. We typically have three
types of fixed-fee arrangements: annual recurring projects, projects of a short duration, and non-recurring system projects. Annual recurring
projects and the projects of short duration are typically straightforward and highly predictable in nature. As a result, the project manager and
financial staff are able to identify, as the project status is reviewed and bills are prepared monthly, the occasions when cost overruns could lead
to the recording of a loss accrual.

We have non-recurting system projects that are longer in duration and subject to more changes in scope as the project progresses. We evaluate
at least quarterly, and more often as needed, project managers’ estimates-to-complete to assure that the projects’. current statuses are accounted
for properly. Certain software contracts generally provide that if the client terminates a contract, we are entitled to payment for services
performed through termination.

Revenue recognition for fixed-fee engagements is affected by a number of factors that change the estimated amount of work required to
complete the project such as changes in scope, the staffing on the engagement and/or the level of client participation. The periodic engagement
evaluations require us to make judgments and estimates regarding the overall profitability and stage of project completion that, in turn, affect
how we recognize revenue. We recognize a loss on an engagement when estimated revenue to be received for that engagement is less than the
total estimated direct and indirect costs associated with the engagement. Losses are recognized in the period in'which the loss becomes
probable and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. We have experienced certain costs in excess of estimates from time to time. _
Management believes it is rare, however, for these excess costs to result in overall project losses. '
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We have developed various software programs and technologieés that we provide toclients in connection with consulting services. In most
instances, such software is hosted and maintained by us and ownership of the technology and rights to the related code remain with us.
Software developed to be utilized in providing services to a client, but for which the client does not have the contractual right to take
possession, is capitalized during the implementation stage. Revenue associated with the related contract, together with amortization of the
related capitalized software, is recognized over the service period. As a result, we do not recognize revenue during the implementation phase of
an engagement. . . : e

In connection with the Merger, we acquired the reinsurance brokerage business of Towers Perrin. In oufr capacity as a reinsurance broker, we
collect premiums from reinsureds and, after deducting our brokerage commissions, we remit the premiums to the respective reinsurance
underwriters on behalf of reinsureds. In general, compensation for reinsurance brokerage services is earned on a commission basis.
Commissions are calculated as a percentage of a reinsurance premium as stipulated in the reinsurance contracts with our clients and reinsurers.
We recognize brokerage services revenue on the later of the inception date or billing date of the contract. In addition, we hold cash needed to
settle amounts due reinsurers or reinsureds, net of any commissions dueto us, pending remittance to the ultimate recipient. We are permitted to
invest these funds in high quality liquid instruments.

Revenue recognized in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled accounts receivable. Cash collections and invoices generated in excess of
revenue recognized ate recorded as deferred revenue unil the revenue recognition criteria are met. Client reimbursable expenses, including
those relating to travel, other out-of-pocket expenses and any third-party costs, are included in revenue, and an equivalent amount of
reimbursable expenses are included in professional and subcontracted services as a cost of revenue. ‘

Valuation of Billed and Unbilled Receivables from Clients

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts to reflect estimated losses resulting from the clients’ failure to pay for the services after the
services have been rendered, including allowances when customer disputes may exist. The related provision is recorded as a reduction to
revenue. Our allowance policy is based on the aging of the billed and unbilled client receivables and has been developed based on the write-off
history. Facts and circumstances such as the average length of time the receivables are past due, general market conditions, current economic
trends and our clients’ ability to pay may cause fluctuations in our valuation of bilied and unbilled receivables.

Discretionary Compensation

Our compensation program includes a discretionary bonus that is determined by management and has historically been paid once per fiscal year
in the form of cash-and/or deferred stock units after our annual operating results are finalized. As a result of the Merger, interim bonuses were
paid in March 2010 relating to the period ended December 31, 2009 and were also paid September 2010 relating to the six-month period ended
June 30, 2010, after which time bonuses are expected to be. paid annually each September. .

An estimated annual bonus amount is initially developed at the beginning of each fiscal year in conjunction with our budgeting process.
Estimated annual operating performance is reviewed quarterly and the discretionary annual bonus amount is then adjusted, if necessary, by
management to reflect changes in the forecast of pre-bonus profitability for the year.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740, Income Taxes, which prescribes the use of
the asset and liability approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized in our financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation
allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a portion or all of a given deferred
tax asset will not be realized. In accordance with ASC 740, income tax expense includes (i) deferred tax expense, which generally represents
the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability balance during the year plus any change in valuation allowances and (ii) current tax expense,
which represents the amount of tax currently payable to or receivable from a taxing authority plus amounts accrued for expected tax _
contingencies (including both tax and interest). ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not, and a measurement
attribute for all tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, in order for those positions to be recognized in the financial
statements. We continually review tax laws, regulations and related guidance in order to properly record any uncertain tax positions. We adjust
these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of tax audits. The provision for income taxes includes the

impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered appropriate.
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Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims

We accrue for IBNR professional liability claims that are probable and estimable, and for which we have not yet contracted for insurance
coverage. We use actuarial assumptions to estimate and record a liability for IBNR professional liability claims. Our estimated IBNR liability
is based on long-term trends and averages, and considers a number of factors, including changes in claim reporting patterns, claim settlement
patterns, judicial decisions, and legislation and economic decisions. Our estimated IBNR liability does not include actuarial projections for the
effect of claims data for large cases due to the insufficiency of actuarial experiénce with such cases. Our estimated IBNR liability will fluctuate
if claims experience changes over time. Our IBNR liability was $274.8 million and $222.3 million as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
To the extent our captive insurance companies, PCIC and SMIC, expect losses to be covered by a third party they record a receivable for the
amount expected to be recovered. This receivable is classified in other current or other noncurrent assets in our consolidated balance sheet.

Pension Assumptions

We sponsor both qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plan or “OPEB” plans in North
America and Europe. These plans represented 98% of our total pension obligatioris as of June 30, 2011. We also sponsor funded and unfunded
defined benefit pension plans in certain other countries representing the remaining 2% of the lability.

Under the legacy Watson Wyatt plans in North America, benefits are based on the number of years of service and the associate’s compensation
during the five highest paid consecutive years of service. The non-qualified plan, included only in North America, provides for pension benefits
that would be covered under the qualified plan but are limited by the Internal Revenue Code. The non-qualified plan has no assets and therefore
is an unfunded arrangement. Beginning January 2008, Watson Wyatt made changes to the plan in the United Kingdom related to years of -
service used in calculating benefits for associates. Benefits earned prior to January 2008 are based on the number of years of service-and the
associate’s compensation during the three years before leaving the plan and benefits earned after January 2008 are based on the number of
years of service and the associate’s average compensation during the associate’s term of service since that date. The plan liabilities in Germany
were a result of Watson Wyatt’s acquisition of Heissmann GmbH in 2007. A significant percentage of the liabilities represent the grandfathered
pension benefit for associates hired prior to a July 1991 plan amendment. The pension plan for those hired after July 1991 is a defined
contribution type arrangement. In the Netherlands, the pension benefit is a percentage of service and average salary over the working life of the
associate, where salary includes allowances and bonuses up to a set maximum salary and is offset by the current social security benefit. The
benefit liability is reflected on the balance sheet. The measurement date for each of the plans is June 30. - :

The legacy Towers Perrin pension plans in the United States accrue benefits under a cash-balance formula for associates hired or rehired after
2002 and for all associates for service after 2007. For associates hired prior to 2003 and active as of January 2003, benefits prior to 2008 are
based on a combination of a cash balance formula, for the period after 2002, and a final average pay formula based on years of plan service and
the highest five consecutive years of plan compensation prior to 2008. Under the cash balarice formula benefits are based on a percentage of -
each year of the associate’s plan compensation. The Canadian Retirement Plan provides a choice of a defined benefit approach or a defined
contribution approach. The non-qualified plans in North America provide for pension benefits that would be covered under the qualified plan in
the respective country but are limited by statutory maximums. The non-qualified plans have no assets and therefore are unfunded arrangements.
The U.K. Plan provides predominantly lump sum benefits. Benefit accruals under the U.K. Plan ceased on March 31, 2008. The plans in
Germany mostly provide benefits under a cash balance benefit formula. Benefits under the Netherlands plan accrue on a final pay basis on
earnings up to a maximum amount each year. The benefit asséts and liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet. The measurement date for
each of the plans has historically been December 31, but has been changed to June 30 as a result of the Merger. The determination of our
pension benefit obligations and related benefit expense under the plans is-based on a number of assumptions that, given the longevity of the
plans, are long-term in focus. A change in one or a combination of these assumptions could have a material impact on our pension benefit
obligation and related expense. For this reason, management employs a long-term view so that assumptions do not change frequently in
response to short-term volatility in the economy. Any difference between actual and assumed results is amortized into our pension expense
over the average remaining service period of participating associates. We consider several factors prior to the start of each fiscal year when -
determining the appropriate annual assumptions, including economic forecasts, relevant benchmarks, historical trends, portfolio composition
and peer comparisons. C o - ST

The compensation committee of our board of directors approved an amendment to the terms of the existing U.S. qualified and non-qualified
defined benefit pension plans, postretirement benefit plans and defined contribution plans which was communicated in September 2010.
Effective December 31,2010, the existing U.S. qualified and non-qualified pension plans were frozen to new participants, and benefit accruals
will be frozen under the current benefit formulas effective December 31, 2011. New pension benefits will accrue beginning on January 1, 2012
under a new stable value pension design for qualified and non-qualified pension plans maintained for U.S. associates, including U.S. named
executive officers. Retiree medical benefits provided under our U.S. postretirement benefit plans were frozen to new hires effective January 1,
2011. Life insurance benefits under the same plans will be frozen with respect to service, eligibility and amounts as of January 1, 2012 for
active associates. As a result of these changes to the U.S. pension and post-retirement benefit plans, there were remeasurements of the legacy
Watson Wyatt U.S. plans and the legacy
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Towers Perrin post-retirement benefit plan as of September 30, 2010. The legacy Towers Perrin pension plan was not required to be
remeasured due to the plan design. ‘

Assumptions Used in the Valuations of the Defined Bénefit Pension Plans

The following assumptions were used in the valuations of Towers Watson’s defined benefit pension plans. The assumptions presented for the

. North American plans represent the weighted-average of rates for all U.S. and Canadian plans. The assumptions presented for Towers
Watson’s European plans represent the weighted-average of rates for the U.K., Germany and Netherlands plans. In relation to the acquisition of
Towers Perrin on January 1, 2010, the legacy plans of T owers Perrin have been included in the assumptions as of and for the years ended

June 30,2011 and 2010. The assumptions as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009 represent only the legacy Watson Wyatt plans.

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009
North ’ C North
o America - Europe America - Europe
Discountrate =~ . . . . . 603%.  691% . 647%
Expected long-termrate of returnonassets ~ **  816% 679% . 811% % 86l%  653%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ™ 393 %, 408%  5.36%

The fbllowing table presents the assumptions used in the véluatioh’ to determine the projected benefit obligatidn for the fiscal yearé ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010: - - S Yo - : . P

June 30, 2011 . June 30, 2010

. North e o North B
] o ‘ America Europe . _America Europe
Discount rate _ o S 51%% . 5.62% 5.86% . 525%
Rate of increase in compensation levels , S o ' L 382% 0 __3.93% 3.88% 3.88%

For the 2011 fiscal year, the discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit cost was initially based on the rates in the table shown above
for the determination of the projected benefit obligation as of June 30, 2010, which included a 5.86% rate for North America. As a result of
plan changes adopted during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, the legacy Watson Wyatt U.S. Pension Plans were remeasured as of

September 30, 2010. Upon remeasurement the discount rate assumption was changed for these plans and the net periodic benefit cost for the

2011 fiscal year is now calculated using a weighted average discount rate of 5.79% for North America..

Towers Watson’s discount rate assumptions were determined by matching expected future ‘pension benefit payments. with current AA corporate
bond yields from the respective countries for the same periods. In the United States, specific bonds were selected to match plan cash flows. In
Canada, yields were taken from a corporate bond yield curve. In Europe, the discount rate was set based on yields on European AA corporate
bonds at the measurement date. - E o . '

The expected rates of return assumptions at 8.16% and 6.79% per annum for Nofth America and Europe, respectively, were supported by an
analysis performed by Towers Watson of the weighted-average yield expected to be achieved with the anticipated makeup of investmients,

The following information illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for the North American pension plans for fiscal year
2012: - - R » o ‘ ‘

Effect on FY 2012

Change in Assumption . ' L . L . . . - Pre-Tax Pension Expense
25 basis point decrease in discountrate . .. o.v iy s .o . o - +$83million |
25 basis point increase in discount rate , N S B _ -$8.2 million
25 basis point decrease in expécted return on assets : o _ o +$4.9 million
25 basis point increase in expécted return on assets - S v © 7 -$4.9 million

The above sensitivities reflect the impact of changing one assumption at a time. Economic factors and conditions often affect multiple
assumptions simultaneously and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not necessarily linear.
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The following information illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for the European pension plans for fiscal year 2012:

Effect on FY 2012

Change in Assumption . B Pre-Tax Pension Expense
25-basis point decrease in discount rate™ - - - R R R G EUR P R S X ) million
25 basis point increase in discount rate : o » ~-$4.0 million"

25 basis point decrease in expected return on assets = SO T ST S million: O

25 basis point increase in expected return on assets -$1.5 million

The sensitivities reflect the effect of assumption changes occurring after acquisition accounting has been applied. The differences in the
discount rate and compensation level assumption used for the North American and European plans above can be attributed to the differing
interest rate environments associated with the currencies and economies to which the plans are subject. The differences in the expected return
on assets are primarily driven by the respective asset allocation in each plan, coupled with the return expectations for assets in the respective
currencies.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In applying the purchase method of accounting for business combinations, amounts assigned to identifiable assets and liabilities acquired were
based on estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisitions, with the remainder recorded as goodwill. Intangible assets are initially valued
at fair market value using generally accepted valuation methods appropriate for the type of intangible asset. Intangible assets with definite lives
are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indicators of impairment arise. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually as of March 31. The fair value of the intangible assets is compared with their carrying value
and an impairment loss would be recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually as of March 31, and whenever indicators of impairment exist.

The evaluation is a two-step process whereby the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying amount, including goodwill. In
estimating the fair value of a reporting unit, we used valuation techniques that fall under income or market approaches. Under the discounted
cash flow method, an income approach, the business enterprise value is determined by discounting to present value the terminal value which is
calculated using debt-free after-tax cash flows for a finite period of years. Key estimates in this approach are internal financial projection
estimates prepared by management, business risk, and expected rate of returr on capital. The guideline company method, a market approach,
develops valuation multiples by comparing our reporting units to similar publicly traded companies. Key estimates and selection of valuation
multiples rely on the selection of similar companies, obtaining estimates of forecasted revenue and EBITDA estimates for the similar
companies and selection of valuation multiples as they apply to the reporting unit characteristics. Under the similar transactions method, a
market approach, actual transaction prices and operating data from companies deemed reasonably similar to the reporting units is used to
develop valuation multiples as an indication of how much a knowledgeable investor in the marketplace would be willing to pay for the business
units. As the fair value of our reporting units exceeds their carrying value, we do not perform step two to determine the impairment loss. In the
event that a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeded its fair value, we would determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit used in step
one to all the assets and liabilities of that reporting unit (including any recognized or unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination. Then the implied fair value of goodwill would be compared to the carrying amount of goodwill to
determine if goodwill is impaired. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, we did not record any impairment losses of goodwill or intangibles.

Results of Operations

Watson Wyatt is the accounting predeéessor in the Merger; as such, the historical results of Watson Wyatt have become those of Towers
Watson and are presented herein as historical results. The consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 includes the results of operations of the merged Towers Watson. '

The consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 includes the results of Towers Perrin’s
operations beginning January 1, 2010, or six months of the twelve-month period. As a result, the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011 is compared to the pro forma combined financial information for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is prepared and

" presented to aid in explaining the results of operations of the merged Towers Watson. The pro forma unaudited consolidated statement of
operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is prepared as if the Merger occurred on July 1, 2009. The pro forma
unaudited consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is prepared as if the Merger occurred
on July 1, 2008.
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The consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 includes only the financial results .of
- Watson Wyatt.

As a result of the Merger, Towers Watson aligned and grouped general and administrative accounts using a natural account methodology. The
accounting predecessor, Watson Wyatt, allocated certain support service charges to general and administrative expenses from specific offices,
teams and accounts. The results of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, and 2009 have been retrospectively realigned to the new
general and administrative expense methodology.
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Historical Results of Operations

The table below sets forth our consolidated statements of operations, on a historical basis, and data as a percentage of revenue for the periods
indicated. ' '

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
‘ _ o 2011 — 2010 v 2009 ;
Revenue $3,259,451 100% . $2,387,829 “100% °  $1,676,029 100%
Costs of providing services: o » L N »
Salaries and employee benefits 2,043,063 63% 1,540,417 65% 1,029,299 61%
Professional and subcontracted services 246,348 8% 163,848 7% 119,323 7%
Occupancy - " E : - 144,191 4% - 1094547 . . 5% - 72,566 4%
General and administrative expenses 281,576 9% 220,937 ) 9% 172,010 _ 10%
Depreciation and amortization 130,575 4% . - 101,084 -~ 4% - 73,448 49
Transaction and integration expenses 100,535 3% _87.644 4% — —%
S 2,946,288 0% ”2’,223’,384 .  93% 1,466,646 -  88%
Income from operations 313,163 10% 164,445 % 209,383 12%
Income/(loss) from affiliates 1,081 ‘ —% (1,274) —% 8,350 - —%
Interest income 5,523 —% 2,950 —% 2,022 —%
Interest expense ‘ (12,475) —% (7,508) —% (2,778) —%
Other non-operating income 19,349 1% 11,304 —% 4,926 —%
Income before income taxes 326,641 10% 169,917 ‘ 7% 221,903 13%
Provision for income taxes 129,916 4% 50,907 2% 75,276 4%
Net income before non-controlling interests 196,725 6% 119,010 5% 146,627 9%
Net income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling i
interests 2,288 —% (1,587) —% 169 —%
Net income attributable to controlling interests  § 194,437 6% $ 120,597 5% $ 146,458 9%

Historical Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $3.3 billion, an increase of $871.6 million, or 37%, compared to $2.4 billion for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010. The increase was primarily a result of the Merger and combination of Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s
operations as of January 1, 2010. Net income attributable to controlling interests for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $194.4 million, an
increase of $73.8 million, or 61%, compared to $120.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Salaries and employee benefits were 63% of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, a decrease of 2% from 65% of revenue for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Transaction and integration expenses related to the Merger were 3% of reveriue for fiscal year 2011, a decrease
1%, from 4% of revenue for fiscal year 2010. There were no other-significant increases or decreases of more than one percent comparing the
statements of operations line items as a percent of revenue period over period for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.

The provision for income taxes for fiscal year 2011 is 39.8% compared with 30.0% in fiscal year 2010. Our effective tax rate increased for
fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2010 primarily due to a change in the mix of income between foreign and U.S. operations and an
increase in the valuation allowance for foreign jurisdictions for fiscal year 2011. The effective tax rate in fiscal year 2010 was significantly
lower due to a valuation allowance release on U.S. foreign tax credits as we determined that it was more likely than not that these foreign tax
credits would be realized within the carryforward period.
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Net income attributable to controlling interests.

Net income attributable to controlling interests for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $194.4 million compared to net income attributable
to controlling interests of $120.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $2.62, compared to $2.03 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Non-U.S. GAAP Measures

Diluted earnings per share has been adjusted to exclude certain Merger-related items including amortization of intangible assets, transaction
and integration expenses (deductible and non-deductible for taxes), stock-based compensation related to Restricted Class A shares (recorded in
salaries and employee benefits), other tax items and a deferred payment from divestiture. After excluding these items, adjusted diluted earnings
per share, a non-U.S. GAAP measure, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $4.46.

We use EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income Attributable to Controlling Interests and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share,
non-U.S. GAAP measures, to evaluate our financial performance and separately evaluate our performance of the transaction and integration
activities as well as changes in tax law. We believe these measures are useful in evaluating our results of operations and in providing a baseline
for the evaluation of future operating results. We define EBITDA as net income before non-controlling interests adjusted for provision for
income taxes, interest, net and depreciation and amortization. Reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income before non-
controlling interests, Adjusted Net Income Attributable to Controlling Interests to net income attributable to controlling interests and Adjusted
Diluted Earnings Per Share to diluted earnings per share are included in the tables below. These non-U.S. GAAP measures are not defined in
the same manner by all companies and may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies.

Non-U.S. GAAP measures should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, the information contained within our financial
statements.

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Reconciliation of net income before non-controlling interests to EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA is as follows: ’

Net income before non-controlling interests . $196,725 $ 119,010 . $146,627
Provision for income taxes N 129,916 50,907 75,276
Interest, net ; 6,952 4,558 756
Depreciation and amortization 130,575 101,084 73,448
EBITDA : 464,168 275,559 296,107
Transaction and integration expenses - S e : 100,535 87,644 —
Stock-based compensation (a) . 71,715 48,006 —
Other non-operating income (b) ) s (20,430) (10,030) (13,276)

Adjusted EBITDA $615,988 $ 401,179 $282,831

(a) Stock-based compensation is included in salary and employee benefits expense and relates to shares of Restricted Class A common stock
held by our current associates which were awarded to them as former Towers Perrin employees in connection with the Merger.

(b)  Other non-operating income includes income from affiliates, and other non-operating income.

A reconciliation of net income attributable to controlling interests, as reported under generally accepted accounting principles, to adjusted net
income attributable to controlling interests, and of diluted earnings per share as reported under generally accepted accounting principles to
adjusted diluted earnings per share is as follows:
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Year Ended
June 30, 2011
(In thousands, except share and
per share amounts)

Net income attributable to controlling interests . ' k $- 194,437 °
Adjusted for certain Merger-related items (c¢): ’
Amortization of intangible assets , ‘ . o « 34,087
Transaction and integration expenses including severance (d) 64,799
Stock-based compensation (e) ' - . s 46,850
Deferred payment from divestiture (f) ' (9,429)
Other tax items 603
Adjusted net income attributable to controlling interests $ 331,347
Weighted average shares of common stock — diluted (000) v ’ 74,139
Earnings per share — diluted, as reported ’ $ 2.62
Adjusted for certain Merger-related items: ' R
Amortization of intangible assets . 0.46
Transaction and integration expenses including severance 0.87
Stock-based compensation 0.63
Deferred payment from divestiture 0.13)
Other tax items . 0.01
Adjusted earnings per share — diluted $ 4.46

(c) The adjustments to net income attributable to controlling interests and diluted earnings per share of certain Merger-related items are net
of tax. In calculating the net of tax amounts, the effective tax rate for amortization of intangible assets was 34.4%, transaction and
integration expenses including severance was 35.6%, stock-based compensation was 34.7%, other non-operating income was 34.5%,
deferred payment was 34.5%. Included in other tax items was a $1.1 million benefit resulting from a tax restructuring in Japan and
$1.7 million expense resulting from incorporation of former Watson Wyatt branches, which is included in the consolidated statement of
operations under provision for income taxes.

(d) Included in transaction and integration expenses including severance is approximately $2.0 million of expenses related to the recent
acquisitions of Aliquant and EMB which were completed in the second quarter and third quarter of fiscal year 2011, respectively.

(e) Stock-based compensation relates to shares of Restricted Class A common stock held by our current associates which were awarded to
them as former Towers Perrin employees in connection with the Merger.

() Reflects a gain on the sale of e-Value, a sale of a financial modeling software, and the deferred payment from divestiture received in the
second quarter related to a divestiture by former Towers Perrin in June 2009 before the closing of the Merger which is included in non-
operating income. Both items are included in non operating income. ‘

Historical Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $2.4 billion, an increase of $711.8 million, or 42%, compared to $1.7 billion for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009. The increase was primarily a result of the Merger and combination of Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s
operations as of January 1, 2010. Net income attributable to controlling interests for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $120.6 million, a
decrease of $25.9 million, or 18%, compared to $146.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The decrease was primarily due to
transaction and integration expenses of $87.6 million incurred in connection with the Merger during fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Salaries and employee benefits were 65% of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, an increase of 4% from 61% of revenue for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This increase is the result of stock-based compensation of $54.7 million recorded in the second half of fiscal
2010, which consisted of $48.0 million related to the vesting of Restricted A shares issued to Towers Perrin employees in the Merger and

$4.6 million related to the vesting of the unamortized fair value of Watson Wyatt stock options and deferred stock units outstanding at the time
of the Merger. The remaining increase is the result of higher salaries and employee benefits as a percentage of revenue for Towers Perrin.
There were no other significant increases or decreases of more than one percent comparing the statements of operations line items as a percent
of revenue period over period for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Provision for income taxes for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $50.9 million, compared to $75.3 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. The effective tax rate for the year was 30.0% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and 33.9% for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2009. The provision for income taxes for fiscal year 2010 includes a deferred tax charge for $10.6 million due to the enactment of the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and U.S. Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010. We also released a net valuation
allowance of $27.5 million for U.S. foreign tax credits. We believe that it is more likely than not that these foreign tax credits will be realized
within the carryforward period as a result of generating future sources of foreign income.
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Moreover, we released $3.6 million of reserves related to uncertain tax positions as a result of expiring statutes of limitations and

effectively
settled tax positions following the examination of our 2007 and 2008 U.S. federal corporate income tax returns.

Net income attributable to controlling interests.

Net income attributable to controlling interests for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $120:6 million inclusive of the amortization of deal-
related intangible assets, deductible and non-deductible transaction and integration expenses including severance, stock-based compensation
related to Restricted Class A shares (recorded in salaries and employee benefits), loss of the Medicare Part D subsidy and other Merger-related
tax items, compared to net income attributable to controlling interests of $146.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 were $2.03, compared to $3.42 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTAL PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 includes the results of Towers Perrin’s
operations beginning January 1, 2010, or six months of the twelve-month period. As a result, the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011 is compared to the unaudited supplemental pro forma combined financial information for fiscal year ended June 30,
2010 is prepared and presented to aid in explaining.the results of operations of the merged Towers Watson. The pro forma unaudited
consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is prepared as if the Merger occurred on July 1,
2009.

The pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 combines Towers Watson’s historical unaudited
consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2010 with Watson Wyatt’s and Towers Perrin’s historical unaudited
consolidated statements of operations for the six months ended December 31, 2009. Watson Wyatt’s fiscal year ended on June 30 while Towers
Perrin’s fiscal year ended on December 31. Towers Perrin’s financial information has been recast to conform to Watson Wyatt’s fiscal year
end.

The pro forma unaudited consolidated statement of operations of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is prepared as if the
Merger occurred on July 1, 2008. Towers Perrin’s historical unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended
December 31, 2009 was derived by subtracting Towers Perrin’s unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended

June 30, 2009 from Towers Perrin’s audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2009. The unaudited pro
forma combined financial statements should be read together with the respective historical financial statements and related notes of Towers
Perrin and Watson Wyatt and the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations give effect to the Merger including:
» related Merger consideration;
* adjustments made to record the assets and liabilities of Towers Perrin at their estimated fair values;

* reclassifications made to conform Towers Perrin’s and Watson Wyatt’s historical financial statement presentation to Towers Watson’s;
and

«  the consolidation of Professional Consultants Insurance Company, Inc., which we refer to as “PCIC.”

Prior to the Merger, Towers Perrin was a private, employee-owned corporation. As a result, Towers Perrin’s historical unaudited consolidated
statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2009 does not reflect the level of net income that Towers Perrin contributes to
Towers Watson, as a public company. Further, the revenue growth that we expect Towers Watson to achieve from strengthening core services
and expanding the existing portfolio of services is not reflected in the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements.

The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 do not reflect certain financial targets
relating to the Merger, such as our targeted synergy cost savings, reductions in compensation and benefits expense resulting from the
retirement of Class R participants, and a further targeted reduction in compensation expense resulting from the elimination of the principal
bonus payments historically paid to legacy Towers Perrin Principals.

Pro forma earnings per share reflect the impact of significant non-cash and non-recurring expenses resulting from the Merger, including
compensation expense incurred as a result of the issuance of Towers Watson Restricted Class A common stock to Towers Perrin restricted
stock unit (“RSU”) holders and the incremental amortization of acquired intangible assets.

Towers Watson is implementing an integration plan that may affect how the assets acquired, including intangibles, will be utilized. If assets in
the combined company are phased out or no longer used, additional amortization, depreciation and/or impairment charges would be recorded.

The following unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 are provided for
informational purposes only. They do not purport to represent what Towers Watson’s results of operations would have been had the Merger
been completed as of the date indicated and do not purport to be indicative of the results of operations that Towers Watson may achieve in the
future.
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Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Year Ended
) . v June 30, 2011
Revenue - Ce o : ot L S $ 3,259,451
Costs of providing services: _ ,
‘Salaries and employee benefits . - _ N : - o . 2,043,063
Professional and subcontracted services ‘ o L . , 246,348
Occupancy , R ; S e o : , . 144,191
General and administrative expenses o o L o , . - 281,576
Depreciation and amortization 130,575
~ Transaction and integration expenses » 100,535
B ST ’ C o ' 2,946,288
Income from operations = o ' ’ o 313,163
Income from affiliates -~ T B o 1,081
Interest income ’ 5,523
Interest expense - . ) B : - {12,475)
Other non-operating income 19,349
Income before income taxes ) , . B : . AP D - .326,641.
Provision for income taxes : 129,916
Net income before non-controlling interests 196,725
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests . 2,288
Net income aftributable to controlling interests = o . o . : © O $ 194437
Earnings per share: ‘ ] o o . ‘
Net income — Basic $ 2.62
Net income — Diluted $ 2.62
Weighted average shares of common stock, basic (000) . . o ' 74,075
Weighted average shares of common stock, diluted (000) 74,139




Unaudited Supplemental Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2010
Year Ended Six Months Ended Year Ended
“June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009 June 30, 2010
As Reported Historical Pro Forma
Towers Watson Towers Perrin PCIC Adjustments As Adjusted
o ) - (In thousands, except share and per share data) ]
Revenue $ 2,387,829 $ 798,131 $12,750  $ (9,404)H  $3,180,916
' (8,390K
Costs of providing services: - I T
Salaries and employee benefits o _ 1,540,417 558,855 107 46,832 B 2,146,211
Professional and subcontracted services o 163,848 - 79,421 483 . : 243,752
Occupancy : \ » » - 109,454 35,406 = 1,835A 146,695
General and administrative expenses ) 220,937 40,351 16,924 © (9,404)H 268,808
Depreciation and amortization 101,084 19,007 — 11,508 A 131,599
Transaction and integration expenses o 87,644 15,734 o (103,378)E . o
2,223,384 748,774 17,514 (52,607) 2,937,065
Income from operations , C 164,445 - 49,357 (4,764) 34,813 . 243,851
(Loss)/income from affiliates 1,274) (164) — 353 - (1,085)
Interest income - ) 2,950 530 - L,517 266)C 4,731
Interest expense : (7,508) (1,536) — (2,000)D (11,991)
, , 94NG
Other non-operating income 11,304 5,281 — 16,585
Income before income taxes - ’ 169,917 53,468 (3.247) 31,953 252,091
Provision for income taxes 50,907 9,779 (1,187) . 8,419 F 67,918
Net income before non-controlling interests ’ ' 119,010 43,689 (2,060) 23,534 184,173
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests (1,587) — — (5591 (2,146)
Net income/(loss) attributable to controlling interests ~ $ 120,597  $ 43,689 $(2.060) $ 24,093 $ 186,319
Eamiﬁgs per share:
Net income — Basic $ 2.04 M . 3 3.14
Net income — Diluted $ 2.03 M $ 3.14
Weighted average shares of common stock, basic (000) 59,257 M 59,257
Weighted average shares of common stock, diluted .
(000) 59,372 M 59,372
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Unaudited Supplemental Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations

Revenue

Costs of providing services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Professional and subcontracted services
Occupancy o :
General and administrative expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Income from operations

(Loss)/income from affiliates
Interest income
Interest expense

Other non-operating income

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income before non-controlling interests
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Net income attributable to controlling interests

Earnings per share:
Net income — basic

Net income — diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock, basic (000)

Weighted average shares of common stock, diluted
(000)

42,861
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Year Ended June 30, 2009
Historical
Pro Forma
Watson Wyatt Towers Perrin PCIC Adjustments As Adjusted
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 1,676,029 $ 1,586,299 $39,873 $ (27,804)H $3,251,323

' (23,074H)K
1,029,299 1,107,619 147 99,397B 2,236,462
119,323 172,825 1,144 - 293,292
72,566 68,157 — 3,669A 144,392
172,010 - 200,047 19,226 (27,804)H 352,109

(11,370)E
73,448 38,758 — 24,308A © 136,514
1,466,646 1,587,406 20,517 88,200 3,162,769
209,383 (1,107) 19,356 (139,078) - 88,554
8,350 5,257 — (13,313)) 294
2,022 4,708 4,924 (3,087)C 8,567

(2,778) (3,489) — (4,000)D (12,160)

o (1,893)G
4,926 14,884 — 19,810
221,903 20,253 24,280 (161,371) 105,065
75,276 40,223 8,268 (63,251)F 60,516
146,627 (19,970) 16,012 (98,120) 44,549
169 — — 4,3461 4,515
$ 146,458 $  (19,970) $16,012 $(102,466) $ 40,034
$ 343 - M §$§ - 068
$ 3.42 M §$ 067
42,690 M 59,257

M

59,372



Pro Forma Adjustments
The pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited supplemental pro forma combined financial information are as follows:

A) Reflects estimated amortization of Towers Perrin’s acquired intangible assets on an accelerated amortization basis over their estimated
useful lives. Customer-related intangible assets are amortized over a 12-year estimated life and developed technology intangible assets are
amortized over a. weighted-average four-year estimated life. The trademark and trade names intangible asset has an indefinite life. Also
reflects an adjustment to rent expense to approximate fair value of acquired leases.

B) Reflects non-cash compensation expense in connection with the issuance of Towers Watson restricted Class A common stock to Towers
Perrin RSU holders in the Merger. The graded method of expense methodology assumes that the restricted shares are issued to Towers
Perrin RSU holders in equal amounts of shares which vest over one year, two years and three years. The current estimate of total non-cash
compensation expense relating to Towers Watson restricted Class A common stock for the three-year period is $160. 0 million. This
estimate was determined assuming a 10% annual forfeiture rate based on actual and expected attrition.

C) Reflects interest income forgone as a result of the cash consideration of $200 million paid to Towers Perrin Class R Partchpants in
conjunction with the redemption of Towers Watson Class R common stock.

D) Reflects interest accrued on $200 million principal amount of Towers Watson Notes issued to Towers Perrin Class R Participants. Interest
on the Towers Watson Notes accrued at a 2.0% fixed rate per annum, compounded annually. :

E) Reflects the elimination of Merger-related transaction costs (including financial advisory, legal and valuation fees). Because transaction
costs will not have a continuing impact, they are not reflected in the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations.

F) Reflects the provision for taxes as a result of the Merger. A U.S. statutory rate of 40.0% was used for the fiscal year 2011, except for
adjustments related to PCIC for which a 34% statutory rate was used since PCIC would not be included in the U.S. consolidated tax return.
For the fiscal year 2010 the U.S. statutory rate of 39.6% was used. For purposes of determining the estimated income tax expense for the
adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations, taxes were determined by applying the applicable
statutory tax rate for jurisdictions where each pro forma adjustment is expected to be reported. Although not reflected in these unaudited
pro forma combined statements of operations, the effective tax rate of the combined company could be significantly different depending on
post-acquisition activities, including repatriation decisions, the geographic mix of income, and post-Merger restructuring activities.

G) Reflects one year of amortization of $5.7 million of bank fees associated with the Towers Watson credit facility, which will be amortized
over a three-year period.

H) Reflects the elimination of premium revenue and unearned revenues from Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin as recorded by PCIC, as well
as related expense recorded by Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin.

I) Reflects the 27.14% non-controlling interest in PCIC of the remaining minority shareholder. -
J) Reflects the elimination of Watson Wyatt’s and Towers Perrin’s earnings from PCIC as recorded under the equity method.

K) Reflects the reduction to Towers. Perrin’s software revenue attributable to performance obligations completed prior to the Merger. This
reduction is reqmred to reflect the acquired deferred software revenue at fair value as of the date of the Merger.

L) Reflects the elimination of merger-related deferred payment on the sale of an investment. Because this deferred payment will not have a
continuing impact, it is not reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations.

M) Earnings per share calculations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are based on Towers Watson’s fully diluted shares
outstanding as of June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Statement of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Compared to Pro Forma Financial Information for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenue

Towers Watson revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $3.3 billion, an increase of $78.5 million, or 2%, from pro forma revenue
of $3.2 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Our revenue growth reflects increased revenue from both new and existing clients. In
addition, revenue from our two new acquisitions, Aliquant and EMB, contributed to the increase in revenue in the second half of fiscal year
2011.

We use constant currency to evaluate our results of operations because we are a global company subject to foreign currency translation
fluctuations in our year-over-year comparisons. Constant currency is calculated by translating prior year revenue at the current year average
exchange rate. The average exchange rate used to translate our revenues earned in British pounds sterling was 1.5878 for fiscal 2011, and the
average exchange rate used to translate our revenues earned in Euros was 1.3637 for fiscal year 2011.

A comparison of segment revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, as cbmpared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010>is as follows:

¢ Benefits revenue increased 2% and was $1.9 billion for fiscal year 2011 compared to $1.8 billion for fiscal year 2010. On a constant
currency basis, our Retirement practice revenue remained consistent, which represents the majority of the segment’s revenue. The
growth in the Retirement practice is from the developing markets in Asia and Latin America which is driven by new legislation and
client demand. The Retirement practice in North America and Europe experienced decreased revenue in fiscal year 2011 compared to
the same period in fiscal year 2010 because of a strong prior year comparable from project work related to regulatory changes.
Revenue increased on a constant currency basis in our Technology and Administration Solutions practice, with revenue growth in the
U.S. and a slight decline in Europe. Growth in the U.S. was largely due to the addition of Aliquant, a health and welfare benefits
administration outsourcing firm that we acquired during the second quarter of fiscal year 2011. Revenue increased in our Health and
Group Benefits practice as health care reform deadlines approach. Revenue in our Benefits segment increased 1% on an organic basis
which excludes the effects of acquisitions and currency effects.

* Risk and Financial Services revenue increased 2% and was $740.7 million and $727.6 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Revenue increased on a constant currency basis in our Risk Consulting and Software practice primarily due to
the addition of EMB, a non-life consulting and software company, that we acquired during our third quarter of fiscal year 2011.
Revenue for our Risk Consulting and Software practice, without the inclusion of EMB, decreased due to a decrease in project activity.
Revenue from our Brokerage practice decreased on a constant currency basis from decreases in pricing and volume as a result of
overall market conditions in the U.S. property and casualty insurance marketplace, which were only partially offset from new client
activity in Europe. Revenue from our Investment practice decreased on a constant currency basis compared to fiscal year 2010 due to
less activity in North America, a change in revenue mix in Europe and due to a strong Investment practice comparable in the prior
year. Revenue in our Risk and Financial Services segment decreased 2% on an organic basis which excludes the effects of acquisitions
and currency.

¢ Talent and Rewards revenue remained consistent and was $543.5 million and $540.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Revenues from our Executive Compensation practice continued to decrease as work moved to a new Board-
focused Executive Compensation boutique firm, Pay Governance, to help some of our clients address perceived independence issues.
After adjusting for the revenue that was transferred to Pay Governance and foi two small acquisitions in Dubai and Sweden, Talent
and Rewards experienced 7% constant currency revenue growth. On an organic basis, revenues in' all practices, Executive
Compensation; Rewards, Talent and Communication; and Data, Surveys and Technology, increased. The organic increase in revenue
for Executive Compensation is due to increased project activity in North America in both management and compensation committee
consulting and strong growth in Asia Pacific. Increases in revenue in Asia Pacific, particularly China, is attributed to local companies
expanding nationally, regionally and globally and implement executive pay plans to support growth. Organic revenue growth in
Reward, Talent and Communication was due to significant increases in all geographic regions especially in Asia. We also experienced
organic revenue growth in our Data, Surveys and Technology practice due to growth in data and surveys in all geographic regions,
especially in Asia.

Salaries and Employee Benefits

Salaries and employee benefits were $2.0 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 compared to $2.1 billion for the fiscal year ended
2010, a decrease of $103.1 million, or 5%. The decrease is principally due to decreases in discretionary compensation, pension
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and employer related taxes partially offset by an increase in other employee benefits. As a percentage of revenue, salaries and employee
benefits decreased to 63% for fiscal year 2011 from 67% for fiscal year 2010. - :

Professional and Subcontracted Services

Professional and subcontracted services used in consulting operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $246.3 million, compared to
$243.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, an increase of $2.6 million, or 1%. The increase was principally due to increased use of
external service providers to supplement our day-to-day operations. Professional and subcontracted services were 8% of revenue for fiscal year
2011 and 2010.

Occupancy

Occupancy expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $144.2 million compared to $146.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, a decrease of $2.5 million, or 2%. This decrease is principally due to the reduction of leased office space resulting from the Merger. As a
percentage of revenue, occupancy expense decreased to 4% for fiscal year 2011 from 5% for fiscal year 2010.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $281.6 million, compared to $268.8 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, an increase of $12.8 million, or 5%. This increase is primarily due to increases in travel and entertainment expenses,
general office costs as well as increases in promotions offset by decreases in professional liability expense as a result of a reduction in reserves
for specific claims. As a percentage of revenue, general and administrative expenses increased to 9% for fiscal year 2011 from 8% for fiscal
year 2010.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $130.6 million, compared to $131.6 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, a decrease of $1.0 million, or 1%. The decrease results primarily from the change in the average exchange rates used
to translate our expenses incurred in British pounds sterling and the Euro. On a constant currency basis, depreciation and amortization expense
increased principally due to an increase in amortization of intangibles related to the Aliquant and EMB acquisitions in fiscal year 2011,
partially offset by a decrease in depreciation of fixed assets. As a percentage of revenue, depreciation and amortization expense was 4% for
fiscal years 2011 and 2010.

Transaction and Integration Expenses

Transaction and integration expenses incurred related to the Merger were $100.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 compared to
$103.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, a decrease of $2.8 million, or 3%. Transaction and integration expenses principally
consist of investment banker fees, regulatory filing expenses, integration consultants, as well as legal, accounting, marketing, and IT integration
expenses. As a percentage of revenue, transaction and integration expenses were 3% for fiscal year 2011 and 4% for fiscal year 2010.
Transaction and integration expenses are eliminated in the pro forma combined statements of operations because these costs will not have a
continuing impact.

Income / (Loss) From Affiliates

Income from affiliates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $1.1 million compared to loss from affiliates of $1.1 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010, an increase of $2.2 million, or 200%. During fiscal year 2011, we increased our effective ownership interest in Fifth
Quadrant Actuaries and Consultants Holdings (Pty) Ltd. (“Fifth Quadrant”) from 20% to 40%. As a result, 40% of Fifth Quadrant’s operating
results are included in our income from affiliates. Loss from affiliates for fiscal year 2010 includes our share of our affiliates’ losses as well as
an asset write-down of an equity affiliate. ‘

Interest Income

Interest income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $5.5 million, compared to $4.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The
increase is mainly due to a higher average cash balance in the current period compared to the prior period, combined with higher short-term
interest rates in Canada and Europe.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $12.5 million, compared to $12.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The increase was due to higher debt balances in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010.

Other Non-Operating Income

Other non-operating income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was $19.3 million, compared to $16.6 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. Included in fiscal year 2011 is a gain on the sale of eValue, a financial modeling software acquired from Towers Perrin in the
Merger. Included in historical other non-operating income for fiscal 2011 is a $9.4 million deferred payment we received related to a
divestiture by Towers Perrin in June 2009 before the closing of the Merger and a gain on divestiture of a technology. The first nine months of
fiscal 2010 included $5.0 million of payments received from the licensing of a brand name in conjunction with the sale of an investment.
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Pro Forma Financial Information for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenue

Towers Watson pro forma revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $3.2 billion, a decrease of $70.4 million, or 2%, from
$3.3 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

A comparison of pro forma segment revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, as compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is as
follows:

*  Benefits revenue increased less than 1% and was $1.8 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 compared to $1.8 billion for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Health and Group Benefits and Technology and Administration Solutions practices had single digit

increases year over year, which was partially offset by a less than 1% decrease in the Retirement practice that makes up the majority of
the segment’s revenue.

* Risk and Financial Services revenue decreased 4% and was $720.9 million and $750.4 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively. This decrease was a result of a decrease in revenue of the Risk Consulting and Software practice from fiscal
year 2009 to fiscal year 2010, which was partially offset by increases in revenue of the Investment and Brokerage practices in fiscal
year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009. ’ ' .

* Talent and Rewards revenue decreased 7% and was $538.8 million and $582.0 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in revenue from the Rewards, Talent and Communication
practice from fiscal year 2009 to fiscal year 2010. Executive Compensation practice also decreased slightly and was partially offset by
a single digit increase in Data, Surveys and Technology revenue for fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009,

Salaries and Employee Benefits

Salaries and employee benefits were $2.1 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 compared to $2.2 billion for the fiscal year ended
2009, a decrease of $90.3 million or 4%. On a constant currency basis, the decrease was principally due to a decrease in-base salary expense
and other employee benefits expense resulting from a 7% reduction in headcount, as well as fiscal year 2009 Towers Perrin principal bonuses,
partially offset by an increase in discretionary compensation and pension expenses. As a percentage of revenue, salaries and employee benefits
decreased to 67% for fiscal year 2010 from 69% for fiscal year 2009.

Professional and Subcontracted Services

Professional and subcontracted services used in consulting operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 were $243.8 million, compared to
$293.3 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, a decrease of $49.5 million, or 17%. The decrease results primarily from the change in
the average exchange rates used to translate our expenses incurred in British pounds sterling and the Euro. On a constant currency basis, the
decrease was principally due to a decrease in external service providers and reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of clients, primarily
attributable to the current economic environment. As a percentage of revenue, professional and subcontracted services decreased to 8% for
fiscal year 2010 from 9% for fiscal year 2009.

Occupancy

Occupancy expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $146.7 million compared to $144.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009, an increase of $2.3 million, or 2%. On a constant currency basis, the increase was the result of entering into new leases during the third
quarter of fiscal year 2009. As a percentage of revenue, occupancy expense increased.to 5% for fiscal year 2010 from 4% for fiscal year 2009.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30; 2010 were $268.8 million, compared to-$352.1 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, a decrease of $83.3 million, or 24%. On a constant currency basis, the most significant decreases were due to
decreases in professional liability expense as a result of a reduction in reserves for specific claims and recognized foreign exchange gains
primarily related to the re-measurement of short-term assets. Other decreases include travel expense, promotion.expense, and general office ..
expense. As a percentage of revenue, general and administrative expenses decreased to 8% for fiscal year 2010 from 11% for fiscal year 2009.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $131.6 million, compared to $136.5 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009, a decrease of $4.9 million, or 4%. The decrease results primarily from the change in the average exchange rates used
to translate our expenses incurred in British pounds sterling and the Euro. On a constant currency basis, ‘depreciation and amortization expense
increased principally due to an increase in amiortization of intangibles related to the Merger, partially offset by a decrease in depreciation of
fixed assets. As a percentage of revenue, depreciation and amortization expense was 4% for fiscal years 2010 and 2009. '

Transaction and Integration Expenses

Transaction and-integration expenses incurred related to the Merger were $103.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Transaction
and integration expenses principally consist of investment banker fees, regulatory filing expenses, integration consultants, as well as legal,
accounting, marketing, and IT integration expenses. As a percentage of revenue, transaction and integration expenses were 3% for fiscal year
2010. Transaction and integration expenses are eliminated ini the pro forma combined statements of operations because these costs will not
have a continuing impact. ‘ ’ ' ' ‘

(Loss) / Income From Affiliates

Loss from affiliates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $1.1 million compared to income from affiliates of $294 thousand for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009. Income from affiliates during the fiscal year 2009 included the loss associated with the sale of an investmeént by
Towers Perrin in June 2009. Loss from affiliates for the fiscal year 2010 includes. our share of our affiliates’ losses as well as an asset write-
down of an equity affiliate. : : ' . : " : . S

Interest Income

Interest inbome for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $4.7 millibn, 'comparéd to $8.6:million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The
decrease is mainly due to a lower average cash balance in the current period compared to the prior period, combined with lower short-term
interest rates in the United States and Europe.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $12.0 million, compared to $12.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.
The decrease was principally due to the decline in Libor. S :

Other Non-Operating Income

Other non-operating income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $16.6 million, compared to $19.8 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. The additional income in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2010 was principally due to contingent payments received
during fiscal year 2009 from an investment that was sold in June 2009, combined with other contingent payments received in fiscal year 2009.

Explanatory Note Regardihg Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations and pro forma analysis above have been provided to present illustrative combined
unaudited statements of operations for fiscal years-ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, giving effect to the business combination as if it had been -
completed on July 1, 2009. This presentation was for illustrative purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that might have
occurred had the business combination actually taken place as of the dates specified, or that may be expected to occur in the future.
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Historical Results of Towers Watson

The following sections of Management’s Discussion and Analy51s are based on actual results of the busmess and do not contain pro forma -
information. :

Liquidity and Capltal Resources

Our most significant sources of liquidity are funds generated by operatmg activities, available cash and cash equ1va1ents and our credit
facilities. Consistent with our liquidity position, management considers various alternative strategic uses of cash reserves including
acquisitions, dividends and stock buybacks, or any combmatlon of these options.

We believe that we have sufficient resources to fund operations beyond the next 12 months, mcluding $99.3 million payable in March 2012 in
principal and interest on the notes issued in connection with the tender offer we completed in June 2010. The key variables that we manage in
response to current and projected capital resource needs include credit facilities and short-term borrowing arrangements, working capital and
our stock repurchase program.

Our cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2011 totaled $528 9 million, compared to $435.9 million at June 30, 2010. The increase in cash from
June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2011 was principally attributable to cash flows from operations including an increase in net income.

Our cash and cash equivalents balance includes $76.7 million from the consolidated balance sheets of PCIC and SMIC, which is available for
payment of professional liability claims reserves. Asa resuit, we have a net $452.2 million of cash that is available for our use.

Our restricted cash at June 30, 2011 totaled $153.2 milhon, compared to $164.5 mlllion at June 30, 2010, of which $147.9 million is available
for payment of reinsurance premiums on behalf of reinsurance clients and an additional $5.3 million is held for payment of health and welfare
premiums on behalf of our clients.

Our non-U.S. operations are substantially self-sufficient for their working capital needs. As of June 30, 2011, $412 2 million of Towers
Watson’s total cash balance of $528.9 million was held outside of the United States. There are no significant repatriation restrictions other than
local or U.S. taxes associated with repatriation.

While we currently do not foresee a need to repatriate funds, should we requlre ‘more capital in the U.S. than is generated by our operations
locally, we could elect to repatriate funds held in foreign jurisdictions or raise capital in the U.S. through debt or equity issuances. These
alternatives could result in higher effective tax rates or increased interest expense.

Assets and liabilities associated with non-U.S. entiti¢s have been translated into U.S. dollars as of June 30, 2011, at U.S. dollar rates that
fluctuate compared to historical periods. As a result, cash flows derived from changes in the consolidated balance sheets include the 1mpact of
the change in foreign exchange translation rates. : :

Events that could temporarily change the historical cash flow dynamics discussed above include significant c}ianges in operating results,
material changes in geographic sources of cash, unexpected adverse impacts from litigation or future pension funding during periods of severe
downturn in the capital markets.

Cash Flows From/(Used in) Operating Activities.

Cash flows from operating activities was $541.2 million for fiscal year 2011 compared to cash flows used in operating activities of
$84.6 million for fiscal year 2010. This increase of $625.9 million is primarily attributable to the following:

* a$77.7 million i 1ncrcase in net income for fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010;

*  a$534.2 million increase in cash flows from an increase in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred income. The fiscal year
2010 comparable period experienced a decrease in cash flows due to the payment of Watson Wyatt’s bonus related to both the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009 and the six months ended December 31, 2009, as well as, Towers Perrin’s bonus related to calendar year
December 31, 2009.

The allowance for doubtful accounts increased $4.7 million from June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2011. The number of days of accounts receivable
increased to 78 at June 30, 2011 compared to 69 at June 30, 2010. :
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Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities.

Cash flows used in investing activities for fiscal year 2011 were $200.9 million, compared to $371.4 million of cash flows from investing
activities for fiscal year 2010. The decrease is due to $141.9 million of cash paid for the acquisitions of EMB and Aliquant in fiscal 2011 less
$10.3 million cash acquired in the acquisitions.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities.

Cash flows used in financing activities for fiscal year 2011 were $272.7 million, compared to $49.1 m11110n for fiscal year 2010 The decrease
was due to $200 million repayment of notes payable, plus mterest in fiscal year 2011. ‘

Capital Commitments

Expenditures of capital were $76.9 million for fiscal year 2011.

Dividends

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, our board of directors approVed the payment of a quarterly cash dividend ih the amount of $0.075
per share. Total dividends paid in fiscal year June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $21.6 million and $15.2 million, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligétions

Remaining payments by fiscal year due as of June 30, 2011

. : Less than More Than
Contractual Cash Obligations (in thousands) Total 1 Year E 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Notes Payable and accrued interest* PO - $ 99,341 $ 99,341 3 — $ - — $ —
Lease Commitments . 601,226 . 105,107 180,236 132,370 183,512 -
- -$700,567 $204.,448 . $180,236 $132,370 © $183,512

*  “The $99.3 million is due in March 2012. "

Operating Leases. We lease office space under operating lease agreements with terms typically averaging 10 years. We have determined that
there is not a large concentration of leases that will expire in any one fiscal year. Consequently, management anticipates that any increase in
future rent expense on leases will be mainly market driven. Intangible assets and liabilities were recognized for the difference between the
contractual cash obligations shown above and the estimated market rates at the time of the acquisitions. The resulting intangibles will amortize
to rent expense but do not impact the amounts shown above since there is no change to our contractual cash obligations.

Pension Contribution. Contributions to our various pension plans for fiscal year 2012 are projected to be $33.2 million.

Uncertain Tax Positions. The table above does not include liabilities for uncertain tax positions under ASC 740, Income Taxes. The settlement
period for the $39.8 million noncurrent portion of the liability cannot be reasonably estimated since it depends on the timing and possible”
outcomes of tax examinations with various tax authorities.

Contingent Consideration from Acquisitions. The table above does not include liabilities for contingent consideration for our Aliquant and
EMB acquisitions in fiscal year 2011. We expect to pay out approximately $1 million and £2.4 million in fiscal year 2012 and £2.4 million per
year for fiscal year 2013 through fiscal year 2016 related to these contingent consideration provisions in our agreements and subject to
performance requirements on behalf of the sellers.

Indebtedness
Subordinated Notes due January 2011

On December 30, 2009, in connection with the Merger and the Class R Elections as described in Note 2, Towers Watson entered into an
indenture with the trustee for the-issuance of Towers Watson Notes due January 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $200 million. The
Towers Watson Notes due January 2011 were issued on January 6, 2010, bearing interest from January 4, 2010 at a fixed per-annum rate of
2.0%, and matured on January 1, 2011. The indenture contained limited operating covenants, and obligations under the Towers Watson Notes .
due January 2011 were subordinated to and junior in right of payment to the prior payment in full in cash of all Senior Debt (as defined in the
indenture) on the terms set forth in the Indenture. On January 3, 2011 (the first business day
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following the note maturity date), Towers Watson repaid both principal and interest on the Notes which was funded in part by a $75 million
borrowing under our Senior Credit Facility. )

Subordinated Notes due March 2012

On June 15, 2010, in connection with an offer to exchange shares of Class B-1 Common Stock for unsecured subordinated notes, Towers
Watson entered into an indenture with the trustee for the issuance of Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 in the aggregate principal amount
of $97.3 million. The Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 were issued on June 29, 2010, bearing interest from June 15, 2010 at a fixed per-
annum rate, compounded quarterly on the “interest reset dates,” equal to the greater of (i) 2.0%, or (ii) 120.0% of the short-term applicable
federal rate listed under the quarterly column, in effect at the applicable “interest reset date.” The Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 will
mature on March 15, 2012 and are included in the notes payable balance on our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2011. Obligations
under the Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 are subordinated to and junior in right of payment to the prior payment in full in cash of all
Senior Debt (as defined in the indenture).

Towers Watson Senior Credit Facility

On January 1, 2010, in connection with the Merger, Towers Watson and certain subsidiaries entered into a three-year, $500 million revolving
credit facility with a syndicate of banks (the “Senior Credit Facility”), which expires on December 31, 2012. Borrowings under the Senior
Credit Facility bear interest at a spread to either Libor or the Prime Rate. We are charged a quarterly commitment fee, currently 0:5% of the
Senior Credit Facility, which varies with our financial leverage and is paid on the unused portion of the Senior Credit Facility. Obligations
under the Senior Credit Facility are guaranteed by Towers Watson and all of its domestic subsidiaries (other than PCIC) and are secured by a
pledge of 65% of the voting stock and 100% of the non-voting stock of Towers Perrin Luxembourg Holdings S.A.R.L.

The Senior Credit Facility contains customary representations and warranties and affirmative and negative covenants. The Senior Credit
Facility requires Towers Watson to maintain certain financial covenants that include 2 minimum Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio and a
maximum Consolidated Leverage Ratio (which terms in each case are defined in the Senior Credit Facility). In-addition, the Senior Credit
Facility contains restrictions on the ability of Towers Watson to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness; pay dividends; make
distributions; create liens on assets; make investments, loans or advances; make acquisitions; dispose of property; engage in sale-leaseback
transactions; engage in mergers or consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and make
changes in lines of businesses. As of June 30, 2011, we were in compliance with our covenants. :

As of June 30, 2011 and 20‘10, Towers Watson had no borrowings outstanding under the Senior Credit Facility.

Letters of Credit under the Senior Credit Facility .

As of June 30, 2011, Towers Watson had standby letters of credit totaling $24.9 million associated with our captive insurance companies in the
event that we fail to meet our financial obligations. Additionally, Towers Watson had $1.9 million of standby letters of credit covering various .
other existing or potential business obligations. The aforementioned letters of credit are issued under the Senior Credit Facility, and therefore
reduce the amount that can be borrowed under the Senior Credit Facility by the outstanding amount of these standby letters. of credit.

Additional Borrowings, Letters of Credit and Guarantees not part of the Senior Credit Facility

Towers Watson Consultoria Ltda. (Brazil) has a bilateral credit facility with a major bank totaling Brazilian Real (BRL) 6.5 million (U.S.
$4.2 million). As of June 30, 2011, a total of BRL $5.3 million (U.S. $3.4 million) was outstanding under this facility. ‘

Towers Watson has also provided a $5.0 million Australian dollar-denominated letter of credit (U.S. $5.4 million) to an Australian
governmental agency as required by the local regulations. The estimated fair- market value of these letters of credit is immaterial because they
have never been used, and we believe that the likelihood of future usage is remote. ’

Towers Watson also has $6.5 million of letters of guarantee from major banks in support of office leases and performance under existing or
prospective contracts.

Risk Management

As a part of our risk management program, we purchase Ccustomary commercial insurance policies, including commercial general liability and
claims-made professional liability insurance. Our professional liability insurance currently includes a self-insured retention of $1 million per
claim, and covers professional liability claims against us, including the cost of defending such claims.
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Effective July 1, 2010, Stone Mountain Insurance Company (“SMIC”), a wholly-owned captive insurance company, has provided us with

$50 million of professional liability insurance coverage per claim and in the aggregate, including the cost of defending such claims, above the
$1 million self-insured retention. SMIC secured $25 million of reinsurance coverage from unaffiliated reinsurance companies in excess of the
$25 million SMIC retained layer. Excess insurance attaching above the SMIC coverage is provided by various unaffiliated commercial
insurance companies. Because we have a self-insured retention for each claim and because Stone Mountain is wholly-owned by us, our primary
errors and omissions risk is self-insured. We reserve for contingent liabilities based on ASC 450, Contingencies, when it is determined that a
liability, inclusive of defense costs, is probable and reasonably estimable. The contingent liabilities recorded are primarily developed
actuarially. i

For the policy period beginning July 1, 2011 and ending July 1, 2012, our professional liability insurance includes a self-insured retention of
$1 million per claim. For this policy period, Towers Watson also retains $10 million in the aggregate above the $1 million self-insured
retention per claim. SMIC provides us with $40 million of coverage per claim and in the aggregate, above the retentions. SMIC secured

$25 million of reinsurance from unaffiliated reinsurance companies in excess of the $15 million SMIC retained layer. Excess insurance
attaching above the SMIC coverage is provided by various unaffiliated commercial insurance companies. Because of the $1 million self-
insured retention per claim and the additional $10 million aggregate retention above, and because Stone Mountain is wholly-owned by us, our
primary errors and omissions risk is self-insured.

Before the Merger, Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin each obtained substantial professional liability insurance from an affiliated captive
insurance company, Professional Consultants Insurance Company (“PCIC”). A limit of $50 million per claim and in the aggregate was
provided by PCIC subject to a $1 million per claim self-insured retention and coverage was structured substantially similarly to the coverage
currently provided by SMIC. PCIC secured reinsurance of $25 million attaching above the $25 million PCIC retained layer. In addition, both
legacy companies carried excess insurance from unaffiliated commercial insurance companies above the self-insured retention and the
coverage provided by PCIC.

Before the Merger, Watson Wyatt accounted for its share of PCIC’s earnings using the equity method. Our ownership interest in PCIC is
72.86% post-Merger. As a consequence, PCIC’s results of operations are consolidated into our results of operations. Although the PCIC
insurance policies for Towers Watson’s fiscal year 2010 continue to cover professional liability claims above a $1 million per claim self-
insured retention, the consolidation of PCIC will effectively net PCIC’s premium income against our premium expense for the first $25 million
of loss above the self-insured retention for each legacy company. Accordingly, the impact of PCIC’s reserve development may result in
fluctuations in our earnings. PCIC ceased issuing insurance policies effective July 1, 2010 and at that time entered into a run-off mode of
operation. Our shareholder agreements with PCIC could require additional payments to PCIC if development of claims significantly exceeds
prior expectations. If these circumstances were to occur, we would record a liability at the time it becomes probable and reasonably estimable.

We provide for the self-insured retention where specific estimated losses and loss expenses for known claims are considered probable and
reasonably estimable. Although we maintain professional liability insurance coverage, this insurance does not cover claims made after
expiration of our current policies of insurance. Generally accepted accounting principles require that we record a liability for incurred but not
reported (“IBNR”) professional liability claims if they are probable and reasonably estimable, and for which we have not yet contracted for
insurance coverage. We use actuarial assumptions to estimate and record our IBNR liability. As of June 30, 2011, we had a $274.8 million
IBNR liability balance. To the extent our captive insuance companies, PCIC and SMIC, expect losses to be covered by a third party they record
areceivable for the amount expected to be recovered. This receivable is classified in other current or other noncurrent assets in our
consolidated balance sheet.

As stated above, commencing July 1, 2010, Towers Watson obtained primary insurance for errors and omissions professional liability risks
from SMIC on a claims-made basis. SMIC has issued a policy of insurance substantially similar to the policies historically issued by PCIC.

Insurance market conditions for us and our industry have varied in recent years, but the long-term trend has been increasing premium cost.
Although the market for insurance is presently robust, trends toward higher self-insured retentions, constraints on aggregate excess coverage
for this class of professional liability risk and financial difficulties which have, over the past few years, been faced by several longstanding
E&O carriers are anticipated to recur periodically, and to be reflected in our future annual insurance renewals. As a result, we will continue to
assess our ability to secure future insurance coverage, and we cannot assure that such coverage will continue to be available indefinitely in the
event of specific adverse claims experience, adverse loss trends, market capacity constraints or other factors.

In light of increasing litigation worldwide, including litigation against professionals, we have a policy that all client relationships be
documented by engagement letters containing specific risk mitigation clauses that were not included in all historical client agreements. Certain
contractual provisions designed to mitigate risk may not be legally enforceable in litigation involving breaches of fiduciary duty or certain other
alleged errors or omissions, or in certain jurisdictions. We may incur significant legal expenses in defending against litigation. With the
exception of our brokerage business, nearly 100% of our U.S. and U.K. corporate clients have signed engagement letters including some if not
all of our preferred risk mitigation clauses, and processes to maintain that protocol in the United States and the United Kingdom, and to
complete it elsewhere, are underway.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Adopted

ASC 810, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51, requires the recognition of a
noncontrolling interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated financial statements and separate from the parent’s equity. The amount
of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated net income. It also amends certain consolidation
procedures for consistency with the requirements of ASC 805, Business Combinations. The provisions also include expanded disclosure
requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interest. We adopted these provisions on July 1, 2009. As a result, our
non-controlling interest of $1.0 million as of June 30, 2009, which was previously included in other non-current liabilities, was reclassified to
non-controlling interest in total equity. In addition, our non-controlling interest of $1.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2010, which was
previously included in (loss)/income from affiliates, was reclassified to net (loss)/income attributable to non-controlling interests in our results
of operations. ‘

Not yet adopted

On December 17, 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2010-28, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic
350): When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts (a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force), which (1) does not prescribe a specific method of calculating the carrying value of a reporting unit in
the performance of step 1 of the goodwill impairment test and (2) requires entities with a zero or negative carrying value to assess, considering
qualitative factors such as but not limited to those listed in ASC 350-20-35-30 whether it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment
exists. If an entity concludes that it is more likely than not that an impairment of goodwill exists, the entity must perform step 2 of the goodwill
impairment test. These provisions are effective for impairment tests performed in our fiscal year 2012, Upon adoption, if any of our reporting
units have a zero or negative carrying value, we must assess, on the basis of current facts and circumstances, whether it is more likely than not
that an impairment of our goodwill exists. If so, we would perform step 2 of the goodwill impairment test on the day of adoption and record the
impairment charge, if any, as a cumulative-effect adjustment through beginning retained earnings. We are currently evaluating the impact, if
any, on our financial position or results of operations of adopting this provision.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which revised
the manner in which entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements. The new guidance removes the presentation options in
ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, and requires entities to report components of comprehensive income in either (1) a continuous statement of
comprehensive income or (2) two separate but consecutive statements. The ASU does not change the items that must be reported in other
comprehensive income. For public entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. We are still evaluating the impact of the change in presentation to our consolidated
statement of operations and our consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and will adopt the new presentation in our fiscal
2013 filings.

Item 7A. Quantitétive and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course of business. These risks include interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange and
translation risk. :

Interest Rate Risk

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing yields without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we maintain our portfolio in mainly short- term securities that are recorded on the balance sheet at
fair value. =~ : : ‘

Foreign Currency Risk

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, 48.7% of our revenue was denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, typically in the local
currency of our foreign operations. These operations also incur most of their expenses in the local currency. Accordingly, our foreign -
operations use the local currency as their functional currency and our primary international operations use the British pound sterling, Canadian
dollar and the Euro. Our intemnational operations are subject to risks typical of international operations, including, but not limited to, differing
economic conditions, changes in political climate, differing tax structures, other regulations and restrictions, and foreign exchange rate
volatility. Accordingly, our future results could be adversely impacted by changes in these or other factors. At June 30, 2011, a uniform 10%
strengthening in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the currencies in which our transactions are denominated would result in a decrease in
net income attributable to controlling interests of $13.0 million, or 7.1%,
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for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This theoretical calculation assumes that each exchange rate would change in the same direction
relative to the U.S. dollar. This calculation is not indicative of our actual experience in foreign currency transactions.

Translation Exposure

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely impact our consolidated financial position as well as our consolidated results of operations
and may adversely impact our financial position as the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars in
preparing our consolidated balance sheet. Additionally, foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely impact our consolidated results of
operations as exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in currencies other than our functional currencies result in gains and
Josses that are reflected in our consolidated statement of operations. Certain of Towers Watson’s foreign brokerage subsidiaries, primarily in
the United Kingdom, receive revenue in currencies (primarily in U.S. dollars) that differ from their functional currencies. To reduce this
variability, Towers Watson uses foreign exchange forward contracts and over-the-counter options to hedge the foreign exchange risk of the
forecasted collections for up to a maximum of two years in the future. See Note 7, “Derivative Financial Instruments” in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements contained on this Form 10-K for a further discussion of our foreign currency forwards and their fair market -
value.

We consolidate our international subsidiaries by converting them into U.S. dollars in accdrdance with generally acceptable accounting »
principles of foreign currency translation. The results of operations and our financial position will fluctuate when there is a change in foreign
currency exchange rates.

'

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Our consolidated financial statements, together with the related notes and the report of independent registered public accounting firm, are set
forth on the pages indicated in Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the chief executive officer, or CEO, and chief financial
officer, or CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our management, including the CEO and CFO, concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2011 in providing reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in our periodic
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and (2) accumulated and communicated to our management to allow their timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting in the quarter ended June 30, 2011 that materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, and overseen by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
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(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. ‘

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because of its inherent
limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in
judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures, Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or
improper management override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting
process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the company. Management
has used the framework set forth in the report entitled Internal Control — Integrated Framework published by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission to evaluate the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting,
Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that the company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30,
2011. )

The effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Towers Watson & Co.
New York, New York

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Towers Watson & Co. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2011,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for |
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit. : s ‘ :

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements. ‘ s ' B

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2011, based
on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. '

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated -
financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 of the Company and our report dated August’
29, 2011 expressed. an unqualified opinion on those financial statement and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
August 29, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
Part III.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Audit Committee of the Registrant.

Information with respect to the executive officers of the Company is provided in Part I, Ttem 1 above under the heading “Executive Officers of
the Company”. Information as to the individuals serving on the board of directors of the Company is set forth below. o

The remaining information required by this item will be included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal year, and that information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Directors of the Company
John J. Gabarro ‘ . = : . o

Professor Emeritus, Harvard Business School

Victor F. Ganzi

Retired Chief Executive Officer, The Hearst Corporation

John J. Haley

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mark V. Mactas
President, Chief Operating Officer, Deputy Chair of the Board of Directors

Mark Maselli

Managing Director, Health and Group Benefits

Brendan R. O’Neill
Retired Chief Executive Officer, Imperial Chemical Industries PLC

Linda D. Rabbitt

Founder and Chief Executive Officer, Rand Construction Corporation, and Lead Director

Gilbert T. Ray
Retired Partner, O’Melveny & Myers LLP

Paul Thomas

Senior Executive, Rank North America

Wilhelm Zeller

Retired Chief Executive Officer, Hannover Re Group

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The response to this item will be included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, and that
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The response to this item will be included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, and that
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The response to this item will be included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, and that
information is incorporated herein by this reference.
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Item 14. Principal Auditor Fees and Services.

The response to this item will be included in a definitive proxy statement to be filed w1th1n 120 days after the end of our fiscal year and that
information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

a) Financial Information

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements of Towers Watson & Co.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Financial Statements: i
Consolidated Statements of Operatlons for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2011
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2011 and 2010
* Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2011
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equlty for each of the three years in the perlod ended June 30, 2011
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments .

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2011

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves (Schedule 1I)’
All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the requlred information i is shown in the financial statements or
notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
See (b) below.
b) Exhibits _
See Exhibit Index on page 100.

c) Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or-15(d) of the Securities Exchange' Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. EEE :

TOWERS WATSON & CO.
(Registrant)

Date: August 29, 2011 By: /s/ John J. Haley
' John J. Haley _
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following, persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. S e o

Signature : . . . Title . . :i)ate

s/ John J. Haley ___ Chief Executive Officer and Director . August 29, 2011

John J. Haley

/s/ Mark V. Mactas President, Chief Operating Officer and Director August 29, 2011
Mark V. Mactas . : : : - : o : )

/s/ Roger F. Millay Chief Financial Officer August 29, 2011
Roger F. Millay

/s/ Peter L. Childs Principal Accounting Officer August 29, 2011
Peter L. Childs :

/s/ John J. Gabarro ’ Director August 29, 2011
John J. Gabarro

/s/ Victor F. Ganzi Director August 29, 2011
Victor F. Ganzi

/s/ Mark Maselli Director August 29, 2011
Mark Maselli

/s/ Brendan R. O’Neill Director _ August 29, 2011

Brendan R. O’Neill

/s/ Linda D. Rabbitt Director August 29, 2011
Linda D. Rabbitt

/s/ Gilbert T. Ray v Director August 29, 2011
Gilbert T. Ray

/s/ Paul D. Thomas ‘ Director August 29, 2011
Paul D. Thomas

/s/ Wilhelm Zeller Director August 29, 2011
Wilhelm Zeller
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING F IRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Towers Watson & Co.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Towers Watson & Co. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended June 30, 2011. Our audits also.included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the financial statement and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as évaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Towers Watson & Co.
and subsidiaries at June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Commiitee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated August 29, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

' /s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

McLean, Virginia
August 29, 2011
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TOWERS WATSON & CO.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share data)

Year Ended June 30,
’ 2011 2010 2009

Revenue ‘ S T ' $3,259,451 $2,387,829 $1,676,029
Costs of providing services: o o o ,

Salaries and employee benefits -~ 2,043,063 1,540,417 1,029,299

Professional and subcontracted services 246,348 163,848 119,323

Occupancy o ) B B R 144,191 . 109,454 . 72,566

General and administrative expenses . 281,576 220,937 172,010

Depreciation and amortization ) e ) 130,575 101,084 73,448

Transaction and integration expenses 100,535 87,644 —

2,946,288 2,223,384 1,466,646

Income from operations . 313,163 164,445 209,383
Income/(loss) from affiliates ~ o ' ' - . - 1,081 (1,274) 8350
Interest income 5,523 2,950 2,022
Interest expense . . : IR o S 12,475) - - (7,508) - (2,778)
Other non-operating income - 19,349 11,304 4,926
Income before income taxes : S 326,641 169917 - 221,903
Provision for income taxes 129,916 50,907 75,276
Net income before non-controlling interests . 196,725 119,010 146,627
Net income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 2,288 (1,587) 169
Net income attributable to controlling interests - $ 194,437 $ 120,597 $§ 146,458
Earnings per share:
Net income attributable to controlling interests — basic $ 2.62 $ 2.04 $ 3.43
Net income attributable to controlling interests — diluted $ 2.62 3 2.03 $ 3.42
Weighted average shares of common stock, basic (000) 74,075 59,257 42,690
Weighted average shares of common stock, diluted (000) 74,139 59,372 42,861

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




TOWERS WATSON & CO.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Thousands of U.S. dollars, except share data)

June 30,
2011 2010

Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents _ $ 528923 $ 435,927
Restricted cash 153,154 164,539 -
Short-term investments 43,682 51,009
Receivables from clients: :

Billed, net of allowances of $12,636 and $7,975 502,910 421,602

Unbilled, at estimated net realizable value - ' 276,020 215,912

778,930 637,514

Other current assets L 145,862 156,312

Total current assets - 1,650,551 1,445,301
Fixed assets, net ‘ o . . 252,343 227,308
Deferred income taxes 188,569 344,481
Goodwill ' 1,943,574 1,717,295
Intangible assets, net - 694,922 683,487
Other assets : : ’ ' 368,991 155,745
Total Assets $5,098,950 $4,573,617
Liabilities o o
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred income $ 683,810 $ 409,308
Reinsurance payables _ 147,902 164,539
Note payable 99,341 201,967
Other current liabilities ' ' 247 424 189,966

Total current liabilities ) ' 1,178,477 965,780
Revolving credit facility , S . — =
Accrued retirement benefits 784,559 1,061,557
Professional liability claims reserve ) 312,108 335,034
Other noncurrent liabilities . 221,136 246,574
Total Liabilities 2,496,280 2,608,945
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity
Class A Common Stock — $.01 par value: 300,000,000 shares authorized; 57,897,889 and 47,160,497

issued and 56,949,548 and 47,160,497 outstanding 579 472
Class B Common Stock — $.01 par value: 93,500,000 shares authorized; 16,651,890 and 27,043,196 issued v

and 16,651,890 and 27,043,196 outstanding 167 270
Additional paid-in capital 1,773,285 1,679,624
Treasury stock, at cost — 948,341 and 0 shares : . (52,360) —
Retained earnings 883,161 711,570
Accumulated other comprehenswe loss ' (13,305) (436,329)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,591,527 1,955,607
Non-controlling interest : 11,143 9,065
Total Equity 2,602,670 1,964,672
Total Liabilities and Total Equity ' $5,098,950 $4,573,617

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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TOWERS WATSON & CO.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:
Net income before non-controlling interests .
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from/(used in) operating activities:
Provision for doubtful receivables from clients
Depreciation '
Amortization of intangible assets
Provision/(benefit) for deferred income taxes
~ Equity from affiliates
Stock-based compensation
Other, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (net of business acquisitions)
Receivables from clients
Other current assets
_ Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred income
Restricted cash
-Reinsurance payables
Accrued retirement benefits
Professional liability claims reserves
Other current liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Income tax related accounts
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities:
Cash paid for business acquisitions
Cash acquired from businéss acquisitions
Purchases of fixed assets
Capitalized software costs
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities
Redemptions of held-to-maturity securities
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Redemption of available-for-sale securities
Investment in affiliates
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from divestitures
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities:
Borrowings under credit facility
Repayments under credit facility
Financing of credit facility
Repayments of notes payable
Dividends paid
Repurchases of common stock
Tax payment on vested shares
Issuances of common stock and excess tax benefit
Cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on cash
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds

Notes payable issued in connection with the Merger

Notes payable issued in connection with the tender offer

Issuance of stock in conjunction with the acquisitions of EMB and the Merger
Contingent payments accrued in conjunction with the acquisitions of EMB and Aliquant
Common stock associated with vesting of Restricted A Shares

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009
$ 196,725 $ 119,010 $ 146,627
13,004 11,759 5,355
78,461 69,684 59,556
52,114 31,400 13,892
14,448 (5,134) 14,205
(622) 869 (8,080)
79,922 52,953 932
(10,209) (9,975) 2,474)
(98,468) (41,339) 57,991
18,728 (2,205) © 3,279
(39,343) 50,854 (3,497)
238,824 (295,402) (28,717)
22,167 (49,756) —
(20,431) 49,756 —
(55,859) (71,292) (42,069)
(28,746) 16,171 (5,900)
8,857 20,874 4,138
20,944 (24,050) 10,631 -
50,721 (8,801) 1,678
541,237 (84,624) 227,547
(141,885) (200,025) (1,185)
10,349 603,208 —
(76,859) (25,752) (39,195)
(22,487) (19,632) (23,374)
(14,295) - S
14,295 — —
(54,696) (17,789) —
72,703 16,191 —
(5,805) — (2,302)
— 10,749 —
17,772 4,486 4,926
(200,908) 371,436 (61,130)
75,000 126,333 267,912
(75,000) (125,650) (267,912)
— (5,679) —
(200,000) — —
(21,599) (15,249) (12,785)
(30,646) (34,922) - (77,443)
(26,596) — —
6,158 . 6,068 6,509
(272,683) (49,099) (83,719
25,350 (11,618) 2,502
92,996 226,095 85,200
435,927 209,832 124,632
$ 528,923 $ 435,927 $ 209,832
$ 4,268 $ 2,595 $ 2,780
$ 64,117 $ 58,624 $ 66,480
$ — $ 200,000 $ —
$ — $ 98,469 $ —
$ 11,250 $1,357,379 $ —
$ 20,026 $ — $ —
26,248 — —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Balance as of June 30, 2009 -,
Comprehensive Income .

o+ ‘Netincome .: ;. R

Foreign currency uanslatxon adjustm ent,
net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Class A Common Stock: ,
Watson Wyatt Cash dividends.declared -
Repurchases of common.stock
Issuances of common stock and excess
tax benefit
Stock-based compensation v
Retirement of m'.asury stock
Balance as of December 31, 2009
Merger of Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt: ;
Class A Common Stock:
Towers Watson slock issued: for
. consideration of Merger: .

Issuance of Class A fesfricted shares '
Issuance of Class B1-B4 shares .,

Cash dividends declared
Issuances of common stock and excess
tax benefit
Stock-based compensation ..
Reptrchases of Class B-1 shares from
tenderoffer *. . .’ Gl
Acceleration of Class B shares to Class A
shares
Comprehensive Income:
Net income :
Additional I‘l'lll‘|ll‘|'\\ll1'l pensmn liab 'ly, net
;7 oeftax PR
Hedge effectiveness, net of tax
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, net of tax
Fomgn currency translation adjustment,
net of tax
Total ¢omprehensive Toss
Balance as of June 30, 2010
Comprehensive Income
Net income

- Additional mlmmum pension habxllty, net. ...

tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of tax
Unrealized loss on available for sale
securities, net of tax
Hedge effectiveness; net of tax
Total Eémp:éhens’i’ve income
Repurchases of common stock
Shares received for employee taxes upon
. conversion of Restricted A shares . :';

Exercises of stock options and pumhases under

our ESPP . .
Class A Common Stock:
Cash dividends declared -
Issuances of common stock and excess -
tax benefits
Stock-based compensauon

Conversion of Reslnc(ed A shares to Class A

shares ' -
Conversion of Class' B 1 shares toClassA .
shares’ '
Issuance of Class B-3 and B-4 shares for
* acquisition” " h
Acceleration of Class B sha:es lo Class A
shares’
Adjustment to repurchases of Class B-1 shares
from tender offer
Secondary offering conversion of Class B1
shares to Class A shares

Balance as of June 30, 2011 .

TOWERS WATSON & CO.
‘Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(In Thqy§ands of U.S. dollars and Number of Shares in Thousands)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Class A Class B Accumulated
Common Class A Common Class B Additional Treasury Other Non-
Stock Common Stock Common Paid-in Stock, Retained C ive Controlling
Qutstanding Stock Outstanding Stock Capital at Cost Eamnings Loss Interest Total
.. 42,657, $. 438 .. — .. .S, § 452938 $(63.299) $608,634 ° 8 . (145,073) 8 = $ 853,638
— — - = — 62,468 . — — 62,468
_ — i — — — (50,218) - (50,218)
N . : o . 12,250
i LEIR — — — (6,364) = — (6,364)
(792) — — .o — - (492 - - - (34,922)
337 — — — (2,090) 17,640 — — — 15,550
C— — — — 69 — - — —_ 69
— 16)° - — . (80,565) . . _ 80581 | — — — —
$ 422 = 5 — $ 370352 s — $664,738 $  (195291) S — $ 840221
4249 3 — = a0 — — ] = — 43,729
29,483 1294 1313356 . — L= i — — 1,313,650
— — — (11,297 — — (11,297
— - @2.210) —_ B - — (2,203)
, — - - . - 52884 - = A — — 52,884
.- BT _2267):, 0 (24 (98,444) - : = . = R — - (98,468)
173 — (173) — — — — ' = — —
— — — — = 58,129 - 9,065 67,194
— = . = — kN kv (163,105)" = (163,105)
_ _ — - — — — (1,986) - (1,986)
— — — — — — - 98 - 98
- (76,045) (76,045)
i A . : (173,844)
47,160 $ 472 27,043 $ 270 $1,679,624 D $711,570 $  (436,329) $ 9,065 $ 1,964,672
_ _ _ - , . _ 194,437 = 2,288 196,725
s o - _ = _ 263,903 — 263,903
— = - - 192 — — 154,995 — 155,187
S - Tl
—_ — — — — — — 968 210) 758
— — — — — — — 3,158 — 3,158
) ) 619,731
B — — - — — © (30,646) — — — (30.,646)
- et OV — - (26,596) . - . — —_ —_ (26,596)
- — = — - . 4,882 R - - 4,882
e e . - - - _ 28567 _ — (22,846)
i 1 ’ L e 1,097 o — — — " 1,008
- — ' — — 79,922 - = - - 79,922
a9 — _ — —_ —-— — —_ =
5,642 56 (56) - — — - — —
3 r— — 228 2 11,248 — — : — — 11,250
83 1 ey — - - —_ — - 1
= — T . 1202 —_ - — — 1,202
".a921 ) @921 (49) — — _ _ _ _
i 57.898:.; s 167 $1773285 '$(52,360) . - * $883,161 $ 13,305) $ 11,143 - $2.602670



TOWERS WATSON & CO.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts in thousands except per share data)

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

On January 1, 2010, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, as amended by Amendment No. 1 (the “Merger Agreement”), Watson -
Wyatt Worldwide, Inc. (“Watson Wyatt”) and Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc. (“Towers Perrin”) combined their businesses through two
simultaneous mergers (the “Merger”) and became wholly owned subsidiaries of Jupiter Saturn Holding Company, which subsequently changed
its name to Towers Watson & Co. (“Towers Watson”, the “Company” or “we”). Since the consummation of the Merger, Towers Perrin
changed its name to Towers Watson Pennsylvania Inc., and Watson Wyatt changed its name to Towers Watson Delaware Holdings Inc.
However, for ease of reference, we continue to use the legacy Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt names throughout this Report.

Although the business combination of Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin was a “merger of equals”, generally accepted accounting principles
require that one of the combining entities be identified as the acquirer by reviewing facts and circumstances as of the acquisition date. Watson
Wyatt was determined to be the accounting acquirer. As such, the historical results of Watson Wyatt through December 31, 2009 have become
those of the new registrant, Towers Watson. The consolidated financial statements of Towers Watson as of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2011 include the results of Towers Perrin’s operations. The consolidated financial statements of Towers Watson as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 include the results of Towers Perrin’s operations beginning January 1, 2010. The consolidated financial
statements of Towers Watson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 include only the results of Watson Wyatt.

Nature of the Business — Towers Watson is a leading global professional services company that helps oi‘ganizations improve performance
through effective people, risk and financial management. We offer solutions in the areas of employee benefits, talent management, rewards,
and risk and capital management. Our fiscal year ends on June 30th. :

Principles of Consolidation — Our consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our majority-owned and controlled
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. Investments in affiliated companies over which we have the ability to
exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Our estimates, judgments and assumptions are continually evaluated based on available information and experience.
Because of the use of estimates inherent in the financial reporting process, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used
when accounting for revenue recognition, allowances for billed and unbilled receivables from clients, discretionary compensation, income
taxes, pension and post-retirement assumptions, incurred but not reported claims, and goodwill and intangible assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — We consider all instruments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity
that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash — Our restricted cash balance as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 includes $147.9 million and $164.5 million, respectively, of cash
received from our clients and reinsurers in connection with our reinsurance brokerage business. This cash is under our control such that we
direct the investment of this cash and retain the interest income but is restricted to current operation of this business, consisting of the payment
of reinsurance premiums, refund of overpayments and reinsurer payments on claims. According to regulations governing our reinsurance
business, we are unable to use the cash in a way that deviates from these activities. In addition, at June 30, 2011 we have $5.3 million of
restricted cash from our recently acquired Aliquant business which is restricted for the payment of our client’s health and welfare premiums.
The change in restricted cash from period to period is included in the cash flows from operating activities on our statement of cash flows.

Marketable Securities — Our investments are classified at the time of purchase as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, and reassessed
as of each balance sheet date. Our marketable securities consist of available-for-sale securities, and are marked-to-market based on prices
provided by our investment advisors, with unrealized gains and temporary unrealized losses reported as a component of other comprehensive
income net of tax, until realized. When realized, we recognize gains and losses on the sales of the securities on a specific identification method
and include the realized gains or losses in other income, net, in the consolidated statements of operations. We include interest, dividends, and
amortization of premium or discount on securities classified as available-for-sale in other income, net in the consolidated statements of
operations. We also evaluate our available-for-sale securities to determine whether
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a decline in fair value of a security below the amortized cost basis is other than temporary. Should the decline be considered other than
temporary, we write down the cost of the security and include the loss in earnings. In making this determination we consider such factors as the
reason for and significance of the decline, current economic conditions, the length of time for which there has been an unrealized loss, the time
to maturity, and other relevant information. Available-for-sale securities are classified as either short-term or long -term based on management’s
intention of when to sell the securities or maturity date, if applicable.

Receivables from Clients — Billed receivables from clients are presented at their billed amount less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Billed-
receivables include reinsurance intermediary amounts due to us and reinsurance advances. Reinsurance advances represent instances where we

advance premiums, refunds or claims to reinsurance underwriters or parties to reinsurance contracts prior to collection. Unbilled receivables are
stated-at net realizable value less an allowance for unbillable amounts. Allowance for doubtful accounts related to billed receivables was

$12.6 million and $8.0 million as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Allowance for unbilled receivables was $16.7 million and

$11.7 million as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. :

Revenue Recognition — Revenue includes fees primarily generated from consulting services provided. We recognize revenue from these
consulting engagements when hours are worked, either on a time-and-expense basis or on a fixed-fee basis, depending on the terms and
conditions defined at the inception of an engagement with a client. We have engagement letters with our clients that specify the terms and-
conditions upon which the engagements are based. These terms and conditions can only be changed upon agreement by both parties. Individual
consultants’ billing rates are principally based on a multiple of salary and compensation costs.

Revenue for fixed-fee arrangements, which span multiple months, is based upon the percentage of completion method. We typically have three
types of fixed-fee arrangements: annual recurring projects, projects of a short duration, and non-recurring system projects. Annual recurring
projects and the projects of short duration are typically straightforward and highly predictable in nature. As a result, the project manager and
financial staff are able to identify, as the project status is reviewed and bills are prepared monthly, the occasions when cost overruns could lead
to the recording of a loss accrual.

We have non-recurring system projects that are longer in duration and sub]ect to more changes in scope as the project progresses. We evaluate
at least quarterly, and more often as needed, project managers’ estimates-to-complete to assure that the projects’ current status is accounted for
properly. Certain subscription contracts generally provide that if the client terminates a contract, we are entitled to payment for services
performed through termination.

Revenue recognition for fixed-fee engagements is affected by a number of factors that change the estimated amount of work required to
complete the project such as changes in scope, the staffing on the engagement and/or the level of client participation. The periodic engagement
evaluations require us to make judgments and estimates regarding the overall profitability and stage of project completion that, in turn, affect
how we recognize revenue. We recognize a loss on an engagement when estimated revenue to be received for that engagement is less than the
total estimated direct and indirect costs associated with the engagement. Losses are recognized in the period in which the loss becomes
probable and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. We have experienced certain costs in excess of estimates from time to time.
Management believes that it is rare, however, for these excess costs to result in overall project losses.

We have developed various software programs and technologies that we provide to clients in connection with consulting services. In most
" instances, such software is hosted and maintained by us and ownership of the technology and rights to the related code remain with us.
Software developed to be utilized in providing services to a client, but for which the client does not have the contractual right to take

L possession, is capitalized during the implementation stage. Revenue associated with the related contract, together with amortization of the

related capitalized seftware, is recognized over the service period. As a result, we do not recognize revenue during the implementation phase of
a software engagement. -

In connection with the Merger, we acquired the reinsurance brokerage business of Towers Perrin. In our capacity as a reinsurance broker, we
collect premiums from reinsureds and, after deducting our brokerage commissions, we remit the premiums to the respective reinsurance
underwriters on behalf of reinsureds. In general, compensation for reinsurance brokerage services is earned on a commission basis.
Commissions are calculated as a percentage of a reinsurance premium as stipulated in the reinsurance contracts with our clients and reinsurers.
We recognize brokerage services revenue on the later of the inception date or billing date of the contract. In addition, we hold cash needed to
settle amounts due reinsurers or reinsureds, net of any commissions due to us, pending remittance to the ultimate recipient. We are permitted to
invest these funds in high quality liquid instruments.

Revenue recognized in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled accounts receivable. Cash collections and invoices generated in excess of
revenue recognized are recorded as deferred revenue until the revenue recognition criteria are met. Client reimbursable expenses, including
those relating to travel, other out-of-pocket expenses and any third-party costs, are included in revenue, and an equivalent amount of
reimbursable expenses are included in professional and subcontracted services as a cost of revenue.
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Income Taxes —We account for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740, Income Taxes, which
prescribes the use of the asset and liability approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in.our financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a
portion or all of a given deferred tax asset will not be realized. In accordance with ASC 740, income tax expense includes (i) deferred tax
expense, which generally represents the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability balance during the year plus any change in valuation
allowances and (ji) current tax expense, which represents the amount of tax currently payable to or receivable from a taxing authority plus
amounts accrued for expected tax contingencies (including both tax and interest). ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold of more-likely-
than-not, and a measurement attribute for all tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, in order for those positions to be
recognized in the financial statements. We continually review tax laws, regulations and related guidance in order to properly record any
uncertain tax liability positions. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of tax audits. The
provision for income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered appropriate.

Foreign Currency Translation — Gains and losses on foreign currengy transactions, including settlement of intercompany receivables and
payables, are recognized currently in the general and administrative expenses line of our consolidated statements of operations. Foreign
currency transactions resulted in gains (losses) of $0.2 million, $1.3 million and ($3.3) million in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Assets and Habilities of our subsidiaries outside the United States are translated into the reporting currency, the U.S. dollar, based
on exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses of our subsidiaries outside the United States are translated into U.S. dollars
at weighted average exchange rates. Gains and losses on translation of our equity interests in our subsidiaries outside the United States and on
intercompany notes are reported separately as accumulated other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity in the consolidated
balance sheets, since we do not plan or anticipate settlement of such balances in the foreseeable future.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The carrying amount of our cash and cash equivalents, receivables from clients and notes and accounts
payable approximates fair value because of the short maturity and liquidity of those instruments. The investments are available-for-sale
securities held at estimated fair value with maturities of less than three years. There were no borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit
agreement at June 30, 2011.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of certain
cash and cash equivalents, fixed income securities, and receivables from clients. We invest our excess cash in financial instruments that are
rated in the highest short-term rating category by major rating agencies. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables from clients
are limited due to our large number of clients and their dispersion across many industries and geographic regions.

Change to Presentation of our Balance Sheet and Cash flows — We have changed the presentation of our cash received from our clients and
reinsurers in connection with our reinsurance brokerage business to restricted cash from cash.and cash equivalents on our consolidated balance
sheet as of June 30, 2010. As a result of the balance sheet change, we decreased cash flows from investing activities by $118.5 million and total
ending cash and cash equivalents on the statement of cash flows for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 by $164.5 million related to the amount
of reinsurance cash received from Towers Perrin in the Merger. In addition, the change in restricted cash from January 1, 2010 to June 30, 2010
is included as an increase in restricted cash in the cash flows from operating activities of $49.8 million, which is offset by an increase in
reinsurance payables.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims — We accrue for IBNR professional liability claims that are probable and estimable, and for which
we have not yet-contracted for insurance coverage. We use actuarial assumptions to estimate and record a liability for IBNR professional
liability claims. Our estimated IBNR liability is based on long-term trends and averages, and considers a number of factors, including changes
in claim reporting patterns, claim settlement patterns, judicial decisions, and legislation and economic decisions, but excludes the effect of
claims data for large cases due to the insufficiency of actual experience with such cases. Our estimated IBNR liability will fluctuate if claims
experience changes over time. This liability was $274.8 million and $222.3 million at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. To the extent our
captive insuance companies, PCIC and SMIC, expect losses to be covered by a third party they record a receivable for the amount expected to
be recovered. This receivable is classified in other current or other noncurrent assets in our consolidated balance sheet.

Stock-based Compensation —During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, we recognized compensation expense of $79.9 million, $57.9 million
and $1.0 million, respectively, in connection with our stock-based compensation plans. This does not include any expense related to the 2001
Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Selected Employees, as expense related to shares awarded under this plan is recorded as a component of our
accrual for discretionary compensation.

The total income tax benefit recognized in the income statement for the exercise of non-qualified stock options, vesting of restricted stock units
and the award of stock purchase plan shares was $37 thousand, $28 thousand and $37 thousand for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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Earnings per Share (“EPS”) — We adhere to guidance under ASC 260, Earnings per Share, relating to the two-class method of presenting
EPS. This guidance addresses whether awards granted in share-based transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and therefore

need to be included in the earning allocation in computing earnings per share using the two-class method. ASC 260-10-45-60 requires non-
vested share-based payment awards that have non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents to be treated as a separate class of

securities in calculating earnings per share. Our participating securities include non-vested restricted stock.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — In applying the purchase method of accounting for business combinations, amounts assigned to identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired were based on estimated fair values as of the date of the acquisitions, with the remainder recorded as goodwill.
Intangible assets are initially valued at fair market value using generally accepted valuation methods appropriate for the type of intangible
asset. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indicators of
impairment arise. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually as of March 31. The fair value of the intangible
assets is compared with their carrying value and an impairment loss would be recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the fair value. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as of March 31, and whenever indicators of impairment exist.

The evaluation is a two-step process whereby the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying amount, including goodwill. In
estimating the fair value of a reporting unit, we used level 3 valuation techniques that fall under income or market approaches. Under the
discounted cash flow method, an income approach, the business enterprise value is determined by discounting to present value the terminal
value which is calculated using debt-free after-tax cash flows for a finite period of years. Key estimates in this approach are internal financial
projection estimates prepared by management, business risk, and expected rate of return on capital. The guideline company method, a market
approach, develops valuation multiples by comparing our reporting units to similar publicly traded companies. Key estimates and selection of
valuation multiples rely on the selection of similar companies, obtaining estimates of forecasted revenue and EBITDA estimates for the similar
companies and selection of valuation multiples as they apply to the reporting unit characteristics. Under the similar transactions method, a
market approach, actual transaction prices and operating data from companies deemed reasonably similar to the reporting units is used to
develop valuation multiples as an indication of how much a knowledgeable investor in the marketplace would be willing to pay for the business
units. As the fair value of our reporting units exceeds their carrying value, we did not perform step two to determine the impairment loss. In the
event that a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeded its fair value, we would determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit used in step
one to all the assets and liabilities of that reporting unit (including any recognized or unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination. Then the implied fair value of goodwill would be compared to the carrying amount of goodwill to
determine if goodwill is impaired. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, we did not record any impairment losses of goodwill or intangibles.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Adopted

ASC 810, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51, requires the recognition of a
noncontrolling interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated financial statements and separate from the parent’s equity. The amount
of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated net income. It also amends certain consolidation
procedures for consistency with the requirements of ASC 805, Business Combinations. The provisions also include expanded disclosure
requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interest. We adopted these provisions on July 1, 2009. As a result, our
non-controlling interest of $1.0 million as of June 30, 2009, which was previously included in other non-current liabilities, was reclassified to
non-controlling interest in total equity. In addition, our non-controlling interest of $1.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2010, which was
previously included.in (loss)/income from affiliates, was reclassified to net (loss)/income attributable to non-controlling interests in our results
of operations.

Not yet adopted

On December 17, 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2010-28, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic
350): When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts (a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force), which (1) does not prescribe a specific method of calculating the carrying value of a reporting unit in
the performance of step 1 of the goodwill impairment test and (2) requires entities with a zero or negative carrying value to assess, considering
qualitative factors such as but not limited to those listed in ASC 350-20-35-30 whether it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment
exists. If an entity concludes that it is more likely than not that an impairment of goodwill exists, the entity must perform step 2 of the goodwill
impairment test. These provisions are effective for impairment tests performed in our fiscal year 2012. Upon adoption, if any of our reporting
units have a zero or negative carrying value, we must assess, on the basis of current facts and circumstances, whether it is more likely than not
that an impairment of our goodwill exists. If so, we would
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perform step 2 of the goodwill impairment test on the day of adoption and record the impairment charge, if any, as a cumulative-effect
adjustment through beginning retained earnings. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, on our financial position or results of
operations of adopting this provision.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued' ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which revised
the manner in which entities present comprehensive income in their financial statements. The new guidance removes the presentation options in
ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, and requires entities to report components of comprehensive income in either (1) a continuous statement of
comprehensive income or (2) two separate but consecutive statements. The ASU does not change the items that must be reported in other
comprehensive income. For public entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years; and interim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. We are still evaluating the impact of the change in presentation-to our consolidated
‘statement of operations and our consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and will adopt the new presentation in our fiscal
2013 filings.

Note 2 — Mergers and Acquisitioné

Merger

Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin merged on January 1, 2010 to form Towers Watson to combine the strengths and a strong set of
complementary services of the legacy firms to drive growth and result in a larger global presence and market share gains across all of our
business lines. ’ '

Consideration Exchanged

As aresult of closing of the Merger, all outstanding Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt common stock, restricted stock units and derivative
securities were converted into the right to receive the following forms of consideration: :

* 46,911,275 shares of Towers Watson Class A Common Stock (iess a number of shares that were withheld for tax purposes in respect
of Watson Wyatt deferred stock units and deferred shares), including 4,248,984 shares of Restricted Towers Watson Class A Common
Stock:

. 29,483.,008 shares of Towers Watson Class B Common Stock, including:

e 12,798,118 shares of Class B-1 Common Stock (which was subsequently reduced by 2,267,265 shares related to our tender offer
in June 2010 and 4,921,001 shares related to our secondary offering in September 2010, further described in Note 13, and all of
which remaining shares were converted to shares of Class A Common Stock on January 1, 2011); .

¢ 5,561,630 shares of Class B-2 Common Stock;
. 5,561,630 shares of Class B-3 Common Stock; and
* 5,561,630 shares of Class B-4 Common Stock:

* 8,548,835 shares of Towers Watson Class R Common Stock, which subsequently were redeemed automatically in exchange for the
right to receive: :

*  $200 million in cash (subject to applicable tax withholding and gross-up adjustments); and
* Towers Watson Notes in an aggregate principal amount of $200 million.

In addition, on January 1, 2010, Towers Watson issued shares of Class F stock, no par value, pro rata to all holders of Towers Perrin common
stock, which shares represent only the contingent right to receive, three years after the Merger, a pro rata portion of a number of shares of
Towers Watson Class A common stock equal to the number of shares of Restricted Towers Watson Class A common stock forfeited by former
Towers Perrin employees plus a number of shares of Towers Watson Class A common stock with a value equivalent to the amount of
dividends attributed to such forfeited shares.

Fair Value of Consideration

The Merger has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting as prescribed in Accounting Standards Codification 803,
Business Combinations (ASC 805). The total consideration of $1.8 billion is comprised of $200 million of cash and $200 million
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of notes payable to Class R shareholders and of stock consideration for the following: Class A shares for certain foreign shareholders of
$9.9 million, Restricted Class B-1, B-2, B-3 and B-4 shares of $1 3 billion and Restricted Class A shares of $43.7 million.

The consideration given in the form of cash and notes payable was measured in the amount of cash paid and notes payable issued. Accordmg to
ASC 805 the fair value of the securities traded in the market the day before the Merger is consummated is used to determine the fair value of
the equity consideration. As accounting predecessor, Watson Wyatt’s closing share price on the NYSE on December 31, 2009 of $47.52 was
used to determine the fair value of equity consideration. The equity consideration for the Class A shares to certain foreign shareholders of

$9.9 million is valued at $47.52 multiplied by 209,013, the number of shares issued. The estimated fair value of the restricted Class B-1-B-4
shares of $1.3 billion was calculated at $47.52 multiplied by 29,483,008, the number of shares issued and applying a discount to approximate
the fair value of the one-, two-, three- and four-year period of restriction lapse until the shares are converted into freely tradable Towers Watson
Class A common stock. The estimated fair value of the Restricted Class A shares of $43.7 million includes (i) the vested portion of the Towers
Perrin restricted stock units, which was earned by employees related to the service condition from grant date in October 2009 until January 1,
2010, the date of the Merger, valued at $47.52 per share and (ii) 10% of the unvested portion of the Towers Perrin restricted stock units, which
is the estimate of forfeitures that will result from employees not fulfilling the service condition during the three year vesting post-Merger,

which will be proportionately distributed to Class F shareholders, the Towers Perrin shareholders as of the Merger date.

PCIC

As of December 31, 2009, Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt each owned a 36.4% equity investment in Professional Consultants Insurance
Company (“PCIC”). PCIC is a captive insurance company that provides professional liability insurance on a claims-made basis. Watson Wyatt
applied the equity method of accounting for its investment in PCIC through December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, Watson Wyatt’s
investment in PCIC was $13.7 million. Towers Watson’s financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, included
herein, reflect Watson Wyatt’s equity method of accounting for PCIC for the six months ended December 31, 2009, which resulted in
recording a loss from affiliates of $0.1 million. :

As aresult of the Merger, Towers Watson has a majority ownership interest in PCIC and consequently retained a majority of the economie
risks and rewards of PCIC. As a result, Towers Watson now consolidates PCIC’s financial position and results of operations in its consolidated
financial statements beginning January 1, 2010. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fair value of net assets acquired and intangibles

According to ASC 805, the assets acquired and liabilities of Towers Perrin assumed by Towers Watson were recorded at their respective fair
values as of January 1, 2010, the Merger’s effective date. The valuation and determination of estimated fair value include significant estimates
and assumptions. Management also evaluated the methodology and valuation models to determine the estimated useful lives and amortization
method.

Customer relationships

A customer relationship intangible asset was identified separate from goodwill based on determination of the length, strength and contractual
nature of the relationship that Towers Perrin shared with its clients. This customer relationship information was analyzed via the application of
the multi-period excess earnings method, an income approach. Significant assumptions used in the income approach are revenue growth,
retention rate, operating expenses, charge for contributory assets and trade name and the discount rate used to calculate the present value of the
cash flows. The customer relationship, valued at $140.8 million, is amortized on an accelerated amortization basis over the estimated useful life
of 12 years which correlated to the years of material results included in the income approach model.

Trademarks and trade names

The Towers Perrin trade name was identified as an intangible asset separate from goodwill based on evaluation of the importance of the Towers
Perrin trade name to the Towers Perrin business through understanding the brand recognition in the market, importance of the trade name to the
customer, and the amount of revenue associated with the trade name. In developing the estimated fair value, the trade name was valued
utilizing the relief from royalty method, an income approach. Significant assumptions used in the relief from royalty method were revenue
growth, royalty rate, and discount rate used to calculate the present value of cash flows. The Towers Perrin trade name, valued at

$275.5 million, has an estimated indefinite-lived asset and is not amortized but tested annually for impairment or if factors exist to indicate
impairment.
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Developed technology

Developed technology identified separately from goodwill as an intangible asset consists of intellectual property such as proprietary software
used internally for revenue producing activities or by clients. Developed techriology can provide significant advantages to the owner in terms of
product differentiation, cost advantages and other competifive advantages. Three external-use technologies of Towers Perrin: MoSes, eValue
and the Global Coimpensation technology are offered for sale or subscription and have associated revenue streams. In add}tion, 22 internally
developed technology applications were identified as'primary applications used in Towers Perrin’s business but'did not have associated
revenue streams. The external-use technologies, for which revenue sources were directly identified, were valued by applying the multi-period
excess earnings method, an income approach. The internal-use technologies were valued by applying the cost to replicate method, a cost '
approach. Significant assumptions used in the multi-period excess earnings method were revenue growth, decay rate, cost of revenue, operating
expenses, charge for use of contributory assets and trade name and discount rate used to calculate the present value of the cash flows. The =
external-use technology, valued at $58.2 million, is amortized on an accelerated basis over a weighted-average useful life of 3.6 years. )
Significant assumptions used in the cost to replicate method were cost to replace including the number and skill level of man hotirs and cost per
hour based on fully burdened salary of staff; profit margin if the work were performed by a third party; and obsolescence factor. The internal-
use technology, valued at $67.2 million, is amortized on a straight-line basis over the weighted-average estimated useful life of 4.2 years. ’

Favorable and unfavorable lease contracts

Assets and liabilities for favorable and unfavorable lease contracts were identified separately from goodwill related to Towers Perrin’s real i
estate lease agreements. The assets and liabilities were valued by comparing cash obligations for lease agreements to the estimated market rent
at the time of the transactions. The resulting favorable or unfavorable positions are recorded gross as assets or liabilities on the bélancc sheet.
Significant assumptions used in the valuation were market rent, annual escalation percentages based on cuirent inflation rates and, a discount
rate used to calculate the present value of the cash flows. Both the assets for favorable lease agreements, valued at $11.1 million, and the
liabilities for unfavorable lease agreements, valued at $28.6 million, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the respective lease to

occupancy costs. The weighted-average estimated useful life for the leases on the acquisition date was 7.3 years.. . ) :

Measurement period

As of December 31, 2010, the accounting for the Merger was complete. During the six months ended December 31, 2010, we identified the
following adjustments to the initial fair value of the opening balance sheet of Towers Perrin to (1) increase non-current deferred tax asset by
$10.5 million, (2) decrease to non-current assets by $0.9 million, (3) decrease fixed assets by $0.5 mijllion, (4) increase accounts payable,
(5) accrued liabilities and (6) deferred income by $0.2 million, resulting in a decrease to goodwill of $8.9 million. Our June 30, 2010

comparative balance sheet has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect these adjustments.

The table below sets forth the Merger consideration transferred to Towers Perrin shareholders and the tangible and intangible net assets
received in the Merger:

. January 1, 2010 )
.{In thousands, except share and per share data) _

Calculation of Consideration Transferred =~ o T » i _ o o
Cash paid ' | e $ 200,000

Notes payable issued to Towers Perrin shareholders S P 200,000

Towers Perrin shares converted to Towers Watson shares ) . 42,480,840 o :

Less Class R shares - S  (8,548,835) :

Less 10% of consideration in RSUs (4,248,984)

Shares of Towers Watson stock issued .. . L 229,692,021

Closing price of Watson Wyatt stock, December 31, 2009 $ 47.52

Average discount for restricted stock i . S v 7%,

Aggregate fair value of the Towers Watson common stock issued 1,313,650

Fair value of RSUs assumed in the Merger ] - 43,729
Total consideration transferred $1,757,379 -

Current assets $ 1,002,567

Other non-current assets 219,755

Identifiable intangible assets 552,785

Deferred tax asset, net 149,381

Current liabilities (672,033)

Other long-term liabilities (760,708)

Goodwill 1,265,632

Total tangible and intangible net assets
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The following unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations have been provided to present illustrative combined unaudited statement
of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, giving effect to the business combination as if it had been completed on July 1,
2009. The pro forma combined statement of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 combines Watson Wyatt’s historical unaudited
consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended December 31, 2009 with Towers Perrin’s historical unaudited consolidated
statement of operations for the six months ended December 31, 2009 and Towers Watson unaudited consolidated statement of operations for
the six months ended June 30, 2010. Included in the pro forma results and in the historical results of operations of Towers Watson is
approximately $750 million of revenue and $20 million of earnings of the legacy firm Towers Perrin for the six months ended June 30, 2010.
The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operation are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not indicative of the results of
operations that might have occurred had the business combination actually taken place as of the date specified, or that may be expected to occur
in the future. The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations are as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009
) (in thousands)
Revenue $3,180,916 1 $3,251,323
Costs of providing services: ‘
Salaries and employee benefits i o ' b ‘ - ~ T 2,146,211 - 2,236,462
Professional and subcontracted service: 243,752 293,292
Occupancy S B e o o ' 146,695 " 144,392
General and administrative expenses ' i 268,808 352,109
Depreciation and amortization Lo - v 131,599 136,514
2,937,065 3,162,769
Income from operations ‘ R 243,851 88,554
Loss from affiliates . (1,085) 294
Interest income ' 4,731 8,567
Interest expense ' , _ » ; ‘ ‘ S ALy (12,160)
Other non-operating income ' C - ' 16,585 19,810
Income before income taxes ' ' ' 252,091 105,065
Provision for income taxes 67,918 64,157
Net income before non-controlling interests 184,173 40,908
Net loss attributable to'non-controlling interests - , . : (2,146) 4,515
Net income attributable to controlling interests $ 186,319 $ 36,393

Acquisitions

During the second and third quarters of fiscal 2011, we completed two acquisitions. These acquisitions individually or combined were
insignificant for pro forma and other disclosures required by ASC 805. The following summary is provided to give our investors better
understanding of our recent strategic acquisitions.

On December 31, 2010, Towers Watson purchased Aliquant, a privately-held, full-service health and welfare benefits administration
outsourcing firm for $67.7 million. The Aliquant business complements our Technology and Administration Solutions practice in our Benefits
segment. The preliminary estimate of consideration transferred and allocation of the faii value to tangible and intangible assets received and
liabilities assumed was recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2011, which included fixed assets, customer related intangibles, developed
technology and non-compete agreements at their estimated acquisition date fair values. Our estimate of fair value was developed using income
approach valuation models such as the multi-period excess eamings method for the customer related intangibles of $13.9 million and the relief
from royalty method for the developed technology intangible of $4.0 million. Significant assumptions used in the valuation are: revenue growth
rate, retention rate, expense and contributory asset charges, royalty rate and discount rate. As of June 30; 2011, we recorded $49.5 million of
goodwill related to the acquisition of Aliquant.
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On January 31, 2011, Towers Watson purchased EMB, a large specialist property/casualty consulting and software company. The EMB -
business complements our Risk Consulting and Software line of business in our Risk and Financial Services segment. We paid $69.8 million
cash and issued common stock valued at $11.4 million consisting of 113,858 shares.of Class B-3 and 113,858 shares of Class B-4 common
stock, which convert to Towers Watson Class A common stock on January 1, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The Asian put model was used to
calculate the discounts on the restrictions of the underlying stock. We have included an estimated earn-out payment of $16.9 million in
consideration. The purchase agreement calls for deferred cash payments totaling $27.9 million which are recorded as compensation expense
over the period earned by the former partners subject to continued employment. During the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2011, we
recorded the tangible assets received and liabilities assumed and the preliminary fair value of deferred revenue and intangibles: $13.5 million of
customer related intangibles, $12.1 million of developed technology, $1.6 million of in-process technology and less than $1 million of
favorable or unfavorable lease agreements and tradename intangible. We estimated that a discount of $9.6 million was required to record the
fair value of the deferred maintenance revenue acquired based on the cost of maintenance plus a modest profit over the remaining contract
period. We also recorded $5.4 million of related deferred income tax amounts. As a result of our preliminary assessment we determined that
total consideration transferred was $101.9 million and preliminary goodwill was $50.3 million.

Note 3 — Fixed Income Securities

We hold available-for-sale fixed income securities comprised of U.S. treasury securities and obligations of the U.S. government, government
agencies and authorities; corporate bonds; and obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions. The fixed income securities are
classified either as short-term investments or non-current assets (within other assets on the consolidated balance sheet) depending on the date of
their maturity. Additional information on fixed income security balances is provided in the following table as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Amortized Unrealized Estimated Amortized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Fair Value Cost Gains Fair Value
Short-term investments: due in one
year or less $ 43,227 $ 430 $ 43,657 $ 50,585 $ 424 $ 51,009
Non-current assets: due in one through
five years 49,625 769 50,394 60,142 1,956 62,098

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments for fixed income securities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $72.7 million,
resulting in a gain of $0.3 million. Proceeds from sales of investments for fixed income securities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
were $16.2 million, resulting in a loss of $0.01 million. There were no investments that have been in a continuous loss position for more than
one year, and there have been no other-than-temporary impairments recognized.

Note 4 — Fixed Assets

Furniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and presented net of depreciation or amortization. Furniture,
fixtures and equipment are depreciated straight-line over lives ranging from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms or the asset lives.

The components of fixed assets are as follows:

June 30,
2011 2010
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment ‘ v $ 195,891 $ 172,899
Computer software 276,384 239,153
Leasehold improvements . _ ‘ 165,847 157,554
' 638,122 569,606
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization o o (385,779) (342,298)
Fixed assets, net . : $ 252,343 $ 227,308

Total unamortized computer software costs were $116.1 million and $108.4 million as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Total
amortization expense for computer software was $34.6 million, $33.9 million and $31.0 million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Total depreciation expense was $44.0 million, $35.8 million and $28.6 million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Note 5 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The components of goodwill and intangible assets are outlined below for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Risk and
Financial Talent and
Benefits Services Rewards All Other Total

Balance as of June 30, 2009 . $ 394,954 $115,942 $ 30,644 $ 1,214 $ 542,754
Goodwill acquired and contingent payments ' 820,151 365,767 79,735 — 1,265,653
Translation adjustment ) , (63,424) (22,336) (5,352) — (91,112)
Balance as of June 30, 2010 1,151,681 459,373 105,027 1,214 1,717,295
Goodwill acquired , 49,769 49,150 2,191 —_ ' 101,110
Translation adjustment 86,909 30,241 8,019 — 125,169
Balance as of June 30, 2011 . . $1,288,359 $538.764 - $115,237 $ 1,214 .$1,943,574

The $49.8 of goodwill acquired in Benefits primarily relates to the acquisition of Aliquant which was completed on December 31, 2010 and
amounted to $49.5 in goodwill.

The $49.2 of goodwill acquired in Risk and Financial Services is primarily due to the addition $50.3 in goodwill related to the acquisition of
EMB, which was completed on January 31, 2011. The addition was partially offset by the write-off of $1.1 of goodwill, which resulted from
the sale of e-Value (financial modeling software).

The following table reflects changes in the net carrying amount of the components of intangible assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010:

Customer Core/ Favorable
Trademark & related developed Non-compete lease
trade name intangible technology agreements agreements Total
Balance as of June 30, 2009 $ 100,511 $ 78,843 $ 6,757 $ 122 $ — $186,233
Intangible assets acquired ) 275,500 140,800 125,400 — 11,085 552,785
Amortization — (18,087) (13,170) (120) (1,495) (32,872)
Translation ad]ustment (9,218) (12,750) (261) (2) (428) (22,659)
Balance as of June 30, 2010 366,793 188,806 118,726 — 9,162 683,487
Intangible assets acquired — 27,396 17,806 250 — 45,452
Intangible assets written-off — — — — (1,376) (1,376)
Amortization — (29,081) (22,603) (250) (2,622) (54,556)
Translation adjustment 6,769 15,034 (162) — 274 21,915
Balance as of June 30, 2011 $ 373,562 $202,155 $113,767 $ — $ 5,438 $694,922

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we recorded $52.0 million and $31.3 million of amortization related to our intangible assets,
respectively. This amount excluded amortization of favorable lease agreements which is recorded as an increase to rent expense.

In conjunction with the Merger and ASC 805, wé estimated the fair value of acquired leases and recorded an intangible unfavorable lease
liability. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010 this liability was $21.3 million and $26.0 million, respectively. The change for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 was comprised of a reduction to rent expense of $4.4 million and translation of $0.3 million.

Components of the change in the gross carrying amount of trademark and trade name, customer related intangibles, core/developed technology
and favorable and unfavorable lease agreements reflect foreign currency translation adjustments between June 30, 2010 and 2011 as well as the
addition of the intangible assets identified from the acquisition of Aliquant and EMB. Additionally, certain intangible assets associated with
favorable lease agreements were written off during the year as a result of the combining of office space associated with the Merger. Certain of
the intangible assets and liabilities are denominated in the currencies of our subsidiaries outside the United States, and are translated into our
reporting currency, the U.S. dollar, based on exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
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The following table reflects the carrying value of intangible assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Fiscal Year 2011 Fiscal Year 2010
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

' Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Intangible assets: - _ v .

Trademark and trade name o L o $373,964 $ 402 $367,195 $ 402

Customer related intangibles o o 280,547 - 78,392 237,072 48,266

Core/developed technology , 166,110 52,343 148,664 29,938

Non-compete agreements o ‘ ; o 1,525 1,525 1,275 1,275

Favorable lease agreements 6,808 1,370 10,657 1,495

Total intangible assets ) o R $828,954 $ 134,032 $764,863 $. 81,376

Certain trademark and trade-name intangibles have indefinite useful lives and are not amortized. The weighted average remaining life of
amortizable intangible assets and liabilities at June 30, 2011 was 8.1 years.

The following table reflects:
1) future estimated amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets consisting of:
*  customer related intangibles
¢ core/developed technology
¢ non-compete agreements

2) the rent offset resulting from the amortization of the net lease intangible assets and liabilities for future fiscal years as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, . - : Amortization Rent Offset
2012 " RV S ' ‘ $ 56,843 $ (3,045)
2013 . o 52,525 2,731
2014 I ; ) S : 45,276 (2,407)
2015 o o o o 37,714 (2,083)
2016 - o , T T 32,760 . (1,566)
Thereafter 90,804 (4,064)
. Total . ; ) $ 315922 . $(15,896)

Note 6 — Fair Value Measurements

We have categorized our financial instruments into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities (Level 1) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). In some cases,
the inputs used to measure fair value might fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. '

Financial assets and liabilities recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1 — Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active
market. :

Level 2 — Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on the following:
a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets§
b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active markets;
c) Pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; and

d) Pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through correlation or other
means for substantially the full asset or liability.

Level 3 — Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices, or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both
unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs reflect management’s own assumptions about the assumptions
a market participant would use in pricing the asset or liability.
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The following presents our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis at
June 30,2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets: C '
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of the U.S. government, - v _

_government agencies and authorities (a) N , $ 2,043 $31,304 $  — $ 33,347
Corporate bonds (2) — - 46,085 — 46,085
Obligations of states, municipalities and polmcal subdivisions (a) S — - 14,620 — - 14,620
Equity securities (b) 1,383 —_ — 1,383
Mutual funds (c) : 7,138 — — 7,138

Derivatives: )
Foreign exchange forwards (d) - S o — : 2,665 . — 2,665
Liabilities:
Derivatives: ] ) i o o . o ) . )
Foreign exchange forwards (d) $ — % 137 $ — $ 137
Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis at
June 30, 2010
) Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Assets:
Available for—sale securities:
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of the U.S. government, . N '
government agencies and authorities (a) Y $ 6,183 $15957 $ — $22,140
Corporate bonds (a) _ — 72,076 — 72,076
Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions (a) — 18,878 — 18,878
Equity securities (b) 1,056 — — 1,056
Mutual funds (¢) - e 5,235 : — C — 5,235
Derivatives: '
Foreign exchange forwards (d) - ‘ R — 731 . — 731
Foreign exchange options (d) ’ — 37 — 37
Liabilities:
Derivatives: _
Foreign exchange forwards (d) =~ - : $ — $ 4,100 $ — 7 $ 4,100
Foreign exchange options (d) h — 177 — 177

(a) These assets are included in short-term investments or other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. See Note 3 for the classification of
all fixed income securities as current or non-current.

(b) These assets are included in short-term investments or other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.
(¢c) These assets are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

(d) These derivative investments are included in other current assets or accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred income on the
consolidated balance sheet. See Note 7 for further information on our derivative investments.

We recorded a gain of $0.6 million and a loss of $0.1 million, respectively, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations related to the changes in the fair value of our financial instruments for
foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange options accounted for as foreign currency hedges, which were still held at June 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. There was no material gain or loss recorded in the consolidated statements of operatlons for available-for-sale
securities still held at-June 30, 2011 or 2010.

To determine the fair value of our derivative investments, we receive a quoted value from the counterparty for each contract. The quoted price
we receive is a Level 2 valuation based on observable quotes in the marketplace for the underlying currency. We use
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these underlying values to estimate amounts that would be paid or received to terminate the contracts at the reporting date based on current
market prices for the underlying currency.

The U.S. Treasury securities, equity securities and mutual funds are valued using quoted market prices as of the end of the trading day.
Corporate bonds and certain obligations of government agencies or states, municipalities and political subdivisions are valued based on yields
currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. We monitor the value of the investments for other-than-
temporary impairment on a quarterly basis.

The availability of observable market data is monitored to assess the appropriate classification of financial instruments within the fair value
hierarchy. Changes in economic conditions or model-based valuation techniques may require the transfer of financial instruments from one fair
value level to another. In such instances, the transfer is reported at the beginning of the reporting period. There were no transfers between
Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the year ended June 30, 2011. ' '

Note 7 — Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. To manage this exposure, we enter into various derivative
transactions. These instruments have the effect of reducing our exposure to unfavorable changes in foreign currency rates. We do not enter into
derivative transactions for trading purposes.

Derivative transactions are governed by our established set of policies and procedures covering areas such as authorization, counterparty
exposure and hedging practices. We also evaluate new and existing transactions and agreements to determine if they require derivative
accounting treatment. Positions are monitored using-fair market value and sensitivity analyses.

Certain derivatives also give rise to credit risks from the possible non-performance by counterparties. The credit risk is generally limited to the
fair value of those contracts that are favorable to us. We have established strict counterparty credit guidelines and enter into transactions only
with financial institutions with securities of investment grade or better. We monitor counterparty exposures and review any downgrade in credit
rating. To mitigate pre-settlement risk, minimum credit standards become more stringent as the duration of the derivative financial instrument
increases. To minimize the concentration of credit risk, we enter into derivative transactions with a portfolio of financial institutions. Based on
these factors, we consider the risk of counterparty default to be minimal.

Accounting Policy for Derivatives

All derivative instruments are recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Derivative instrumerits with a positive
fair value are reported in other current assets and derivative instruments with a negative fair value are reported in other current liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recognized immediately in general and
administrative expenses, unless the derivative is designated as a hedge and qualifies for hedge accounting.

There are three hedging relationships where a derivative (hedging instrument) may qualify for hedge accounting: (1) a hedge of the change in
fair value of a recognized asset or liability or firm commitment (fair value hedge), (2) a hedge of the variability in cash flows from forecasted
transactions (cash flow hedge), and (3) a hedge of the variability caused by changes in foreign currency exchange rates (foreign currency
hedge). Under hedge accounting, recognition of derivative gains and losses can be matched in the same period with that of the hedged exposure
and thereby minimize earnings volatility. If the derivative does not qualify for hedge accounting, we consider the transaction to be an

“economic hedge” and changes in the fair value of the derivative asset or liability are recognized immediately in general and administrative
expenses. At June 30, 2011, we had entered into foreign currency cash flow hedges and economic hedges.

In order for a derivative to qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative must be formally designated as a fair value, cash flow, or a foreign
currency hedge by documenting the relationship between the derivative and the hedged item. Additionally, the hedge relationship must be
expected to be highly effective at offsetting changes in either the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item at both inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis. We assess the ongoing effectiveness of our hedges and measures and records hedge ineffectiveness, if any, at the end of
each quarter. '

For a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the change in fair value of a hedging instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income,
as a component of shareholders’ investment, and subsequently reclassified to general and administrative expenses. The ineffective portion of a
cash flow hedge is recognized immediately in general and administrative expenses.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, (2) we determine that the
hedging transaction is no longer highly effective, (3) a hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring in the
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time period described in the hedge documentation, (4) the hedged item matures or is sold, or (5) management elects to discontinue hedge
accounting voluntarily. »

When hedge accounting is discontinued because the derivative no longer qualifies as a cash flow hedge we continue to carry the derivative in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, recognize subsequent changes in the fair value of the derivative in current-period
general and administrative expenses, and continue to defer the derivative gain or loss in other comprehensive income or loss until the hedged
forecasted transaction affects expenses. If the hedged forecasted transaction is not likely to occur in the time period described in the hedge
documentation or within a two month period of time thereafter, the deferred derivative gain or loss is reclassified immediately to general and
administrative expenses.

Our reinsurance intermediary subsidiary in the United Kingdom receives revenues in currencies (primarily in U.S. dollars) that differ from its
functional currency. As a result, the foreign subsidiary’s functional currency revenue will fluctuate as the currency exchange rates change. To
reduce this variability, we use foreign exchange forward contracts and over-the-counter options to hedge the foreign exchange risk of the
forecasted collections. We have designated these derivatives as cash flow hedges of forecasted foreign currency denominated collections. We
also use derivative financial contracts, principally foreign exchange forward contracts, to hedge non-functional currency obligations. Primarily,
these exposures arise from intercompany lending between entities with different functional currencies. At June 30, 2011, the longest
outstanding maturity was 17 months. As of June 30, 2011, a net $1.9 million pretax gain has been deferred in other comprehensive income. A
pretax gain of $1.4 million is expected to be recognized in general and administrative expenses during the next twelve months when the hedged
revenue is recognized. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we recognized no material gains or losses due to hedge
ineffectiveness.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, we had cash flow hedges with a notional value of $69.3 million and $87.7 million, respectively, to hedge
revenue cash flows. We determine the fair value of our foreign currency derivatives based on quoted prices received from the counterparty for
each contract, which we evaluate using pricing models whose inputs are observable. The net fair value of all derivatives held as of June 30,
2011 and 2010 was an asset/(liability) of $2.5 million and ($3.5) million, respectively. See Note 6, Fair Value Measurements, for further
information regarding the determination of fair value.

The fair value of our derivative instruments held as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and their location in the consolidated balance sheet are as
follows: '

Asset derivatives " Liability derivatives
Balance sheet location Fair value Balance sheet location . Fair value
' June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 o ) ] 2011 2010
Derivatives designated as R : ’
hedging instruments: : o
Foreign exchange Other current assets Accounts payable, accrued
forwards . liabilities and deferred
‘ $ 2073 3 731 income $ (114) $  (4,100)
Foreign exchange Other current assets Accounts payable, accrued '
options ‘ liabilities and deferred '
S . ' C— 37 income — (94)
Total derivatives designated ' '
as hedging instruments 2,073 768 (114) 4,194)
Derivatives not designated
as. ' ‘
" hedging instruments: _ v v o , ‘ .
Foreign exchange Other current assets Accounts payable, accrued
forwards ' liabilities and deferred
‘ $ 592§ — income ' . % 23) $ —
Foreign exchange Other current assets Accounts payable, accrued '
options liabilities and deferred
— — income — (83)
Total derivatives not
designated
as hedging instruments 592 — (23) 83)
Total derivative assets
(liabilities) $ 2,665 $ 768 $ 137 § 4,277
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The effect of derivative instruments that are designated as hedging instruments on the con
consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity for the fiscal

instruments held during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009):

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments for
the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Gain (loss)
recognized in OCI
(effective portion)

Location
of loss reclassified
from OCI into income
(effective portion)

Loss reclassified
from OCI into income
(effective portion)

Location of gain (loss)
recognized in income
(ineffective portion and
amount excluded from
effectiveness testing)

solidated statement of operations and the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as folows (there were no such

Gain (loss)
recognized in income
(ineffective portion and
amount excluded from
effectiveness testing)

Foreign exchan ge'
forwards

Foreign exchange
options

Total

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, we had $22.5 million and $1.5 million, respectively,
primarily to hedge intercompany loans denominated in currencies other than the fun
been designated as hedging instruments on the consolidated statement of operations

2011

2010

$4323  $(3,335)

— (207)

$4,323 - $(3,542)

General and
administrative expenses

General and
administrative expenses

2011 2010
$(683) $ (266)

207) —
$(8%0) $(266)

follows (there were no such instruments held during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009):

Derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments:

Foreign exchange forwards
Foreign exchange options .
Total Lo :

Location of gain (loss)
recognized in income

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses

Note 8 — Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, Including Discretionary Compensation

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued payroll and bonuses
Deferred revenue

Total accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deférred income

Note 9 — Leases

General and
administrative
expenses

General and
administrative
expenses

2011 2010
$ 125 - $ (65)

— (32)
$ 125 $ (97)

of notional value of derivatives held as economic hedges
ctional currency. The effect of derivatives that have not
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as

Gain (loss) recognized in income

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2011 2010

$ 2,976 $ 1,869
— (350)

$ 2976 $__ 1519

June 30,
2011 2010

$199,456 $138,821

348,143 150,761

136,211 119,726

$683,810 $409,308

We lease office space under operating lease agreements with terms generally averaging ten years. Our real estate lease agreements contain rent
increases, rent holidays, leasehold incentives or rent concessions. All costs incurred for rent expense are recorded on a straight-line basis
- (inclusive of any lease incentives and rent holidays) over the life of the lease within occupancy expenses in the statement of operations, with an

offset to deferred rent liabilities recorded in the consolidated balance sheet. Ren
$78.4 million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
sublease agreements for some of our excess leased space. Sublea:

2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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tal expense was $146.9 million, $107.3 million and
inclusive of operating expenses related to such space. We have entered into
se income was $2.7 million, $1.3 million and $1.0 million for fiscal years




Future minimum lease payments for the operating lease commitments which have not been reduced by cumulative anticipated cash inflows for
sublease income of $5.6 million are: ‘

Fiscal year ending June 30, - : ] Amortization

2012 - ' . e % 105,107
2013 , 94,624
2014 S C : a 85,611
2015 _ o L _ o 72,730
2016 - _ ‘ . 59,640
Thereafter ) 183,513

Total S S o ) TR ' : - : $ 601,225

We evaluate office capacity on an ongoing basis to meet changing needs in our markets with a goal of minimizing our occupancy expense.

Note 10 — Retirement Benefits
Defined Benefit Plans

Towers Watson sponsors both qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plan or “OPEB”
plans in North America and Europe. As of June 30, 2011, these funded and unfunded plans represented 98 percent of total Towers Watson’s
pension obligations and as a result are disclosed herein. Towers Watson also sponsors funded and unfunded defined benefit pension plans in
certain other countries as well, representing the remaining 2 percent of the liability.

Under the legacy Watson Wyatt plans in North America, benefits are based on the number of years of service and the associate’s compensation
during the five highest paid consecutive years of service. The non-qualified plan, included only in North America, provides for pension benefits
that would be covered under the qualified plan but are limited by the Internal Revenue Code. The non-qualified plan has no assets and therefore
is an unfunded arrangement. Watson Wyatt made changes in 2008 to the plan in the U.K. related to years of service used in calculating benefits
for associates. Benefits earned prior to January 2008 are based on the number of years of service and the associate’s compensation during the
three years before leaving the plan and benefits earned after January 2008 are based on the number of years of service and the associate’s
average compensation during the associate’s term of service since that date. The plan liabilities in Germany were a result of Watson Wyatt’s
acquisition of Heissmann GmbH in 2007. A significant percentage of the liabilities represent the grandfathered pension benefit for employees
hired prior to a July 1991 plan amendment. The pension plan for those hired after July 1991 is a defined contribution type arrangement. In the
Netherlands, the perision benefit is a percentage of service and average salary over the working life of the employee, where salary includes

- allowances and bonuses up to a set maximum salary and is offset by the current social security benefit. The benefit asset and liability are
reflected on the balance sheet. The measurement date for each of the plans is June 30.

The legacy Towers Perrin pension plans in the U.S. accrue benefits under a cash-balance formula for associates hired or rehired after 2002 and
for all associates for service after 2007. For associates hired prior to 2003 and active as of January 2003, benefits prior to 2008 are based on a
combination of a cash balance formula, for the period after 2002, and a final average pay formula based on years of plan service and the highest
five consecutive years of plan compensation prior to 2008. Under the cash balance formula, benefits are based on a percentage of each year of
the employee’s plan compensation. The Canadian Retirement Plan provides a choice of a defined benefit approach or a defined contribution
approach. The non-qualified plans in North America provide for pension benefits that would be covered under the qualified plan in the
respective country but are limited by statutory maximums. The non-qualified plans have no assets and therefore are unfunded arrangements.
The U.K. Plan provides predominantly lump sum benefits. Benefit accruals under the U.K. plan ceased on March 31, 2008. The plans in
Germany mostly provide benefits under a cash balance benefit formula. Benefits under the Netherlands plan accrue on a final pay basis on
earnings up to a maximum amount each year. The benefit assets and liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet. The measurement date for
each of the plans had historically been December 31 but has been changed to June 30 as a result of the Merger.

The compensation committee of our board of directors approved an amendment to the terms of the existing U.S. qualified and non-qualified
defined benefit pension plans, postretirement benefit plans and defined contribution plans which was communicated in September 2010.
Effective December 31, 2010, the existing U.S. qualified and non-qualified pension plans were frozen to new
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participants, and benefit accruals will be frozen under the current benefit formulas effective December 31, 2011. New pension benefits will
accrue beginning on January 1, 2012 under a new stable value pension design for qualified and non-qualified pension plans maintained for U.S.
associates, including U.S. named executive officers. Retiree medical benefits provided under our U.S. postretirement benefit plans were frozen
to new hires effective January 1, 2011. Life insurance benefits under the same plans will be frozen with respect to service, eligibility and
amounts as of January 1, 2012 for active associates. As a result of these changes to the U.S. pension and post-retirement benefit plans, there
were remeasurements of the legacy Watson Wyatt U.S. plans and the legacy Towers Perrin post-retirement benefit plan as of September 30,
2010. The legacy Towers Perrin pension plan was not required to be remeasured due to the plan design. .

The disclosures for the European plans are shown separately because the amounts are material relative to North American plans and the
assumptions used in the European plans are significantly different than those used in the North American plans.

The determination of Towers Watson’s obligations and annual expense under the plans is based on a number of assumptions that, given the
longevity of the plans, are long-term in focus. A change in one or a combination of these assumptions could have a material impact on Towers
Watson’s pension benefit obligation and related expense. For this reason, management employs a long-term view so that assumptions do not
change frequently in response to short-term volatility in the economy. Any difference between actual and assumed results is amortized into
Towers Watson’s pension expense over the average remaining service period of participating associates. Towers Watson considers several
factors prior to the start of each fiscal year when determining the appropriate annual assumptions, including economic forecasts, relevant
benchmarks, historical trends, portfolio composition and peer comparisons.

Funding is based on actuarially determined contributions and is limited to amounts that are currently deductible for tax purposes. Since funding
calculations are based on different measurements than those used for accounting purposes, pension contributions are not equal to net periodic
pension cost. We accrue the excess of net periodic pension cost over such contributions and direct benefit payments under non-qualified plan
provisions. :

The following table sets forth our projected pension contributions for fiscal year 2012, as well as the pension contributions to our various plans
in fiscal years 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
(Projectedl {Actual) (Actual)
UsS : $ — $30,000 $30,000
Canada . - 15,202 6,346 4,388
Europe : o 17,986 19,216 21,020

The fair value of plan assets is based on the market value of securities that are in the pension portfolio, which vary by country. To the extent the
expected return on the pension portfolio varies from the actual return, there is an unrecognized gain or loss.

Assumptions Used in the Valuations of the Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The following assumptions were used in the valuations of Towers Watson’s defined benefit pension plans. The assumptions presented for the
North American plans represent the weighted-average of rates for ail U.S. and Canadian plans. The assumptions presented for Towers
Watson’s European plans represent the weighted-average of rates for the U.K., Germany and Netherlands plans. In relation to the acquisition of
Towers Perrin on January 1, 2010, the legacy plans of Towers Perrin have been included in the assumptions as of and for the years ended

June 30, 2010 and 2011. The assumptions as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009 represent only the legacy Watson Wyatt plans.

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the fiscals years ended June 30, 201 1, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 : 2009
North North North
America Europe America Europe America Europe

Discount rate . 5.80% 525% - 6.43% - 6.03% 6.91% 6.47%
Expected long-term rate of return on : : :

assets 8.16% ©6.79% 8.11% 6.48% 8.61% 6.53%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.88% 3.88% 3.93% 5.09% 4.08% 5.36%
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The following table presents the assumptions used in the valuation to determine the projected benefit obligation for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010: '

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
North North
. America Europe America Europe
Discount rate 5.79% 5.62% 5.86% 5.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels : 3.82% 3.93% 3.88% 3.88%

For the 2011 fiscal year, the discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit cost was initially based on the rates in the table shown above
for the determination of the projected benefit obligation as of June 30, 2010, which included a 5.86% rate for North America. As a result of
plan changes adopted during the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, the legacy Watson Wyatt U.S. Pension Plans were remeasured as of
September 30, 2010. Upon remeasurement the discount rate assumption was changed for these plans and the net periodic benefit cost for the
2011 fiscal year was calculated using a weighted average discount rate of 5.79% for North America.

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost for Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The following tables set forth the components of net periodic benefit cost for our defined benefit pension plans for North America and Europe
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Year ended June 30,

2011 2010 2009
North North North
) America Europe America Europe America Europe

Service cost $ 58,050 $ 12,218 $ 38,068 $ 9,844 $24771 $ 7,538
Interest cost : 139,840 39,000 95,845 30,631 48,504 22,759
Expected return on plan assets (158,708) (40,420) (93,257) (27,078) (50,725) (20,945)
Amortization of net loss/(gain) 23,997 5,574 15,275 2,615 8,649 (328)
Amortization of prior service

(credit)/cost (6,632) 41 (1,623) 41 (2,279) 42
Settlement/(curtailment) and other

adjustments 5,038 (2,279) 2,293 924 — 120
Net periodic benefit cost , $ 61,585 $ 14,134 $ 56,601 $ 16,977 $ 28,920 $ 9,186

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations were recognized during fiscal 2011 and 2010 and have been included as changes to other
comprehensive income for the Company’s defined benefit pension plans as follows:

2011 2010
North North
. America Europe America Europe

Current year actuarial (gain)/loss - : $(172,078) $(107,560) $220,113 $37,501

Amortization of actuarial loss (23,997) (5,574) (15,275) (2,615)

Current year prior service credit (73,926) — — —
~ Amortization of prior service credit/(cost) 6,632 41 1,623 41)

(Settlement)/curtailment . 4,170) 2,323 (2,293) (64)

Other 5,378 4,058 1,320 (4,638)

Total recognized in other comprehensive income $(262,161) $(106,794) $205,488 $30,143

The actuarial gains were primarily the result of favorable asset performance globally, together with liability gains resulting from the use of
higher discount rates in Germany and the UK. The prior service credits resulted from changes to the U.S. plan provisions which will become
effective on January 1, 2012,

The estimated amounts that will be amortized from other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2012 for the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans are shown below:

2012
North
America Europe
Actuarial loss/(gain) $ 20,094 $ (2,445)
Prior service (credit)/cost (8,336) 42
Total $11,758 $ (2,403)
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the qualified plans projected benefit obligations and fair value of assets for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and a statement of funded status as of June 30,2011 and 2010:

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial losses/(gains) -

Benefit payments

Participant contributions '
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture
Plan amendments and other

Curtailments

Foreign currency adjustment

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in Plan Assets o
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Company contributions

Benefit payments "‘

Participant contributions

Acquisition/business combination/divestiture
Other

Foreign currency adjustment

Fair value of plan assets, end of year

Funded status at end of year

Accumulated Benefit Obligation

Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of;

Noncurrent assets
Noncurrent liabilities
Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

consist of:
Net actuarial loss/(gain)
Net prior service (credit)/cost
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
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2011 2010
North North
America Europe America Europe
$1,974,882 $617,365 $ 593,725 $355,701
46,955 8,239 30,420 7,656
112,391 34,236 77,536 27,501
32,756 - (68,732) 195,603 61,309
(83,171) (15,332) (65,263) (19,760)
" — 1,740 — —
— — 1,139,366 239,603
(55,930) 44 — 2,513
— (4,889) — —
24,120 49,693 3,495 (57,158)
$2,052,003 $622,364 $1,974,882 $617,365
$1,832,004 $562,542 $ 517,322 $315,769
369,875 | 64,026 103,850 55,514
36,346 19,216 34,388 21,020
(83,171), (15,332) (65,263) 7(19,760)
— 1,740 — 1,820
— — 11,239,101 241,953
— (116) — ~ (166)
19,825 47,083 2,606 (53,609)
$2,174,879 $679,159 $1,832,004 $562,541
$ 122876 $ 56,795 $ (142,878) $(54,824)
$2,013,171 $602,193 $1,897,011 $601,461
2011 2010
North North
America Europe America Europe
$179,546 $ 56,795 $ 45,949 $ 2,568
(56,670) — (188,827) (57,392)
$122,876 $ 56,795 $(142,878) $(54,824)
$136,080 $(30,437) $ 329,076 $ 65,553
(61,210) . 573 . (9,628) 572
$ 74,870 $(29,864) $ 319,448 $ 66,125




The following table presents the projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan.assets for our qualified plans that have a projected benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 : 2010
North North
_America Europe America -_Europe
Projected benefit obligation at end of year - $972,481 5 — $932,277 $594,687

Fair value of plan assets, end of year _ $915,811 $ — $743,450 $537,296
As of June 30, 2011, our European plan assets exceeded our plans’ projected benefit obligation. '

The following table presents the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for our qualified
plans that have an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
North North
America Europe ‘America . Europe
Projected benefit obligation at end of year v . $277,907 $  —  $932.277 $575,196
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year - ' $243,221 $ — $854,406 $564,959
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $223,457 $ — $743,450  $519,880°

As of June 30, 2011 our European plan assets, exceeded our plans’ projected benefit obligation as well as the accumulated benefit obligation.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the North American and European non-qualified plans projected benefit
obligations for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, and a statement of funded status as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. The non-qualified plans
reflect only the U.S., Canadian and German plans and are unfunded.

June 30,

2011 2010
Change in Benefit Obligation : oo a ' :
Benefit obligation at beginning of year A o _ - $627,474 $ 126,922
Service cost . ' ' ' 15075 9,836
Interest cost : . . . 32,213 21,439
Actuarial (gains)/losses e . S - ‘ C L 4,117 39,032
Benefit payments - (78,242) (37,003)
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture C : : ' : T — T 480,337
Plan amendments and other ) , ) - (7127 698
Foreign currency adjustment ' o ' o _ 26,328 (13,787)
Benefit obligation at end of year ) $ 601,604 $ 627474
Change in Plan Assets : : :
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year ' $ — $ —
Actual return on plan assets —_— —
Company contributions 78,242 37,003
Benefit payments , (78,242) (37,003)
Participant contributions — —
Foreign currency adjustment — —
Funded status at end of year $(601,604) $(627,474)
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
Noncurrent assets $ — $ —
Current liabilities - (91,499) (81,743)
Noncurrent labilities (510,105) (545,731)
Net amount recognized $(601,604) $(627.474)
Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consist of:
Net actuarial loss $ 26,826 $ 39,517
Net prior service credit (16,600) (903)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income $ 10,226 $ 38,614
Information for plans with obligations in excess of plan assets:
Projected Benefit Obligation $ 601,604 $ 627474
Accumulated Benefit Obligation 590,644 606,529

Fair value of plan assets — —

87



Our investment strategy is designed to generate returns that will reduce the interest rate risk inherent in each of the plans’ liabilities and enable
each of the plans to meet its future obligations. The precise amount for which these obligations will be settled depends on future events,
including the life expectancy of the plan’s members and salary inflation. The obligations are estimated using actuarial assumptions, based on
the current economic environment.

Each pension plan seeks to achieve total returns both sufficient to meet expected future obligations as well as returns greater than its policy
benchmark reflecting the target weights of the asset classes used in its targeted strategic asset allocation. Each plan’s targeted strategic
allocation to each asset class is determined through a plan-specific Asset-Liability Modeling study. These comprehensive studies provide an
evaluation of the projected status of asset and liability measures for each plan under a range of both positive and negative environments. The
studies include a number of different asset mixes, spanning a range of diversification and potential equity exposures.

In evaluating the strategic asset allocation choices, an emphasis is placed on the long-term characteristics of each individual asset class, and the
benefits of diversification among multiple asset classes. Consideration is also given to the proper long-term level of risk for each plan,
particularly with respect to the long-term nature of each plan’s liabilities, the impact of asset allocation on investment results, and the
corresponding impact on the volatility and magnitude of plan contributions and expense and the impact certain actuarial techniques may have
on the plan’s recognition of investment experience.

For the legacy Watson Wyatt funded plans, the targeted equity allocation as of June 30, 2011 is 55% in the U.S. plan, 65% in the Canadian
plan, 30% in the Netherlands plan, and 46% in the U.K. plan. ‘ '

For the legacy Towers Perrin funded plans, the targeted equity allocation as of June 30, 2011 is 60% in the U.S. plan, 50% in the Canadian plan
and 60% in the U.K. plan. The duration of the fixed income assets is plan specific and each has been targeted to minimize fluctuations in plan
funded status as a result of changes in interest rates. The Netherlands plan is invested in an insurance contract. Consequently, the asset
allocation of the plan is managed by the insurer. .

The U.S. and Canadian plans of legacy Towers Perrin employ a smoothed value of assets in calculating pension expense. This smoothed value
recognizes the impact of deviations from the assumed rate of return on the non-fixed income portion of the portfolio over a five-year period.
However, the smoothed value of the non-fixed income portion of plan assets must be within a corridor between 80% and 120% of the fair
value. Fixed income investments are valued at market.

The investments of the legacy Watson Wyatt plans are valued at fair market value.

We monitor investment performance and portfolio characteristics on a quarterly basis to ensure that managers are meeting expectations with
respect to their investment approach. With the exception of securities issued by the U.S. Government and its agencies, no single issue is to
comprise more than 5% of the portfolio’s value although index fund managers are exempt from the security weighting constraints. There are
also various restrictions and controls placed on managers including prohibition from investing in our stock.

The expected return on assets assumption is developed in conjunction with advisors and using our asset model that reflects a combination of
rigorous historical analysis and the forward-looking views of the financial markets as revealed through the yield on long-term bonds, the price-
earnings ratios of the major stock market indices and long-term inflation. Amounts are tested for reasonableness against their historical
averages. The fair value of our North American and European plan assets by asset category at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (see Note
6 for a description of the fair value levels):

88



Fair Value M rements on a Recurring Basis at June 30, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
North North North .
America Europe America Europe America Europe
Asset category: . . ) . o L
Cash o . % 5837  $ 15179 $ —. . $ - % — % — 3 21,016
Cash equivalents - o — — 40,053 = t— = © 40,053
Equity securities: ) _ .
U.S. large cap companies 30,479 — — = = — 30,479
U.S. mid cap companies - 73,887 — = — = — - 73,887
U.S. small cap companies ''86,199 - = —_ — — -86,199
International equities 213,275 14,452 — — — — 227,727
leed income: : . : R . o o L Do . P N : e
U.S. treasuries _ 46,660 — 152,986 — — — 199,646
Corporate bonds C— — 428,156 112,930 L — — 541,086
Other fixed income 72,002 121,247 50,183(a) 26,263(a) — — 269,695
Pooled funds — . — . 434,208(b) ..353,161(b) R L= 787,369
Mutual funds — — 488,495 ' — — — 488,495
Limited partnerships — — — . — 50,066 18,085 68,151
Derivatives _ — — 30,377(d) — — C— 30,377
Insurance contracts ; — — — — — 17,841 - 17,841
Total assets $528,339 $150,878 $1,624,458 $492,354 $50,066 - $35,926 - $2,882,021
Liability category: .. ’ : : '
Derivatives ‘ $ — $ — $  32,542(d) $ — 5 — $ — $ 32,542
Net assets $528,339 $150,878 $1,591,916 $492,354 $50,066 $35,926 $2,849,479
Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis at June 30, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
North . North North
} America Europe America Europe Am'efrica‘ Europe
Asset category: ) . . N o S
Cash $ 1,921 $ 15,375 $ — $ — $ - — 8 —  $ 17,29
Cash equivalents -~ , — — 32,915 , — — — 32,915
Equity securities: o ) S : N
U.S. large cap companies ©7 21,507 — — — — S —1 o 21,507
U.S. mid cap companies 63,353 — — — — — 63,353
U.S. small cap companies - 83,393 — 24 — — = 83,417
International equities 152,369 17,008 — — — — 169,377
Fixed income:
U.S. treasuries 71,090 — — — — — 71,090
Corporate bonds ‘ — — 503,942 99,405 — — 603,347
Other fixed income 64,485 97,935 85,581(a) 18,011(a) — — 266,012
Pooled funds — — 432,490(b) 291,206(b) — — 723,696
Multi-strategy funds — — 146,054(c) . — — — 146,054
Mutual funds , — — 129,174 — — —_ 129,174
Limited partnerships — — — — 37,643 9,200 46,843
Derivatives —_ - 4,059(d) — : — — 4,059
Insurance contracts — — — — — 14,406 14,406
Net assets $458,118 $130,318 $1,334,239 $408,622 $37,643 $23,606 $2,392,546

(@) This category includes municipal and foreign bonds.

(b) This category includes pooled funds of both equity and fixed income securities. Fair value is based on the calculated net asset value of
shares held by the plan as reported by the sponsor of the funds.

(c) The fund seeks to exceed the total return of the S&P 500 Index by investing under normal circumstances in S&P 500 Index derivatives,
backed by a portfolio of fixed income instruments. Fair value is based on the calculated net asset value of shares held by the plan as
reported by the sponsor of the funds.

(d) We use various derivatives such as interest rate swaps, futures and options to match the duration of the corporate bond portfolio with the
duration of the plan liability.

&9



Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for investments at fair value:
Cash equivalents: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the Company at year end as reported by the sponsor of the funds.
U.S. treasury securities: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual security is traded.

Fixed Income: Certain corporate bonds are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the bond is traded. Other
corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Pooled Funds, Multi-strategy Funds and Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the Company at year end as reported
by the sponsor of the funds.

Derivative investments: Valued at the closing level of the relevant index or security and interest accrual through the valuation date.

Limited Partnerships: Valued at the net asset value of units held by the Company at year-end, as determined by multiplying the number of
units by the current unit value, which is based on the fair value of the underlying assets held in the trust.

Insurance contracts: The fair values are determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted cash flow
models, and similar techniques.

The following table reconciles the net plan investments to the total fair value of the plan assets:

June 30,
2011 2010
Net assets held in investments - ’ , $2,849,479 $2,392,546
Dividend and interest receivable 4,559 11,195
Other liabilities . : — (9,196)
Fair value of plan assets $2,854,038 $2,394,545

The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the plan’s Level 3 assets for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Limited Insurance
Partnerships Contracts Total
Beginning balance at June 30,2009 - ; ' . .. % 64,902 $ 934 $ 65,836
Increase due to acquisition _ E — 15,857 15,857
Net actual return on plan assets relating to assets still held at the reporting date 7,223 178 7,401
Net purchases, sales and settlements’ o (25,099) (227) (25,326)
Change in foreign currency exchange rates . ) ) (183) (2,336) (2,519)
Ending balance at June 30, 2010 $ 46,843 - $14,406 $ 61,249
Net actual return on plan assets relating to assets still held at the reporting date 6,817 55 . 6,872
Net purchases, sales and settlements ' 13,624 719 14,343
Change in foreign currency exchange rates 867 2,661 3,528

Ending balance at June 30, 2011 $ 68,151 $17,841 $ 85,992
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Benefit payments for our defined benefit pension plans, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as

foliows:
Benefit Payments
North
Fiscal Year _America Europe Total
2012 $. 190,507 $ 48,216 $ 238,723
2013 195,981 15,274 211,255
2014 177,386 24,946 202,332
2015 165,501 19,212 184,713
2016 166,389 25,066 © 191455
Years 2017 - 2021 935,358 150,483 1,085,841
$1,831,122 $283,197

$2,114,319

Defined Contribution Plan

Under the legacy Watson Wyatt plan, we sponsor a savings plan that provides benefits to substantially all U.S. associates. We match associate
contributions at a rate of 50% of the first 6% up to $60,000 of associates’ eligible compensation. We made matching contributions of $3.8
million, $3.4 million and $3.9 million to the plan in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We will also make an annual profit sharing
contribution to the plan in an amount that is dependent upon our financial performance during the fiscal year. The performance contributions
were $3.4 million, $4.2 million and $3.9 million in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. .

The legacy Watson Wyatt U.K. pension plan has a money purchase feature to which we make core contributions plus additional contributions
matching those of the participating associates up to a maximum rate. Contribution rates are dependent upon the age of the participant and on
whether or not they arise from salary sacrifice arrangements through which an individual has taken a reduction in salary and we have paid an
equivalent amount as pension contributions. Core contributions amount to 2-6% of pensionable salary with additional matching contributions
of a further 2-6%. Company contributions to the plan amounted to $10.0 million, $6.7 million and $6.5 million in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. :

The legacy Towers Perrin plans consist of sponsoring savings plans in 21 countries that provide benefits to substantially all associates within
those countries. Certain of these plans provide for a Company match to associate contributions at various rates. In the United States, we provide
a matching contribution of 100% of the first 5% of associate contributions. Company contributions to the plan amounted to $18.0 million and
$9.4 million in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. We make contributions of 10% of pay to the legacy Towers Perrin U.K. plan.
Company contributions to the U.K. plan amounted to $6.5 million and $3.3 million in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2011, all eligible employees hired beginning on that date participate in a new savings plan design which provides for
100% match on the first 2% of pay and 50% match on the next 4% of pay, and vesting at 100% upon two years of service for employer
contributions. All other associates continue participatirig in their respective legacy plans until January 1, 2012, at which time the legacy plans
will be frozen to new contributions and the associates will begin participation in the new savings plan design.

Health Care Beneﬁts

In the legacy Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin U.S. plans, we sponsor a contributory health care plan that provides hospitalization, medical
and dental benefits to substantially all U.S. associates. We accrue a liability for estimated incurred but unreported claims based on projected use
of the plan as well as prior plan history. The liability totaled $6.8 million and $4.9 million at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. This
liability is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

Postretirement Benefits

Under both the legacy Watson Wyatt and legacy Towers Perrin plans, we provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired
associates. The principal plans cover associates in the U.S. and Canada who have met certain eligibility requirements. Our principal post-
retirement benefit plans are primarily unfunded. We accrue a liability for these benefits. Retiree medical benefits provided under our US.
postretirement benefit plans were frozen to new hires effective January 1, 2011. Life insurance benefits under the same plans will be frozen
with respect to service, eligibility and amounts as of January 1, 2012 for active associates.
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Assumptions used in the valuation for the U.S. plan, which comprises the majority of the principal postretirement plans, included the following
as of the end of the last two fiscal years:

June 30,
. 2011 2010
Health care cost trend, accumulated benefit obligation (decreasing to 5.00% for 2016 and thereafter) . . . 1.61% 8.03%
Discount rate, accumulated benefit obligation postretirement benefit 5.65% 591%
Rate of compensation increase ) 4.06% 3.29%

Actuarial gains and losses associated with changing any of the assumptions are accumulated as part of the unrecognized net gain balance which
is amortized and included in the net periodic postretirement costs over the average remaining service period of participating associates, which
is approximately 9 years.

A one percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effect:

1% 1%
Increase Decrease
Effect on net periodic postretirement benefit cost in fiscal year 2011 . $ 967 $ (595)
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of June 30, 2011 . + 3,839 (3,202)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost consists of the following components reflected as expense in our consolidated statements of operations:

Year Ended June 30,
7 _ ) 2011 2010 2009
Service cost . o o ’ o $ 4,211 $ 3,313 $ 1,157
Interest cost o o v . 11,706 8,387 - 2,495
Expected return on assets ‘ _ ] (132) . (66) —
Amortization of net unrecognized losses/(gains) . o 1,674 (1,151) (1,135)
Amortization of prior service credit ' ‘ ) (6,842) (571) (661)
Curtailment (2,209) — —
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost ' ' $ 8,408 -~ $ 9912 $ 1,856

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations were recognized during fiscal 2011 and 2010 and have been included as changes to other
comprehensive income for the Company’s other postretirement benefit plans as follows:

2011 2010
Current year actuarial loss ] ' : ' $ 12,771 $16,782
Amortization of actuarial (loss)/gain , , (1,674) 1,151
Current year prior service credit o ' B (63,745) —
Amortization of prior service credit 6,842 571
Curtailment . 2,209 —
Other (53) (156)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income ’ $(43,650) $18,348

The estimated amounts that will be amortized from other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2012 for the
Company’s other postretirement benefit plans are shown below:

_2012
Actuarial loss ‘ $ 2,334
Prior service credit (8,765).

Total » . - ‘ $ (643D

92



The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and fair value of assets for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 and a statement of funded status as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

June 30,

) 2011 2010
Change in Benefit Obligation . :
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 245,540 $ 38,944
Service cost ) 4,211 3,313
Interest cost 11,706 8,387
Participant contributions 2,795 2,161
Actuarial losses . 112,645 16,714
Benefit payments : o ‘ (14,397) (8,556)
Acquisition/business combmanon/dlvestlture : —_— 183,112
Medicare Part D . h ) 809 708
Plan amendments and other : ' . " (63,745) —_
Foreign currency adjustment ' ‘ ' o 2,365 757
Benefit obligation, end of year ' $ 201,929 $ 245,540
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year S ' e $ 6,575 $ —
Company contributions ' : : ' : - 11,602 6,395
Participant contributions p 2,795 2,161
Benefit payments N ) . . . (14,397) (8,556)
Actual return on plan assets : . 5 )
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture : e : o L — 6,577
Fair value of plan assets, end of year . ) $ 6,580 $ 6,575
Funded status at end of year $(195,349) $(238,965)
Amounts recognized in Consolldated Balance Sheets consist of:
Noncurrent assets - 7 v L $ — $ —
Current liabilities - v . (5,245) (4,438)
Noncurrent liabilities - . (190,104) (234,527)
Net amount recognized : ' $(195,349) $(238,965)
Amounts recognized in-Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consist of: - i :
Net actuarial loss $ 12,397 $ 1,116
Net prior service credit : . , (57,899) (2,969)
Accumulated Other Comprehensnve Income $ (45,502) - $ (1,853)

The following benefit and retiree drug subsidy payments for our postretirement plan which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Benefit Retiree drug

Fiscal Year . _payments subsidy
2012 ‘ $ 17,151 $ 599
2013 ) 18,429 692
2014 : . ' 19,056 433
2015 _ ' : 20,151 124
2016 s ' S 21,378 119
Years 2017-2021 ' 123,470 495
$219,635 $ 2,462
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Note 11 — Debt, Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The debt, commitments and contingencies described below are currently in effect and would require Towers Watson, or domestic subsidiaries,
including Towers Watson Delaware (legacy Watson Wyatt) and Towers Watson Pennsylvania (legacy Towers Perrin), to make payments to
third parties under certain circumstances. In addition to commitments and contingencies specifically described below, Towers Watson and its
historical predecessor companies, Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin, have historically provided guarantees on an infrequent basis to third
parties in the ordinary course of business. .

Subordinated Notes due January 2011

On December 30, 2009, in connection with the Merger and the Class R Elections as described in Note 2, Towers Watson entered into an
indenture with the trustee for the issuance of Towers Watson Notes due January 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $200 million. The
Towers Watson Notes due January 2011 were issued on January 6, 2010, bearing interest from January 4, 2010 at a fixed per-annum rate of
2.0%, and matured on January 1, 2011. The indenture contained limited operating covenants, and obligations under the Towers Watson Notes
due January 2011 were subordinated to and junior in right of payment to the prior payment in full in cash of all Senior Debt (as defined in the
indenture) on the terms set forth in the Indenture. On January 3, 2011 (the first business day following the note maturity date), Towers Watson
repaid both principal and interest on the Notes which was funded in part by a $75 million borrowing under our Senior Credit Facility.

Subordinated Notes due March 2012

On June 15, 2010, in connection with an offer to exchange shares of Class B-1 Common Stock for unsecured subordinated notes, Towers
Watson entered into an indenture with the trustee for the issuance of Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 in the aggregate principal amount
of $97.3 million. The Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 were issued on June 29, 2010, bearing interest from June 15, 2010 at a fixed per-
annum rate, compounded quarterly on the “interest reset dates,” equal to the greater of (i) 2.0%, or (ii) 120.0% of the short-term applicable
federal rate listed under the quarterly column, in effect at the applicable “interest reset date.” The Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 will -
mature on March 15, 2012 and are included in the notes payable balance on our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2011. Obligations
under the Towers Watson Notes due March 2012 are subordinated to and junior in right of payment to the prior payment in full in cash of all
Senior Debt (as defined in the indenture).

Towers Watson Senior Credit Facility

On January 1, 2010, in connection with the Merger, Towers Watson and certain subsidiaries entered into a three-year, $500 million revolving
credit facility with a syndicate of banks (the “Senior Credit Facility”), which expires on December 31, 2012. Borrowings under the Senior
Credit Facility bear interest at a spread to either Libor or the Prime Rate. We are charged a quarterly commitment fee, currently 0.5% of the
Senior Credit Facility, which varies with our financial leverage and is paid on the unused portion of the Senior Credit Facility. Obligations
under the Senior Credit Facility are guaranteed by Towers Watson and all of its domestic subsidiaries (other than PCIC) and are secured by a
pledge of 65% of the voting stock and 100% of the non-voting stock of Towers Perrin Luxembourg Holdings S.A.R.L.

The Senior Credit Facility contains customary representations and warranties and affirmative and negative covenants. The Senior Credit
Facility requires Towers Watson to maintain certain financial covenants that include a minimum Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio and a
maximum Consolidated Leverage Ratio (which terms in each case are defined in the Senior Credit Facility). In addition, the Senior Credit
Facility contains restrictions on the ability of Towers Watson to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness; pay dividends; make
distributions; create liens on assets; make investments, loans or advances; make acquisitions; dispose of property; engage in sale-leaseback
transactions; engage in mergers or consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and make
changes in lines of businesses. As of June 30, 2011, we were in compliance with our covenants.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, Towers Watson had no borrowings outstanding under the Senior Credit Facility.

Letters of Credit under the Senior Credit Facility

As of June 30, 2011, Towers Watson had standby letters of credit totaling $24.9 million associated with our captive insurance companies in the
event that we fail to meet our financial obligations. Additionally, Towers Watson had $1.9 million of standby letters of credit covering various
other existing or potential business obligations. The aforementioned letters of credit are issued under the Senior Credit Facility, and therefore
reduce the amount that can be borrowed under the Senior Credit Facility by the outstanding amount of these standby letters of credit.
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Additional Borrowings, Letters of Credit and Guarantees not part of the Senior Credit Facility

Towers Watson Consultoria Ltda. (Brazil) has a bilateral credit facility with a major bank totaling Brazilian Real (BRL) 6.5 million (U.S.
$4.2 million). As of June 30, 2011, a total of BRL $5.3 million (U.S. $3.4 million) was outstanding under this facility.

Towers Watson has also provided a $5.0 million Australian dollar-denominated letter of credit (U.S. $5.4 million) to an Australian
govemnmental agency as required by the local regulations. The estimated fair market value of these letters of credit is immaterial because they
have never been used, and we believe that the likelihood of future usage is remote.

Towers Watson also has $6.5 million of letters of guarantee from major banks in support of office leases and performance under existing or
prospective contracts.

Indemnification Agreements

Towers Watson has various agreements that provide that it may be obligated to indemnify the other party with respect to certain matters.
Generally, these indemnification clauses are included in contracts arising in the normal course of business and in connection with the purchase
and sale of certain businesses. Although it is not possible to predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under these
indemnification agreements due to the conditional nature of Towers Watson’s obligations and the unique facts of each particular agreement,
Towers Watson does not believe that any potential liability that might arise from such indemnity provisions is probable or material. There are
no provisions for recourse to third parties, nor are any assets held by any third parties that any guarantor can liquidate to recover amounts paid
under such indemnities.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, Towers Watson and its subsidiaries, including Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin, are parties to various lawsuits, arbitrations
or mediations that arise in the ordinary course of business. The matters reported on below are the most significant pending or potential claims
against Towers Watson and its sub31d1ar1es We also receive subpoenas in the ordinary course and, from time- to- time, receive requests for
information in connection with government investigations.

Towers Watson carries substantial professional liability insurance which, effective July 1, 2010, has been provided by Stone Mountain
Insurance Company (“SMIC”), a wholly-owned captive insurance company. For the current policy period, SMIC provides us with $50 million
of professional liability insurance coverage per claim and in the aggregate, including the cost of defending such claims, above a $1 million per
claim self-insured retention. SMIC secured $25 million of reinsurance coverage from unaffiliated reinsurance companies in excess of the

$25 million SMIC retained layer.

This structure effectively results in self-insurance for the first $25 million of loss per occurrence or in the aggregate for Towers Watson above
the $1 million per claim self-insured retention. As a wholly-owned captive insurance company, SMIC is consolidated into our financial
statements. Excess insurance attaching above the SMIC coverage is provided by various unaffiliated commercial insurance companies.

For the policy period beginning July 1, 2011 and ending July 1, 2012, our professional liability insurance includes a self-insured retention of
$1 million per claim. For this policy period, Towers Watson also retains $10 million in the aggregate above the $1 million self-insured
retention per claim. SMIC provides us with $40 million of coverage per claim and in the aggregate, above the retentions. SMIC secured

$25 million of reinsurance from unaffiliated reinsurance companies in excess of the $15 million SMIC retained layer. Excess insurance
attaching above the SMIC coverage is provided by various unaffiliated commercial insurance companies.

Before the Merger, Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin each obtained substantial professional liability insurance from an affiliated captive
insurance company, Professional Consultants Insurance Company (“PCIC”). A limit of $50 million per claim and in the aggregate was
provided by PCIC subject to a $1 million per claim self insured retention and coverage was structured substantially similarly to the coverage
currently provided by SMIC. PCIC secured reinsurance of $25 million attaching above the $25 million PCIC retained layer. from unaffiliated
reinsurance companies. Post-Merger, Towers Watsorn has a 72.86% ownership interest in PCIC and, as a result, PCIC’s results are consolidated
in Towers Watson’s operating results. The PCIC insurance policies will continue to cover professional liability claims above a $1 million per
claim self-insured retention for claims reported during the periods these policies were in effect, effectively resulting in self-insurance for the
first $25 million of aggregate loss for each of Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin above the $1 million per claim self-insured retention. As a
result of consolidating PCIC’s results of operations in our consolidated financial statements, the impact of PCIC’s reserve development may
result in fluctuations in Towers Watson’s earnings.
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We reserve for contingent liabilities based on ASC 450, Contingencies, when it is determined that a liability, inclusive of defense costs, is
probable and reasonably estimable. The contingent liabilities recorded are primarily developed actuarially. Litigation is subject to many factors
which are difficult to predict so there can be no assurance that in the event of a material unfavorable result in one or more claims, we will not
incur material costs.

ExxonMobil Superannuation Plan (Australia)

In March 2007, the Trustees of the ExxonMobil (Australia) Superannuation Plan commenced a legal proceeding in the Supreme Court of
Victoria against Towers Perrin and the plan sponsors, Esso (Australia) and ExxonMobil (Australia), commenced a similar legal proceeding
against Towers Perrin in April 2007 (collectively the “2007 actions™). On May 15, 2009, as the time was expiring to add any additional
contributing parties, Towers Perrin filed third-party claims against Watson Wyatt, the successor actuary and Plan administrator. The
professional advisors other than Towers Perrin who were named as defendants in the 2007 actions then commenced a separate legal proceeding
against Watson Wyatt seeking indemnification and contribution (the “contribution action”).

The complaints in the 2007 actions alleged that while performing administrative and actuarial services for the Superannuation Plan during the
period from mid-1990 to 1995, Towers Perrin failed to detect drafting errors made by previous plan advisors including attorneys, when these
advisors prepared certain amendments to the Superannuation Plan Deed. These amendments were adopted before Towers Perrin commenced its
engagement. Watson Wyatt succeeded Towers Perrin as the plan administrator and plan actuary in 1996 and continues to serve in those
capacities. The previous plan advisors also were named as defendants in the 2007 actions.

Plaintiffs alleged that the faulty drafting resulted in the grant of additional, but unintended and unauthorized benefits, to certain Superannuation
Plan participants. Plaintiffs further alleged that because Towers Perrin failed to detect the drafting error, benefits were not properly
administered and the plan was not properly funded. Towers Perrin administered and valued the plan benefits consistent with what the plan
sponsors contend was intended. Watson Wyatt continued to administer and value the benefits in the same manner when it succeeded Towers
Perrin in 1996. The estimate of the value of the allegedly unintended benefits at the time all proceedings were settled was AU$510 million.

The Trustee and plan sponsors were engaged since 2001 in a separate legal proceeding (the “rectification action”) which sought an
interpretation of the relevant portions of the plan Deed and, if necessary, modification to conform those portions to reflect the manner in which
the benefits were intended to be, and were, administered during both the Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt engagements. The parties to the
rectification action (which did not include Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt) reached an agreement to settle that matter by agreeing to provide
a compromise benefit to plan participants, the net present value of which was approximately AU$143.3 million as of October 2009. This
settlement was approved by the Court. Subsequently, Towers Perrin and Watson Wyatt concluded a settlement of all claims between and
among all parties in all proceedings and on May 2, 2011, the Court entered orders dismissing all claims against all parties in the 2007 actions,
thereby concluding fully and finally all legal proceedings. There was no exposure to loss in excess of amounts previously accrued, including
the accrual for legal fees.

Former Towers Perrin shareholder litigation

A putative class action lawsuit filed by certain former shareholders of Towers Perrin (the “Dugan Action”) previously was reported in
Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (File No. 333-161705) filed on November 9, 2009 by the Jupiter Saturn
Holding Company (the “Registration Statement™). As reported in the Registration Statement, the complaint was filed on November 5, 2009
against Towers Perrin, members of its board of directors, and certain members of senior management in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

Plaintiffs in this action are former members of Towers Perrin’s senjor management, who left Towers Perrin at various times between 1995 and
2000. The Dugan plaintiffs seek to represent a class of former Towers Perrin shareholders who separated from service on or after January 1,
1971, and who also meet certain other specified criteria. The complaint does not contain a quantification of the damages sought.

On December 9, 2009, Watson Wyatt was informed by Towers Perrin of a settlement demand from the plaintiffs in the Dugan Action.
Although the complaint in the Dugan Action does not contain a quantification of the damages sought, plaintiffs’ settlement demand, which was
orally communicated to Towers Perrin on December 8, 2009 and in writing on December 9, 2009, sought a payment of $800 million to settle
the action on behalf of the proposed class. Plaintiffs requested that Towers Perrin communicate the settlement demand to Watson Wyatt.

On December 17, 2009, four other former Towers Perrin shareholders, all of whom voluntarily left Towers Perrin in May or June 2005 and all
of whom are excluded from the proposed class in the Dugan Action, commenced a separate legal proceeding (the “Allen Action”) in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania alleging the same claims in substantially the same
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form as those alleged in the Dugan Action. We anticipate a fifth plaintiff will be added to this action. These plaintiffs are proceeding in their
individual capacities and do not seek to represent a proposed class.

On January 15, 2010, another former Towers Perrin shareholder who separated from service with Towers Perrin in March 2005 when Towers
Perrin and EDS launched a joint venture that led to the creation of a corporate entity known as ExcellerateHRO (“eHRO”), commenced a
separate legal proceeding (the “Pao Action") in the United States District Court of the Eastern District of Pennsylvania also alleging the same
claims in substantially the same form as those alleged in the Dugan Action. Towers Perrin contributed its Towers Perrin Administrative
Solutions (“TPAS”) business to eHRO and formerly was a minority shareholder (15%) of eHRO. Pao seeks to represent a class of former
Towers Perrin shareholders who separated from service in connection with Towers Perrin’s contribution to eHRO.of its TPAS business and
who are excluded from the proposed class in the Dugan Action. Towers Watson is also named as a defendant in the Pao Action.

Pursuant to the Towers Perrin Bylaws in effect at the time of their separations, the Towers Perrin shares held by each of these plaintiffs were
redeemed by Towers Perrin at book value at the time these individuals separated from employment. The complaints allege variously that there
either was a promise that Towers Perrin would remain privately owned in perpetuity (Dugan Action) or that in the event of a change to public
ownership plaintiffs would receive compensation (Allen and Pao Actions). Plaintiffs allege that by agreeing to sell their shares back to Towers
Perrin at book value upon retirement, they and other members of the putative classes relied upon these alleged promises, which they claim were
breached as a result of the consummation of the Merger between Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin. The complaints assert claims for breach of
contract, breach of express trust, breach of fiduciary duty, promissory estoppel, quasi-contract/unjust enrichment, and constructive trust, and
seek equitable relief including an accounting, disgorgement, rescission and/or restitution, and the imposition of a constructive trust. On

January 20, 2010, the court consolidated the three actions for all purposes.

On February 22, 2010, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the complaints in their entireties. By order dated September 30, 2010, the court
granted the motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ claim for a constructive trust and denied the motion with respect to all other claims alleged. Pursuant
to the court’s September 30 order, defendants also filed answers to plaintiffs’ complaints on October 22, 2010. The parties are currently
engaged in fact discovery. At this stage of the proceedings, the Company has concluded that, because the parties remain in the relatively early
stages of discovery, aloss is neither probable nor estimable, and that the Company is unable to estimate a reasonably possible loss or range of
loss.

Towers Watson continues to believe the claims in these lawsuits are without merit and intends to continue to defend against them vigorously.
However, the cost of defending against the claims could be substantial and the outcome of these legal proceedings is inherently uncertain and
could be unfavorable to Towers Watson.

Acument Global Technologies, Inc.

In a letter to the Company dated January 26, 2011, Acument Global Technologies, Inc. (“Acument™) and the Acument Global Technologies,
Inc. Pension Plan (the “Plan”) claim that Towers Watson breached its fiduciary duties under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (“ERISA™) in connection with advice provided to Acument relating to investment of certain assets of the Plan in the Westridge Capital
Management Enhancements Funds (the “Westridge Funds™). Acument and the Plan demand that the Company make the Plan whole for losses
and damages allegedly sustained as a result of Acument’s decision to invest in the Westridge Funds. Watson Wyatt Investment Consulting, Inc.
(“WWIC”), now known as Towers Watson Investment Services, Inc. (“TWIS”), provided investment consulting services to Acument between
December 1, 2007 and April 30, 2010. In connection with those services, WWIC recommended an investment in the Westridge Funds. In

July 2008, Acument made a $47.0 million investment in the Westridge Funds. During the period December 1, 2008 through January 22, 2009,
Acument made additional investments of $9.5 million, bringing the aggregate investment of the Plan’s assets in the Westridge Funds to

$56.5 million.

As the result of information obtained during an investigation of Westridge Capital Management, its affiliates WG Trading Investors, L.P. and
WG Trading Company, L.P. (collectively referred to as “Westridge™) and their principals, commenced by the National Futures Association on
February 5, 2009, the Commodities Future Trading Commission (“CFTC”) filed suit against Westridge and its principals alleging violations of
the Commodity Exchange Act. This resulted in a court-supervised receivership of the assets of Westridge. The Securities Exchange
Commission filed a separate suit on February 25, 2009 against Westridge and its principals alleging violations of the federal securities laws. In
its complaint, the SEC alleges that Westridge had become a fraudulent investment scheme by which its principals purportedly misappropriated
approximately $553 million from a number of highly sophisticated institutional investors, including public pension and retirement plans and
educational institutions, some of which were investing in Westridge as late as February 6, 2009. To date, Acument has recovered
approximately $38.2 million of its investment in the Westridge Funds from the receivership. The Combpany has declined Acument’s demand for
compensation and plans to defend vigorously against any legal proceedings that may ensue. Accordingly, a loss is neither probable nor
estimable, and we are unable to estimate a reasonably possible loss or range of loss.
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Note 12 — Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Comprehensive income/(loss) includes net income, additional minimum pension liability, unrealized gains and losses on available for sale
securities, hedge effectiveness and changes in the cumulative translation adjustment gain or loss. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
comprehensive income was $619.7 million. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, comprehensive income was $173.8 million.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss along with the respective position in the consolidated balance sheets are comprised
of the following:

June 30,
2011 2010
Foreign currency translation - ' ;e ‘ $ 2,726) $(157,721)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net of tax of $(764) and $1,292 ‘ 1,172 (1,986)
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities, net of tax of $(101) and $(29) o ) 1,066 ' 98
Pension and postretirement, net of tax of $4,700 and $149,854 (12,817) (276,720)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - T ’ $(13,305)° $(436,329)

Note 13 — Restricted Stock

In conjunction with the Merger, shares of Towers Watson common stock issued to Towers Perrin shareholders have been divided among four
series of non-transferable Towers Watson common stock, Classes B-1, B-2, B-3 and B-4, each with a par-value of $0.01 per share. The shares
listed in the table below reflect a reduction of shares for our tender offer and our secondary public offering and by the acceleration of vesting
due to involuntary associate terminations detailed below. In addition, on January 31, 2011, we completed the acquisition of EMB and issued
113,858 Class B-3 and 113,858 Class B-4 common stock to the sellers as consideration.

On January 1, 2011, 5,642,302 shares of Class B-1 common stock converted to freely tradable Class A common stock. The remaining
outstanding shares of Towers Watson Class B common stock generally will automatically convert on a one-for-one basis into shares of freely
transferable shares of Towers Watson Class A common stock on the following timetable:

Stock Class : Number of Sharés Conversion Date

B-2 5,561,630 January 1, 2012
B-3 i 5,675,488 January 1, 2013
B-4 ‘ 5,415,035 January 1, 2014

On September 22, 2010, we completed a secondary public offering of our Class A common stock. This offering allowed certain existing
holders of the Company’s outstanding Class B-1 common stock to convert and sell 4,279,233 shares of Class A common stock at $46.00 and
granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to 641,768 additional shares to cover any overallotments. On October 1, 2010, we completed
the exercise in full by the underwriters of such overallotment option. Towers Watson did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of
shares, and there was no dilution of shares currently outstanding.

At a special meeting of stockholders held on September 9, 2010, Towers Watson’s stockholders approved a proposal to eliminate a restriction
in the Company’s certificate of incorporation on the number of shares of Class B common stock that the Board of Directors can convert into
shares of Class A common stock. This amendment was required to conduct the offering and provides the Company with the flexibility to
release converted shares of Class B common stock into the public market if the Board of Directors determines that such action is advisable.

On June 29, 2010, we completed a tender offer to exchange shares of our Class B-1 common stock, par value $.01 per share, for unsecured
subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $97.3 million due March 15,2012. Each note had a principal amount equal to the
product of the number of shares of Class B-1 common stock tendered and $43.43, the exchange ratio. '

The purpose of the tender offer was to.enable us to acquire shares of Class B-1 common stock in an orderly fashion to reduce the impact of any
sales or potential sales that may have occurred after January 1, 2011 on the market price of Class A common stock. As a result of the tender
offer, we repurchased 2,267,265 shares of Class B-1 common stock in exchange for notes payable to Class B-1 shareholders in the aggregate
principal amount of $97.3 million.

The Towers Perrin restricted stock unit (“RSU”) holders received 10% of the tofal consideration issued to Towers Perrin shareholders in
conjunction with the Merger. The RSUs were converted into 4,248,984 Towers Watson Restricted Class A shares, of which an
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estimated 10%, or 424,898 shares, are expected to be forfeited by current associate Restricted Class A shareholders who are subject to a service
condition. The service condition is fulfilled from grant date through each of the three annual périods from January 1, 2010 until December 31,
2012. The restriction lapses annually on January 1 and the Restricted Class A shares become freely tradable shares of Class A common stock
on such dates. Forfeited shares will be distributed after January 1, 2013 to Towers Perrin shareholders as of December 31, 2009 in proportion
to their ownership in Towers Perrin on the date of the Merger. Shareholders of Restricted Class A shares have voting rights and receive
dividends upon annual vesting of the shares. Dividends on forfeited shares are distributed with the associated shares after January 1, 2013. The
shares listed in the table below reflect a reduction of shares for forfeitures and acceleration of vesting due to voluntary and involuntary
associate terminations and reflect the outstanding Restricted Class A shares,as of June 30, 2011.

Stock Class . Number of Shares Conversion Date

A o ‘ L 1,217,281 January 1, 2012
A 1,217,281 January 1, 2013

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we recorded $71.7 million and $48.0 million, respectively, of non-cash share-based
compensation expense in connection with the issuance of Towers Watson Restricted Class A common stock to Towers Perrin RSU holders in
the Merger. The graded method of expense methodology assumes that the restricted shares are issued to Towers Perrin RSU holders i in equal
amounts of shares which vest as separate awards over one, two and three years.

Note 14 — Share-Based Compensation

In connection with the Merger, Towers Watson assumed the amended and restated Watson Wyatt 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the
Watson Wyatt 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan, and created the Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Towers Watson did
not assume the Watson Wyatt 2001 Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Selected Employees or the Watson Wyatt Amended Compensation Plan for
Outside Directors.

Towers Watson & Co. Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Towers Watson assumed the amended and restated Watson Wyatt 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) which
enables associates to purchase shares of Towers Watson Class A common stock at a 5% discount. The Stock Purchase Plan is a non-
compensatory plan under generally accepted accounting principles of stock-based compensation. As a result, no compensation expense is
recognized in conjunction with this plan. Watson Wyatt originally registered 750,000 shares of its Class A common stock on December 19,
2001 and an additional 1,500,000 shares of its Class A -common stock on December 16, 2003, of which 196,424 shares remained available for
issuance immediately prior to the Merger, at which time 4,500,000 additional shares were added. Towers Watson filed a Form S-8 Reglstratlon
Statement in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 registering the 4,696,424 shares available for issuance under the Stock Purchase Plan.

Approximately 108,000 shares, 146,000 shares and 145,000 shares were issued under this plan during fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In January 2010, Towers Watson filed a Form S-8 Registration Statement to register 12,500,000 shares of Towers Watson Class A common
stock that may be issued pursuant to the Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2009 Plan™) and 125,648 shares of

Class A common stock that may be issued upon exercise of the unvested stock options previously granted under the Watson Wyatt 2000 Long-
Term Incentive Plan. The Watson Wyatt 2000 Long-term Incentive Plan was assumed by Towers Watson and the registered shares for the
Watson Wyatt 2000 Long-term Incentive Plan are limited to exercise of awards that were outstanding at the time of the Merger. The assumed
options were exercisable for shares of Towers Watson Class A common stock based on the exchange ratio of one share of Watson Wyatt

Class A common stock underlying the options for one share of Towers Watson Class A common stock The 2009 Plan was approved by
Watson Wyatt shareholders on December 18, 2009.

Restricted Stock Units

Executives and Employees

In September 2010, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the form of performance-vested restricted stock unit
award agreement, pursuant to the 2009 Plan. RSUs are designed to provide us an opportunity to offer long-term incentives and to provide key
executives with a long-term stake in our success. RSUs are notional, non-voting units of measurement based on our common stock. Under the
RSU agreement, participants become vested in a number of RSUs based on the achievement of specified levels of financial performance during
the performance period set forth in the agreement, provided that the participant remains in
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continuous service with us through the end of the performance period. The targeis reflect an emphasis on continued profitability growth
through successful integration, despite the difficult economic environment. Any RSUs that become vested are payable in shares of our Class A
Common Stock. Dividend equivalents will accrue on RSUs and vest to the same extent as the underlying shares.

During the three months ended September 30, 2010, 125,192 RSUs were granted to certain of our executive officers for the 2010 t0 2013
performance period. Awards are based on the value of the executive officer’s annual base salary and a multiplier, which is then converted into a
target number of RSUs based on our closing stock price as of the date of grant of $45.25. Between 0% and 204% of the target number of RSUs
will vest based on the extent to which specified performance metrics are achieved over the three-year performance period from July 1, 2010 to
June 30, 2013, subject to their continued employment with us through the end of the performance period. The Compensation Committee
approved the grants and established adjusted EBITDA margin for the six-month period ending June 30, 2013 and revenue growth during the
performance period (based on fiscal year 2013 revenue versus fiscal year 2010 revenue) as the performance metrics for the awards. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, we recorded $3.2 million of stock-based compensation related to this grant.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 35,700 RSUs were granted respectively to certain employees. The award of 7,200 RSUs vested
immediately in the third quarter of fiscal 2011 and the award of 28,500 RSUs vest in equal annual instailments over a three-year period ending
January 1, 2013 based on continued employment through each vesting period. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 1, we recorded

$1.5 million of stock-based compensation related to these grants. :

Outside Directors

In May 2010, the board of directors approved the Towers Watson & Co. Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors which provides for
cash and stock compensation for outside directors. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, 24,710 restricted stock units were granted for
the annual award for outside directors for service on the board of directors in equal quarterly installments over the fiscal year 2011, In fiscal
year 2010, 22,149 restricted stock units were granted for the initial award for outside directors for service on the board of directors which vest
in equal annual installments over a three year period ending January 1, 2013. Also in fiscal year 2010, 9,844 restricted stock units were granted
for the annual award for outside directors for service on the board of directors from January 1, 2010 through June 30, 2010. A board member
did not stand for re-election in fiscal year 2011 resulting in a reversal of previously recorded compensation expense. We recorded $1.3 million
of non-cash stock based compensation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 related to these awards for outside directors.

The table below presents restricted stock units activity and weighted average fair values for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010:

Number of Weighted Average

_ Shares Fair Value -
' : ] (thousands)
Nonvested at June 30, 2010 : 24.0 $ 48.98
Granted ) 185.6 46.07
Vested _ o (32.1) 47.54
Forfeited (1) @7 44.69
Nonvested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2011 172.9 46.31

(1)  Forfeited shares represent performance shares that are not estimated to vest for the year ended June 30, 2011.

As of June 30, 2010, $7.0 million of total stock-based compensation related to the nonvested awards above has not yet been recognized. We
expect that this expense will be recognized in our consolidated statement of operations over the next 2.0 weighted-average years.

Stock Options

There were no grants of stock options during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 under the 2009 Plan.

Duri'ng the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, 108,933 fully vested stock options were granted under the 2009 Plan with an exercise price equal to
the grant date fair value of Towers Watson Class A common stock of $45.88. As a result, the Company recorded $1.3 million of stock-based

compensation in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. There were no grants of stock options in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 under the
2009 Plan.
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Also during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, 125,648 stock options were granted under the Watson Wyatt 2000 Long-term Incentive Plan
with an exercise price equal to the grant date market price of Watson Wyatt’s common stock of $42.47 with a three-year vesting term. All
outstanding Watson Wyatt stock options became fully vested at the time of the Merger with the exercise price as of the original grant date and
the unamortized grant date fair value of the options was recorded as expense. As a result, we recorded stock-based compensation of

$1.3 million during fiscal year 2010. There were no grants of stock options during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 under the Watson Wyatt

2000 Long-term Incentive Plan.

The weighted-average fair value of the stock option grants under both plans was calculated using the Black-Scholes formula and are included
in the valuation assumptions table below. In addition, a post-vesting discount was calculated using 1.4%, the risk-free interest rate of a three-
year bond, compounded over three years. The post-vesting discount was used to estimate fair value as there is a transfer restriction for three
years of the stock option’s underlying shares once vested. Compensation expense is recorded over a three-year graded vesting term as if one-
third of the options granted to a participant are vested over one year, one-third are vested over two years and the remaining one-third are vested

over three years.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2009
Stock option grants:
Risk-free interest rate —% 1.40% —%
Expected lives in years — 3 —
Expected volatility —% 37.2% —%
Dividend yield : R » —% 0.6% —%
Weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted $ — $ 11.02 $ —
Number of shares granted — 234,581 —
The table below presents stock option activity during fiscal year 2011 and options outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2011.
Weighted Average
Average Aggregate Remaining
Number of Exercise Intrinsic Contractual
_ Shares _ Price Value Life
(thousands) (thousands) (years)
Outstanding at June 30, 2010 234.6 $ 44.05
Granted —- —
Exercised 47.0) 43.83 $ 4247
Forfeited — —
Expired = —
Outstanding and Exercisable at June 30, 2011 187.6 $ 44:11 $4,051.8 6.4
Information regarding stock options outstanding at June 30, 2011 is as follows:
‘ Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Remaining Weighted } Remaining Weighted
Number of Contractual Average Number of Contractual Average
Exercise Price Shares Life Exercise Price Shares Life Exercise Price
(thousands) (years) (thousands) (years)
$ 42.47 97.4 68 $ 42.47 974 68 $ 42.47
$ 45.88 90.2 61 % 45.88 90.2 61 § 45.88
$ 42.47 to $45.88 187.6 $ 44.11 187.6 $ 44,11
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The aggregate intrinsic value is the sum of the amounts by which he quoted market price of our common stock exceeded the exercise price of
the options at June 30, 2011, for those options for which the quoted market price was in excess of the exercise price.

Former Watson Wyatt Plans and Change of Control Provisions

The following former Watson Wyatt Plans were not assumed by Towers Watson and all obligations under the plans have been met. The °
following reflects the activity in these plans for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Restricted Stock Units

The Watson Wyatt 2001 Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Selected Employees was intended to provide selected associates with additional
incentives by permitting Watson Wyatt to grant them an equity interest in the form of restricted stock units, in lieu of a portion of their annual
fiscal year end bonus. Shares under this plan are awarded during the first quarter of each fiscal year. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2010,
219,751 shares of common stock were awarded at an average market price of $44.08 for a total fair value of $9.7 million. During the first
quarter of fiscal year 2009, 295,775 shares of common stock were awarded at an average market price of $54.24 for a total fair value of

$16.0 million. '

Deferred Stock Units

Under the Watson Wyatt 2001 Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Selected Employees, there were Performance Share Bonus Incentive Programs
(“SBI”), which consisted of grants of deferred stock units based on either salary or on the value of the cash portion of the eligible participant’s
fiscal year-end bonus target and a multiplier, which was then converted into a target number of deferred stock units based upon Watson
Wiyatt’s stock price as of the quarter end prior to grant. Participants vested between zero and 170% of the target number of deferred stock units
or between zero and 100% based on the extent to which financial and strategic performance metrics were achieved over three fiscal year
periods. The financial and strategic performance metrics were established at the beginning of each performance period. For the performance
periods covering fiscal years 2007 through 2009, 2008 through 2010, and 2009 through 2011, the vesting criteria were based upon growth
specific metrics such as earnings per share, net operating income and revenue.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2010, 94,906 shares vested, of which 66,065 were deferred and 28,841 were awarded at a market price of
$44.07 to certain senior executive officers under the SBI 2007 plan, which represented vesting at 135% of the target number of deferred stock
units. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, 164,457 shares vested, of which, 120,396 were deferred and 44,061 were awarded at a market
price of $56.83 to certain senior executive officers under the SBI 2006 plan, which represented vesting at 170% of the target number of
deferred stock units.

Expenses for this plan were recognized when awards met the criteria of both probable and reasonably estimable. Stock-based compensation
related to these performance awards is recorded as a component of salaries and employee benefits. Historically, Watson Wyatt’s management
periodically reviewed conditions that would affect the vesting of performance-based awards and adjusted compensation expense, if necessary,
based on achievement of financial performance metrics set by the Compensation Committee of Watson Wyatt. The SBI 2008 and 2009 plan
documents stated that the Watson Wyatt Compensation Committee had the discretion to accelerate the vesting of awards under the SBI
Program in connection with a change in control. Based on available plan performance information, the Watson Wyatt Compensation
Committee concluded that (i) no payout would be made under the SBI 2008 plan upon the date of the Merger, and (ii) it would settle the SBI
2009 plan at 100% of target to take into account that the performance period would only be halfway completed as of the closing date of the
Merger.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2010, Watson Wyatt’s management evaluated the performance metrics of the SBI 2008 for Select
Associates, and based on an update to the forecast for the remaining performance period, the accrual of compensation expense recorded was
$3.0 million in the three months ended December 31, 2009. Approximately $3.4 million of compensation expense was recorded relative to the
SBI plans during the third quarter of fiscal year 2010 as a result of change of control provisions. In addition, 142,081 of fully vested deferred
restricted stock units from the fiscal year 2005 through 2007 plans were distributed subsequent to the Merger as the 2001 Deferred Stock Unit
Plan for Selected Employees was not assumed by Towers Watson. Stock-based compensation expense of $6.3 miilion and $1.0 million was
recorded pursuant to this plan during fiscal years 2010 and 20009, respectively.

Amended Compensation Plan for Outside Directors

Historically, Watson Wyatt provided for cash and stock compensation for outside directors under the Amended Compensation Plan for Outside
Directors, which was approved by the board of directors of Watson Wyatt in November 2001. The total number of shares reserved for issnance
under the Amended Compensation Plan for Outside Directors was 150,000. The Amended Compensation Plan for Outside Directors was not
assumed by Towers Watson. Under this plan, outside Watson Wyatt directors were initially paid in shares of Watson Wyatt’s common stock,
or in a combination of cash and shares, quarterly, at the completed quarter-end share price
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(which approximates fair-value), for services provided during the preceding quarter. During the six months ended December 31, 2009, 6,136
shares of common stock were awarded for a total fair value of $0.3 million. During fiscal year 2009, 4,300 shares of common stock were
awarded for a total fair value of $0.2 million.

Note 15 — Income Taxes

Income before income taxes shown below is allocated between operations in the United States (including international branches) and foreign
countries. The components of income before income taxes are as follows:

' 2011 2010 2009
Domestic o $206,975 $ 27,375 $127,811
Foreign ‘ 119,666 142,542 93,923
: 326,641 169,917 221,734
The components of the income tax provision for continuing operations include:

Year Ended June 30,
_ 2011 2010 ’ 2009
Current tax expense: ‘ : o
U.S. federal . $ 44,360 $ 6,288 $31,899
State and local 15,489 3,109 - 7,067
Foreign 55,619 46,644 22,105

. T 115,468 56,041 . 61,071
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:

“U.S. federal ~ (4,186) (2,656) 7,405
State and local . 3,353 (4,888) . 2,359
Foreign C 15,281 .. 2410 444

14,448 (5,134) 14,205
Total provision for income taxes ' ' $129,916 $50,907 $75,276

The reported income tax provision differs from the amounts that would have resulted had the reported income before income taxes been taxed
at the U.S. federal statutory rate. The principal reasons for the differences between the amounts provided and those that would have resulted
from the application of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate are as follows: ’

Year Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2009

Tax provision at U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35 percent $114,325  $59471 $77,607
Increase (reduction) resulting from: . .

Foreign income tax rate differential, net P . (19,639) (4,013) (7,613)

State income taxes, net of federal tax effect : ) 13,095 . 88 6,579

Non-deductible éxpenses and foreign dividend : - 10,477 - - 5350 - 4,764

Tax credits (5,041) 6,247) (4,702)

Valuation allowance 15,214 (19,925) —

Medicare Part D subsidy — v 9,367 —_

Legal entity restructuring S R — 5,636 . —

Other . ' . 1,485 1,180 (1,359)
Income tax provision - - ' , - $129,916 "~ $ 50,907 $75,276

The provision for income taxes for fiscal year 2011 is 39.8% compared with 30.0% in fiscal year 2010. Our effective tax rate increased for
fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2010 primarily due to a change in the mix of income between foreign and U.S. operations and an
increase in the valuation allowance for foreign jurisdictions for fiscal year 2011. The effective tax rate in fiscal year 2010 was significantly
lower due to a valuation allowance release on U.S. foreign tax credits as we determined that it was more likely than not that these foreign tax
credits would be realized within the carryforward period.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the effect of temporary differences between the assets and liabilities recognized for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts recognized for income tax purposes. We recognize deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a
benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) included in the consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2011, and 2010, are comprised of the following:

June 30,
, 2011 2010

Depreciation and amortization $ (90,074) $ (84,047)
Trademarks and tradename (116,127) (116,127)
Goodwill : (15,915) : (9,459)
Unbilled receivables (42,284) (33,292)
Deferred tax liability on unremitted earnings (3,745) (7,591)
Other (9,619) (20,858)

Gross deferred tax liabilities $(277,764) $(271,374)
Accrued retirement benefits $ 218,855 $ 378,100
Deferred rent S 10,684 5,157
Net operating loss carryforwards 61,308 50,712
Share-based compensation 48,102 - 26,084
Accrued liabilities 61,617 63,803
Accrued compensation i 25,698 21,881
Deferred revenue 49,587 43,976
Foreign tax credit . 50,060 47,189
Other 29,070 35,997

Gross deferred tax assets : o $ 554981 : $ 672,899

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance $ (62,454) $ (37,206)

Net deferred tax asset $ 214,763 $ 364,319

The net deferred income tax assets at June 30, 2011 are classified between current deferred tax assets of $59.9 million and current deferred tax
liabilities of $(5.4) million and noncurrent deferred tax assets of $188.6 million and noncurrent deferred tax liabilities of $(28.3) million.

We maintain a valuation allowance of $62.5 million and $37.2 million at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, against certain of our deferred
tax assets, as it is more likely than not that they will not be fully realized.

The net change in the valuation allowance of $25.3 million in fiscal year 2011 primarily relates to increased losses in fdreign jurisdictions
where the Company does not recognize a tax benefit.

At June 30, 2011, we had loss carryforwards for tax purposes in federal and various foreign jurisdictions amounting to $205.4 million of which
$137.0 million can be indefinitely carried forward under local statutes. The remaining $68.4 million of loss carryforwards will expire, if
unused, in varying amounts from 2012 through 2031. At June 30, 2011 we had state tax loss carryforwards of $143.2 million, which will expire
in varying amounts from 2014 to 2031. In addition, at June 30, 2011 we had foreign tax credit carryforwards of $50.1 million, which will
expire in varying amounts from 2016 to 2020.

Historically, we have not provided U.S. deferred taxes on cumulative earnings of foreign subsidiaries that have been reinvested indefinitely. As
aresult of the Merger, we expect to repatriate all historical earnings accrued through June 30, 2011 in our acquired Towers Perrin Canadian
subsidiary. The cumulative deferred tax liability on unremitted earnings is $3.7 million at June 30, 2011. In fiscal year 2012 we intend to
change our assertion with respect to the acquired Towers Perrin Canadian subsidiary as a result of the Company’s increasing cash needs for
non U.S. legal entity restructuring and future integration.

We continue to assert that the historical cumulative earnings of our other foreign subsidiaries are reinvested indefinitely and we do not provide
U.S. deferred tax liabilities on these amounts. These earnings relate to ongoing operations and at June 30, 2011 were approximately

$618.0 million. It is not practicable to estimate the U.S. federal income tax liability that might be payable if such earnings are not reinvested
indefinitely. If future events, including material changes in estimates of cash, working capital and long-
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term investment requirements, necessitate that these earnings be distributed, an additional provision for U.S. income and foreign withholding
taxes, net of foreign tax credits, may be necessary.

At June 30, 2011, the amount of unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions, determined in accordance with ASC 740-10,
was $39.8 million. This liability can be reduced by $8.8 million of offsetting deferred tax benefits associated with timing differences, foreign
tax credits and the federal tax benefit of state income taxes. The entire net difference of $31.0 million, if recognized, would impact our
effective tax rate. During the year, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties, increased by $6.5 million.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

. 2011 2010 2009
Balance at July 1 o . $33,266 $ 9,414 $11,034
Increases related to current year acquisitions — 24,515 —
Increases related to tax positions in prior years 797 1,257 248
Decreases related to tax positions in prior years (3,744) (4,245) (213)
Decreases related to settlements — - (283) . (786)
Decreases related to lapse in statute of limitations (485) (1,781) (1,562)
Increases related to current year tax positions : 8,378 4,830 1,116
Cumulative translation adjustment 1,572 (441) (423)
Balances at June 30 . o $39.784 . $33,266 $ 9414

The liability for the periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, may be reduced by $7.4 million and $7.5 million of deferred tax
benefits that, if recognized, would have a favorable impact on our effective tax rate. There are no material balances that would result in
adjustments to other tax accounts.

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are included in income tax expense. At June 30, 2011, we had accrued interest of
$4.0 million and penalties of $0.4 million, totaling $4.4 million. At June 30, 2010, we had accrued interest of $2.8 million and penalties of
$0.4 million, totaling $3.2 million.

Tax expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 includes interest expense of $0.6 million and no penalties. Tax expense for the year ended
June 30, 2010 includes an interest benefit of $0.9 million and a penalty benefit of $0.3 million. Interest and penalties accrued for the year ended
June 30, 2009 were not material.

We believe that it is reasonably possible there will be a $0.8 million decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits within the next
12 months based upon potential settlements and the expiration of statutes of limitations in various tax jurisdictions.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. The income
tax examinations in the U.S. for the tax years 2002-2008 in connection with amended returns that were filed to claim foreign tax credits was
settled in fiscal year 2011 and the refund claim has been approved by the Joint Comimittee on Taxation. As a result the federal unrecognized tax
benefits related to these tax years have been released through the income statement in the quarter ended June 30, 2011. We are also under
income tax examinations in certain states for tax years ranging from 2003 to 2008. The statute of limitations in certain states extends back to
tax year 1998 as a result of changes to taxable income resulting from prior year federal tax examinations. A summary of the tax years that
remain open to tax examination in our major tax jurisdictions are as follows:

Open Tax Years

. (fiscal year ending in)
United States — federal 2009 and forward
United States — various states 1998 and forward
Canada — federal ) . 2003 and forward
Germany v ' 2004 and forward
The Netherlands 2008 and forward
United Kingdom 2009 and forward

105



Note 16 — Segment Information

Towers Watson has three reportable operating segments or practice areas:
(1) Benefits
(2) Risk and Financial Services
(3) Talent and Rewards

Towers Watson’s chief operating decision maker is the chief executive officer. It was determined that Towers Watson operational data used by
the chief operating decision maker is that of the new segments. Management bases strategic goals and decisions on these segments and the data
presented below is used to assess the adequacy of strategic decisions, the method of achieving these strategies and related financial results.
Historically Watson Wyait had five reportable segments which have been retrospectively adjusted to the new post-Merger segments. The
Benefits and Technology and Administrative Solutions segments were combined and reclassified into the Benefits segment. The Investment
Consulting and Insurance & Financial Services segments were combined and reclassified into the Risk and Financial Services segment while
the Human Capital Group became the Talent and Rewards segment.

Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources to them based on net operating income on a pre-bonus, pre-tax
basis. Revenue includes amounts that were directly incurred on behalf of our clients and reimbursed by them (reimbursable expenses).

As a result of the Merger integration, certain associates and related revenues have moved between segments. Prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current classification.

The table below presents specified information about reported segments as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:

Risk and Talent and
Benefits Financial Services Rewards Total
Revenue (net of reimbursable expenses) $1,857,047 .$ 740,721 $543,507 $3,141,275
Net operating income 609,133 181,970 96,791 887,894
Depreciation and amortization 21,888 6,239 7,342 35,469
Receivables o 460,492 167,709 119,921 748,122

The table below presents specified information about reported segments as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010:

Risk and Talent and
Benefits Financial Services Rewards Total
Revenue (net of reimbursable expenses) $1,470,817 $ 494,961 $351,709 $2,317,487
Net operating income ' - 441,159 112,373 17,417 570,949
Depreciation and amortization o : } 26,509 6,520 8,736 - 41,765
Receivables ' 400,169 132,487 107,465 640,121

The table below presents specified information about reported segments as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:

Risk and Talent and
Benefits Financial Services Rewards Total
Revenue (net of reimbursable expenses) $1,119,753 $ 278,986 $223,001 $1,621,740
Net operating income 327,832 62,579 16,709 407,120
Depreciation and amortization 24,471 4,397 7,426 36,294

Receivables 226,445 49,607 32,919 308,971
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A reconciliation of the information reported by segment to the consolidated amounts follows as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, (in

thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
- 2011 : 2010 2009
Revenue: ; . - : . . : _
Total segment revenue $3,141,275 $2,317,487 $1,621,740
Reimbursable expenses and other 118,176 70,342 54,289
Revenue . v $3,259,451 $2,387,829 $1,676,029
Net Operating Income: . : - o
Total segment net operating income $ 887,894 $ 570,949 $ 407,120
Differences in allocation methods (1) i 18,934 7,012 (1,183)
Amortization of intangibles (51,989) (31,280) (13,892)
Transaction and integration expenses (100,535) (87,644) —_
Stock-based compensation and restricted A shares (71,715) (48,006) —
Discretionary compensation (337,694) (236,154) (167,590)
Other non-operating income ! 19,349 11,304 4,926
Other, net (37,603) (16,264) (7.478)
Income before income taxes $ 326,641 $ 169,917 $ 221,903
Depreciation and Amortization Expense:
Total segment expense $ 35,469 $ 41,765 $ 36,294
Intangible asset amortization, not allocated to segments 51,989 31,280 13,892
Information technology and other 43,117 28,039 23,262
Total depreciation and amortization expense ' ' '$ 130,575 $ 101,084 $ 73,448
Receivables: : . .
Total segment receivables — billed and unbilled (2) : $ 748,122 . - $ 640,121 $ 308,971
Valuation differences and other . : 30,808 (2,607) (6,561)
Total billed and unbilled receivables 778,930 - . 637514 . 302,410
Assets not reported by segment 4,320,020 3,936,103 1,323,909
Total assets . - $5,098,950 $4,573,617 $1,626,319

(1)  Depreciation, general and administrative, pension, and medical costs are allocated to our segments based on budgeted expenses
determined at the beginning of the fiscal year as management believes that these costs are largely uncontrollable to the segment. To the
extent that the actual expense base upon which allocations are made differs from the forecast/budget amount, a reconciling item will be
created betweén internally allocated expenses and the actual expense that we report for GAAP purposes.

(2) Total segment receivables, which reflect the receivable balances used by management to make business decisions, are included for
management reporting purposes net of deferred revenue.

The following represents total revenue and long-lived assets information by geographic area as and for the fiscal years ended June 30: -

Revenue ’ Long-Lived Assets
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
North America ‘ $1,865,299 -$1,325,876 $ 835,941 $1,588,876 $1,331,241 $201,450
Europe 1,158,567 888,076 701,035 1,607,604 1,352,990 733,887
Rest of World 235,585 173,877 139,053 63,650 49,232 13,470

$3,259,451 $2,387,829 $1,676,029 $3,259,830 $2,733,463 $948.,807

Revenue is based on the country of domicile for the legal entity that originated the revenue. Exclusive of the United States and the United
Kingdom, revenue from no single country constituted more than 10% of consolidated revenue. Revenue from no single customer constituted
more than one percent of consolidated revenue.
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Note 17 — Earnings Per Share

We adopted guidance under ASC 260, Earnings per Share, relating to the two-class method of presenting EPS. This guidance addresses

whether awards granted in share-based transactions are participating securities prior to vestin
allocation in computing earnings per share using the two-class method. ASC 260-

that have non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents to be treated
share. Our participating securities include non-vested restricted stock. The compo

g and therefore need to be included in the earning
10-45-60 requires non-vested share-based payment awards
as a separate class of securities in calculating earnings per
nents of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2011

2010 2009

Per Share

Income Shares Amount Income

Per Share
Amount

Per Share

Shares Amount

Income’ Shares

Basic EPS

Net income attributable
to controlling
interests

Less: Income allocated

. to participating

securities

Income available to
common
shareholders

$194,437 $120,597

(9,324) 4,323)

$185,113 70,523 $§ 262 $116,274

$146,458

$ 2.04 $146,458 42,690 $§ 343

Diluted EPS
Share-based
compensation
awards
Income available to
common
shareholders

64

'$185,113 70,587 $ 2.62  $116274

57,135

115 171

57,250 $ 203 $146,458 42,861 $ 342

Stock options of 108.9 thousand were outstanding
because their inclusion would have been antidilutive.

Note 18 — Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

as of June 30, 2010, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share

Summarized quarterly financial data for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2011 Quarter Ended

September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenue $ 751,441 $ 790,664 $866,081 $851,265
Income from operations 59,190 62,053 102,273 89,647
Income before income taxes 58,859 71,398 108,126 88,258
Net income attributable to controlling interests 33,242 48,103 69,236 43,856
Earnings per share:
Net income, basic $ 0.45 $ 0.65 $ 094 $ 059
Net income, diluted $ 045 $ 0.65 $ 094 $ 059
2010 Quarter Ended
September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenue $ 401,345 $ 432,614 $803,963 $749,907
Income from operations 43,141 45,809 51,145 24,350
Income before income taxes 45,079 46,093 49,696 29,049
Net income attributable to controlling interests 29,781 23,872 8,815 58,129
Earnings per share:
Net income, basic $ 0.70 $ 0.57 $ 012 $ 077
Net income, diluted $ 0.69 $ 0.56 $ 012 $ 077

The accompanying unaudited quarterly financial data has been prepared in accordance with
gulation S-

United States for interim financial information and with Item 302 of Re
fair statement have been made and were of a normal recurring nature.
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Description

TOWERS WATSON & CO.

Schedule IT

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves
(Thousands of U.S. Doliars)

Balance
at
Beginning
of
Year

Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Allowance for unbillable accounts

Valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets

Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Allowance for unbillable accounts

Valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets

Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Allowance for unbiliable accounts
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets "

$ 7975
11,696

37,206
$ 4452
9,115

10,884

$ 8,544

11,700

12,524

Additions
Charged
Against
(Credited

to)
_Revenue

$ 13,004
5,027

$ 11,759
2,581

109

'$ 5355

Additions o '
Charged Additions Balance
to Resulting at
Other ) From End of
. _Accounts ) : Acquisitions Deductions Year
Year Ended June 30, 2011
$ — $ — $ (8,343) $ 12,636
— S = — 16,723
28,892 — (3,644) 62,454
Year Ended June 30, 2010 .
$ — $ — $ (8,236) $ 7975
— — — 11,696
(20,868) 47,190 — 37,206
Year Ended June 30,2009 .
$‘ — $_ — $ (9,447 $ 4452
. o e e (2,585) 9,115
(1,640) — — 10,884



EXHIBITS.

In reviewing the agreements included or incorporated by reference as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, it is important to note that
they are included to provide investors with information regarding their terms, and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure
information about Towers Watson or the other parties to the agreements. The agreements contain representations and warranties made by each
of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the
applicable agreement, and: should not be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating risk between the parties;
have in some cases been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable
agreement, which disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement; may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from
what may be material to investors; and were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be
specified in the agreement and are subject to more recent developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
Additional information about Towers Watson may be found elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and our other public filings, which
are available without charge through the SEC’s website-at http://www.sec.gov.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number : Description of Exhibit
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Towers Watson & Co. (1)

3.2 Amended and Reétated. Bylaws of Towers Watson & Co. (2)

4.1 Indenture, dated as of June 15, 2010, between Towers Watson & Co. and Wilmington Trust FSB, as Trustee, and form of
Towers Watson Notes. (3)

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of January 1, 2010, among Towers Watson & Co. and certain subsidiaries, as borrowers, each lender
from time to time party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, swing line lender and L/C issuer. (4)

10.2 Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long Term Incentive Plan.** (5)

10.3 Form of Transaction Based Compensation Agreement between Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc. (now known as Towers
Watson Pennsylvania Inc.) and certain executives.** (6)

10.4 Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, IInc. Restricted Stock Unit Plan.** (7)
10.5 Form of Award pursuant to the Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc. Restricted Stock Unit Plan.** (8)
10.6 Form of Transaction Award pursuant to the Towers, Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc. Restricted Stock Unit Plan.** (9)
10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreemeﬁt with directors and executive officers.** (10)
10.8 Trust Deed and Rules of the Watson Wyatt Share Incentive Plan 2005 (U.K).** (11)
10.9 Watson Wyatt Share Incentive Plan 2005 Deed of Amendment (U.K.).** (11)
10.1 Share Purchase Plan 2005 (Spain).** (11)
10.11 Trust Deed and Rules of the Watson Wyatt Ireland Share Participation Scheme.** (11)
10.12° Watson Wyatt Amended and Restated Senior Officer Deferred Compensation Plan. ** (12)
10.13 Watson Wyatt Amended Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors.** (13)

10.14 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement for use under the Towers Watson & Co. 2009 Long-Term Incentive
Plan.** (14)

10.15 Towers Watson & Co. Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors.** (15)
10.16 Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors.** (15)
10.17 Watson Wyatt & Company Holdings 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan.** (16)
10.18 Fénn of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Performance-Based Vesting)** (17)
10.19 Appendix A to Awards (setting forth performance criteria for 2010 — 2013 performance p'eriod)** (18)
10.20 Watson Wyatt & Company Holdings Incentive Compensation Plan
21.1 Subsidiaries of Towers Watson & Co.*
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm.*

31.1 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer, John J. Haley, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.*

31.2 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer, Roger F. Millay, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 *
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

32.1 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer, John J. Haley, and Chief Financial Officer, Roger F. Millay, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

* Filed herewith.
*%  Designates management contracts and compensation plans.
) 'Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form S-1/A filed by the Company on September 13, 2010.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s joint proxy statement/prospectus included in the Registration Statement on
Form S-4/A (File No. 333-161705) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission and declared effective on
November 9, 2009, as supplemented by the prospectus supplement filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) on December 14, 2009 (collectively,
the “Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus”).

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-168201) filed by the Company on
July 19, 2010.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on January 4, 2010.
(5) Incorporated by reference to Annex G to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

®) Incofporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Watson Wyatt Worldwide Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on September 1, 2006.
(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus. ‘

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 8, 2010.

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on May 18, 20 10.

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Watson Wyatt Worldwide Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2009.
(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 30, 2010.

(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 30, 2010.
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Exhibit 10.20

WATSON WYATT & COMPANY HOLDINGS
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Watson Wyatt & Company Holdings (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, hereby establishes and adopts the following Incentive
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) to provide incentive awards that are intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the
meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

1. PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Plan are to provide incentive and financial rewards to executive officers of the Company and its Affiliates who, because of
the extent of their responsibilities, can make significant contributions to the Company’s success by their ability, industry, loyalty and
exceptional services.

2. DEFINITIONS

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, partnership or other organization of which the Company owns or controls, directly or indirectly, not
less than 50% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock or other equity interests.

“Award” shall mean any amount granted to a Participant under the Plan.
“Board” shall mean the board of directors of the Company.
“Certification” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 of the United States of America, as amended from time to time, and any successor
thereto.

“Committee” shall mean the Compensation Committee of the Board or any subcommittee thereof formed by the Compensation Committee for
the purpose of acting as the Committee hereunder. For purposes of satisfying the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder, the Committee is intended to consist solely of “outside directors” as such term is defined in Section 162(m) of the
Code.

“Disability” means any physical or mental condition of a Participant that in the opinion of the Committee renders the Participant incapable of
continuing to be an employee of the Company and its Affiliates.

“Maximum Incentive Award” shall mean a payment in an amount equal to 2.5%, in the case of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and any
other Participant who is a member of the Board, or 1.5%, in the case of each other Participant, of the Company’s Net Income for a given
Performance Period.

“Net Income” shall mean the Company’s after-tax income on a consolidated basis as reported in the Company’s income statement for the
applicable Performance Period, prior to accrual of any amounts for payment under this Plan for the Performance Period, adjusted to eliminate
the effects of charges for restructurings, discontinued operations, extraordinary items and all items of gain, loss or expense determined to be
extraordinary or unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence or related to the disposal of a segment of a business or related to a change in
accounting principle all as determined in accordance with standards established by opinion No. 30 of the Accounting Principles Board (APB
Opinion No. 30) or other applicable or successor accounting provisions, as well as the cumulative effect of accounting changes, in each case as
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or identified in the Company’s financial statements or notes to the
financial statements.

“Participant” shall mean each executive officer of the Company who is employed by the Company or an Affiliate as of the last day of a
Performance Period.



“Performance Period” shall mean the Company’s fiscal year or such other period that the Committee, in its sole discretion, may establish,
provided any such Performance Period shall not be less than one year or more than five years in length.

3. ELIGIBILITY AND ADMINISTRATION

3.1. Eligibility. The individuals eligible to participate in the Plan shall be the Compaﬁy’s Chief Executive-Officer and any other executive
officer of the Company or an Affiliate selected by the Commiittee to participate in the Plan (each, a “Participant”).

3.2. Administration.

(a) The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have full power and authority, subject to the provisions of the
Plan and subject to such orders or resolutions not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan as may from time to time be adopted by the
Board, to: (i) select the Participants to whom Awards may from time to time be paid hereunder; (ii) determine the terms and conditions, not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, of each Award; (iii) determine the time when Awards will be granted and paid and the
Performance Period to which they relate; (iv) affirm the formula for determining the Maximum Incentive Award payable for each
Participant in respect of Performance Periods and certify as to the calculation of Net Income and the amount of the Maximum Incentive
Award payable for each Participant in respect of Performance Periods; (v) determine whether payment of Incentive Awards may be deferred
by Participants as provided in Section 4.3; (vi) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or agreement entered into in connection
with the Plan; (vii) correct any defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Award in the manner and to the
extent that the Committee shall deem desirable to carry it into effect; (viii) establish such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it
shall deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan; and (ix) make any other determination and take any other action that the
Committee deems necessary or desirable for administration of the Plan.

(b) Decisions of the Committee shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons or entities, including the Company, any Affiliate, any
Participant and any person claiming any benefit or right under an Award or under the Plan.

(c) To the extent not inconsistent with applicable law or the rules and regulations of the New York Stock Exchange, any other national
securities exchange or the NASDAQ National Market on which the Company’s securities are listed or qualified for trading, including the
applicable provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee may delegate to one or more officers of the Company or a committee of
officers the authority to take actions on its behalf pursuant to the Plan.

4. AWARDS

4.1. Performance Period. Not later than the earlier of (i) 90 days after the commencement of each fiscal year of thevCompany and (ii) the
expiration of 25% of the Performance Period, the Committee shall, in writing, designate one or more Performance Periods and shall affirm the
applicability of the Plan’s formula for determining the Maximum Incentive Award for each Participant for such Performance Period(s).

4.2. Certification. At such time as it shall determine appropriate following the conclusion of each Performance Period, the Committee shall
certify, in writing, the amount of the Maximum Incentive Award for each Participant for such Performance Period (the “Certification™).

4.3. Payment of Awards. The selection of Participants to whom Awards shall actually be paid and the amount of the Award actually paid to
a Participant shall be such amount as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, including zero, provided that the actual Award shall
not exceed the Maximum Incentive Award with respect to such Participant. The actual amount of the Award determined by the Committee for
a Performance Period shall be paid in cash or, to the extent provided in such plan, share awards under a shareholder-approved stock plan of the
Company to each Participant at such time as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion following the end of the applicable
Performance Period, and may be deferred under a program or plan approved by the Committee subject to the terms and conditions of such
program or plan. ' :



4.4. Commencement or Termination of Employment. If a Participant obtains such status during a Performance Period (whether through
promotion or commencement of employment) or if a person who otherwise would have been a Participant dies, retires or is Disabled, or if the
person’s employment is otherwise terminated, during a Performance Period (except for cause, as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion), the Award payable to such a Participant may, in the discretion of the Committee, be proportionately reduced based on the period of
actual employment during the applicable Performance Period.

5. MISCELLANEOUS

S.1. Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The Board may, from time to time, alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan as it shall
deem advisable, subject to any requirement for stockholder approval imposed by applicable law, including Section 162(m) of the Code. No
amendments to, or termination of, the Plan shall in any way impair the rights of a Participant under any Award previously granted without such
Participant’s consent.

5.2. Section 162(m) of the Code. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the provisions of this Plan shall be administered and
interpreted in accordance with Section 162(m) of the Code to ensure the deductibility by the Company of the payment of Awards. Subject to
sharcholder approval of the Plan, the failure of any aspect of the Plan to satisfy Section 162(m) shall not void any action taken by the
Committee under the Plan.

5.3. Tax Withholding. The Company or an Affiliate shall have the right to make all payments or distributions pursuant to the Plan to a
Participant, net of any applicable federal, state and local taxes required to be paid or withheld. The Company or an Affiliate shall have the right
to withhold from wages, Awards or other amounts otherwise payable to such Participant such withholding taxes as may be required by law, or
to otherwise require the Participant to pay such withholding taxes. If the Participant shall fail to make such tax payments as are required, the
Company or an Affiliate shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct any such taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise
due to such Participant or to take such other action as may be necessary to satisfy such withholding obligations.

5.4. Right of Discharge Reserved; Claims to Awards. Absent action by the Committee, nothing in this Plan shall provide any Participant a
right to receive any Award or payment under the Plan with respect to a Performance Period. Nothing in the Plan nor the grant of an Award
hereunder shall confer upon any Participant the right to continue in the employment of the Company or an Affiliate or affect any right that the
Company or an Affiliate may have to terminate the employment of (or to demote or to exclude from future Awards under the Plan) any such
Participant at any time for any reason. Except as specifically provided by the Committee, the Company shall not be liable for the loss of
existing or potential profit from an Award granted in the event of the termination of employment of any Participant. No Participant shall have
any claim to be granted any Award under the Plan, and there is no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Participants under the Plan.

5.5. Nature of Payments. All Awards made pursuant to the Plan are in consideration of services performed or to be performed for the
Company or an Affiliate, division or business unit of the Company. Any income or gain realized pursuant to Awards under the Plan constitute a
special incentive payment to the Participant and shall not be taken into account, to the extent permissible under applicable law, as
compensation for purposes of any of the employee benefit plans of the Company or an Affiliate except as may be determined by the Committee
or by the Board or board of directors of the applicable Affiliate.

* 5.6. Other Plans. Nothing contained in the Plan shall prevent the Board from adopting other or additional compensation arrangements,
subject to stockholder approval if such approval is required; and such arrangements may be either generally applicable or applicable only in
specific cases.

5.7. Severability. If any provision of the Plan shall be held unlawful or otherwise invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such provision shall (a) be deemed limited to the extent that such court of competent jurisdiction deems it lawful, valid
and/or enforceable and as so limited shall remain in full force and effect, and (b) not affect any other provision of the Plan or part thereof, each
of which shall remain in full force and effect. If the making of any payment or the provision of any other benefit required under the Plan shall
be held unlawful or otherwise invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such unlawfulness, invalidity or unenforceability
shall not prevent any other payment or benefit from being made or provided under the. Plan, and if the making of any payment in full or the
provision of any other benefit required



under the Plan in full would be unlawful or otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then such unlawfulness, invalidity or unenforceability shall not
prevent such payment or benefit from being made or provided in part, to the extent that it would not be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, and
the maximum payment or benefit that would not be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable shall be made or provided under the Plan.

5.8. Construction. As used in the Plan, the words “include” and “including, ” and variations thereof, shall not be deemed to be terms of
limitation, but rather shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.”

5.9. Unfunded Status of the Plan. The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan for incentive compensation and deferred
compensation if permitted by the Committee. With respect to any payments not yet made to a Participant by the Company, nothing contained
herein shall give any such Participant any rights that are greater than those of a general creditor of the Company.

5.10. Governing Law. The Plan and all determinations made and actions taken thereunder, to the extent not otherwise govemed by the Code
or the laws of the United States, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, without reference to principles of conflict of laws that
might result in the application of the laws of another jurisdiction, and shall be construed accordingly.

5.11. Resolution of Disputes. In the event a Participant or person claiming a right under an Award or the Plan believes that a decision by the
Committee with respect to such person or Award was arbitrary or capricious, the person may request arbitration with respect to such decision.
The review by the arbitrator shall be limited to determining whether the Participant or other person has proven that the Committee’s decision
was arbitrary or capricious. This arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive review permitted of the Committee’s decision. Participants and
persons claiming rights under an Award or the Plan explicitly waive any right to judicial review. Notice of demand for arbitration shall be made
in writing to the Committee within thirty (30) days after the applicable decision by the Commiitee. The arbitrator shall be selected by those
members of the Board of Directors who are neither members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors nor employees of the
Company or any Affiliate. If there are no such members of the Board of Directors, the arbitrator shall be selected by the Board of Directors.
Such arbitrator shall be neutral within the meaning of the Commercial Rules of Dispute Resolution of the American Arbitration Association;
provided, however, that the arbitration shall not be administered by the American Arbitration Association. Any challenge to the neutrality of
the arbitrator shall be resolved by the arbitrator whose decision shall be final and conclusive. The arbitration shall be administered and
conducted by the arbitrator pursuant to the Commercial Rules of Dispute Resolution of the American Arbitration Association. Each side shall
bear its own fees and expenses, including its own attorney’s fees, and each side shall bear one half of the arbitrator’s fees and expenses. The
decision of the arbitrator on the issue(s) presented for arbitration shall be final and conclusive and may be enforced in any court of competent
jurisdiction. )

5.12. Effective Date of Plan. The Plan shall be effective on the date of the approval of the Plan by the holders of the then outstanding
securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in'the election of directors. The Plan shall be null and void and of no effect if the foregoing
condition is not fulfilled.

5.13. Captions. The captions in the Plan are for convenience of reference only, and are not intended to narrow, limit or affect the substance
or interpretation of the provisions contained herein.



TOWERS WATSON & CO.
SUBSIDIARIES

SUBSIDIARY NAME

Towers Watson Argentina S.A.

Towers Watson Australia Pty Ltd

Wycomp Pty Ltd

Towers Watson Superannuation Pty Ltd

Classic Solutions Australia Pty Limited

Classic Solutions Holding Pty Limited

Classic Solutions Pty. Limited

Towers Watson International Survey Research Pty Ltd
Towers Watson Austria GmbH

Towers Watson Risk Consulting SA

Towers Watson NV

Towers Watson (Bermuda) Ltd.

Towers Watson Assessoria Empresarial Ltda
Towers Watson Corretora e Consultoria de Seguros Ltda.
Towers Watson Consultoria Ltda.

Towers Watson Canada Inc.

Towers Watson Chile S.A.

Corredores de Seguros Towers Watson Limitada
Towers Watson Consulting (Shanghai) Limited
Towers Watson Enterprise Management Consulting
(Shenzhen) Limited

Towers Watson Management Consulting (Shenzhenj Co., Ltd.

Towers Watson Consultores Colombia S.A.

Towers Watson SARL

Towers Watson International Survey Research SARL
Towers Watson (Diisseldorf) GmbH

Towers Watson Deutschland GmbH

Towers Watson Versicherungsservice GmbH

Towers Watson Verlag GmbH

Heissmann Consultants GmbH

PM&S Pensions-managment und Sicherungs-Treuhand AG
Towers Watson Pension Service GmbH

ISR International Survey Research GmbH

Towers Watson (Reutlingen) GmbH

D.C. Vorsorge Trust GmbH

Zeitinvest-Service GmbH

Towers Watson GmbH

Towers Watson Holding GmbH

Towers Watson (K6ln) GmbH

Towers Watson Risk Consulting Ltd

Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited

Towers Watson Investment Services Hong Kong Limited
Towers Watson Risk Consulting Private Limited
Towers Watson India Private Limited

PT Towers Watson Purbajaga

PT Towers Watson Indonesia

" Towers Watson (Ireland) Limited

Watson Wyatt Consulting Limited

BCI Trustees Limited

JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION/
ORGANIZATION

Argentina
Australia
Australia
Australia

. Australia

Australia
Australia
Australia
Austria
Belgium
Belgium
Bermuda
Brazil
Brazil
Brazil.
Canada
Chile
Chile
China

China

China
Colombia
France
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
India

India
Indonesia
Indonesia
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland

Name(s) under which
such subsidiary

does business (if’
different)(a)
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Name(s) under which

- JURISDICTION OF such subsidiary

- INCORPORATION/ does business (if
SUBSIDIARY NAME ORGANIZATION different)(a)
Towers Watson Italia Srl Italy
Towers Watson Risk Consulting KK Japan
TW Japan KK Japan
Towers Watson KK Japan
Watson Wyatt Luxembourg SARL Luxembourg
Towers Perrin Luxembourg Holdings S.A.R.L. * Luxembourg
Towers Watson (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia
Towers Watson International Survey Research Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
Towers Perrin (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. - Malaysia
Watson Wyatt Holdings (Mauritius) Limited Mauritius
Towers Watson Consultores Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Towers Watson de Mexico, SA de CV Mexico
Watson Wyatt European Region BV Netherlands
Towers Watson Risk Consulting BV Netherlands
Towers Watson BV Netherlands
Towers Perrin Leasing B.V. Netherlands
Towers Watson Netherlands BV ‘Netherlands
Towers Watson Philippines, Inc. Philippines
Towers Watson (Portugal) Unipessoal Limitada Portugal
Towers Watson, Limited Liability Company Russia
Towers Watson Risk Consulting Pte Ltd Singapore
Towers Watson Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore
Towers Watson International Survey Research (AMEA) Pte Ltd Singapore
Towers Watson SA (Proprietary) Limited South Africa
Towers Watson Risk Consulting (Spain) SA Spain
Towers Watson de Espana SA Spain
Towers Watson AB Sweden
Towers Watson (Sverige) AB Sweden
Towers Watson AG Switzerland
Towers Watson (Thailand) Limited Thailand
Towers Watson Danigmanlik Limited Sirketi Turkey

Watson Wyatt Middle East (L.L.C.)
Towers Watson Middle East FZ-LLC
Towers Watson (Dubai) Limited

United Arab Emirates (Dubai)
United Arab Emirates (DIFC, Dubai)
United Arab Emirates (DIFC, Dubai)

Towers Watson Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Holdings Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Trustees Limited United Kingdom
The Wyatt Company Holdings Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Services Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Pretium Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Holdings (Europe) Limited “United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt International Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt Insurance & Financial Services Consulting Holdings ~ United Kingdom
Limited ' B

Watson Wyatt European Region Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt European Investment Holdings Limited United Kingdom
Watsons Pensioneer Trustees Limited United Kingdom
Watson Wyatt (UK) Acquisitions 1 Limited United Kingdom
PCL Limited United Kingdom
PCL 1991 Limited United Kingdom
Wyatt Trustee Limited v United Kingdom
The Wyatt Company (UK) Limited United Kingdom
Wyatt Pension Plan Trustee Limited United Kingdom

Wyatt Financial Services Limited

United Kingdom



SUBSIDIARY NAME

Watsons International Limited

RWS Trustee Limited

Watson Wyatt Healthcare Trustees Limited
Watson Wyatt (UK) Acquisitions 2 Limited
Watson Wyatt European Investment Limited Partnership
Classic Solutions UK Limited

Clayton Group Limited

Towers Watson (Re)Insurance Brokers Limited
Denis M. Clayton (Holdings) Limited

ISR L1 Limited

ISR L2 Limited

Towers Watson Capital Markets Limited

Towers Perrin Europe Limited

Towers Perrin Limited

Towers Perrin Share Plan Services Limited
Towers Perrin UK Holdings Limited

Towers Watson UK Limited

Towers Perrin (UK) Trustee Company Limited
EMB Management Holdings Limited

Towers Watson Software Limited

Towers Watson IC Limited

Towers Watson Marketing Sciences Limited
Towers Watson Delaware Inc.

Towers Watson Data Services, Inc.

Towers Watson Investment Services, Inc.

Watson Wyatt Insurance Consulting, Inc.

Towers Watson Risk Consulting, Inc.

Watson Wyatt Canadian Holdings, Inc.

Watson Wyatt European Investment Holdings, Inc.
. Watson Wyatt European Investment Holdings 1, LLC
Watson Wyatt European Investment Holdings 2, LLC
Towers Watson Delaware Holdings Inc.

Towers Watson Middle East Holdings LLC
Towers Perrin Capital Corp.

Towers Watson Capital Markets Inc.

TP Finance Co.

Watson Wyatt International, Inc.

TPF&C International Inc.

Towers Watson Pennsylvania Inc.

Professional Consultants Insurance Company, Inc.
Stone Mountain Insurance Company

EHO General Partner LLC

EHO Limited Partnership

Towers Watson America LLC

Towers Watson Uruguay S.A.

Watson Vietnam Company Limited

(a) Subsidiaries which are trading entities trade under their own name or under the trading name of Towers Watson.

JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION/
ORGANIZATION

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Nevada

United States- Pennsylvania
United States- Pennsylvania

United States — Vermont
United States- Vermont
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
United States- Delaware
Uruguay

Vietnam

Name(s) under which
such subsidiary
does business (if

different)(a)
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-164191 and 333-164192 on Form S-8 of our reports dated
August 29, 2011, relating to the financial statement and financial statement schedule of Towers Watson & Co. (which report expresses an
unqualified opinion) and the effectiveness of Towers Watson & Co.’s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K of Towers Watson & Co. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP |
McLean, Virginia

August 29, 2011




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14 AND 15d-14
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTICON 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John J. Haley, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Towers Watson & Co.

Based on my knowiedge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

(i) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(ii) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 24, 2011

/s/ John J. Haley

John J. Haley
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14 AND 15d-14
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Roger F. Millay, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Towers Watson & Co.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report. ’

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ‘

5
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclisions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

(i) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(ii) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 24, 2011
/s/ Roger F. Millay

Roger F. Millay
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
‘AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, in his capacity as an officer of Towers Watson & Co. (fhe “Company”), for purposes of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of his knowledge:

The Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2011, fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

The information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company.

Date: August 24, 2011
/s/ John J. Haley

John J. Haley
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Roger F. Millay
Roger F. Millay
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this writfen statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Towers Watson & Co. and will be retained by Towers
Watson & Co. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



